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Helping people

make measurable progress

in their lives through learning

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013 OUR TRANSFORMATION

To find out mot e about how we are
transforming our business go 1o page 09

EFFICACY
To find out more about our focus
on efficacy go to page 14

OUR PERFORMANCE

For an wr-depth analysis of our
performance in 2013 go to page 19

ALWAYS LEARNING PEARSON




ALWAYS LEARNING

Pearson is the world’s leading learning
company, with 40,000 employees in more
than 80 countries working to help people
of all ages to make measurable progress
in their lives through learning.

We provide learming matertals, technologies, assessments and services
to teachers and students in order 1o help people everywhere aim
higher and fulfif their true potential

We put the learner at the centre of everything we do

READ QUR REPORT ONLINT

Learn
more

www pearson com/ar2013 html

To stay up to date with Pearson
throughout the year, vistt our
blog at blog pearson.com

and follow us an Twitter — image removed
@pearsonpic
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Financial highlights

In financial terms, Pearson’s goal 1s to achieve 2013 51ES

sustainable growth on three key financial goals
— earnings, cash and return on invested capital, n
]

and reliable cash returns to our investors

through healthy and growing dividends. O
In 2013 trading was tough in many of our biggest and most established +
markets At the same time we are now In a more intensive phase of O

mvestment, invesung much more, both 1 building the technology and
related infrastructure, and i the next generation of products and
services We also contnue to finance the one-off costs of the biggest
restructuring in Pearson’s recent history Headiine earnings and cash were
agam lower than the previous year and our return on invested capital fell
to 5 4% from 9 1% n 2013 We are proposing a 7% dividend Increase

2013 2012 HEADLINE CER  UNDERLYINC 2013 ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT
{m £ GROWTH  GROWTH GROWTH

Before net restructuring charges

Business performance

Sales 5177 505% 2% 2% 1%
Adjusted operaung
profit before net

restructiring charges 871 932 (7Y% (6)% ()%

Adyusted operating profit 736 G932 (212 (21)% {23)%

Adjusted earrings 60/
pershare 70tp B26p {15y% c— o
Operaung cash flow 588 788 (25)%

Free cash flow 269 657 (59Y%

Free cash flow pershare 333 8.7 {59)%

Return oninvested capital  $4% 9 1% -

Nert debt 1,379 Q8 {50)% QUR FIVE-YEAR RECORD

Average annual growth in
Statutory results headhine terms 2008-2013
Sales 5069 4959 2%

Adjusted earnings per share

Operaung profic 458 487 {6)Y% O
Profit before tax 382 391 (2% + 4/0

Basic earnings per share E66p 387p 72%

Operaung cash flow

Cash generated
| from opes ations 684 216 {25)% O
' Dwidend per share 480p 450p 7% = O

Note

a} Growthrates 1o stated on a constant xchange vare (CER) basis unless otherwise strted ledend
Where cuoted undet fying growth rates exclude both currency movements and portfoho changes 70
Unless otherwise stated Lales exclude Pangu i while aperating profits include both Penguin and
our share of Perpuin Random House (PRH}Y Coatinuing operations exclude botn Penguin and + /O

terget marker but indiude our share of PRI

by The business performance rneasures o ¢ non-GAAP measures and recanedations ko the equivaless
statutery heading under IFRS wre incduded innotes 2 7 and 8 1o the financial statcimems
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Chairman’s introduction

tmage removed

Glen Moreno, Chairman of Pearson

While the business
environment remains
challenging, the board is
confident that Pearson is
well placed with a clear plan
to deliver future growth
and create value for our
shareholders.

Dear shareholders,

Paarson has always ivested tme and energy in
producmng a clear and compelling annual report,

but wrth the new ediwon of the UK Corperate
Governance Code now n place, we have worked
particularly hard to ensure that our annual report
and accounts 1s fair, balanced and understandabie

At this important ume in the company's history we
have focused on providing the nformation necessary
for shareholders to fully assess the company’s business
model, strategy, development, performance, positton
and future prospects

2013 was an extremely significant year for Pearson
and the first full year under the leadership of

John Fallon as chief executve Qur restructuring
programme - designed to accelerate our shift
rowards fast-growing economies and digital and
services businesses ~ is on track and we began 2014
under a new, mtegrated operating model for a single
and global education company

As a company we also made a series of unigue
commutments designed to measure and increase the
company's tmpact on learning outcomes around the
world, including to commut to report audited learning
outcomes alongside cur financial accounts, covering
our whole business by 2018

Strengthening the board and executive team

John Fallon has strengthened hts executive team by
promoting our best mternal talent and recruiting some
exceptional global leaders i theu speciic fields

We have also focused on the development of the
board, which | address in the Governance section of
this repart With recent and planned appointments
1 am confident that the board reflects the right biend
of skills and experience to guide Pearson in the best
interests of shareholders



SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE
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A challenging 2013

As CFO Robin Freestone outhnes 1n his report

{page 19). our 2013 financial performance was
challenging Market conditions continued to be strong
in digital, services and emerging markets, but
remained more difficult im some of our largest
textbook publishing markets

These challenges were refiected i our share price
performance, which underperformed our indices
While the business environment remains challenging,
the board 1s confident that Pearson 15 welt placed with
a clear plan to deliver future growth and create value
for aur shareholders Looger term, our share price
and total shareholder return have reflected a 10 year
track record of strong business performance We are
now focused on establishing a base for sumlar business
growth over the next decade

Conunued transformation

As | said in last year's annual report, the basic
direction of Pearson’s strategy has not changed but
we are accelerating the pace to shift capital and talent
more quickly towards our most significant growth
opportunities The restructuring of our global
education business, conunued investment n
technology and focus on operational efficency are
well underway

{ am confident that the global demand for affordable
and effective learming will continue to grow As the
world’s leading learning company we are in an
increasingly strong position to take advantage of
this demand and dehver products and services that
measurably improve learrung outcomes for our
customers and learners | am also confident that
this will positively impact shareholder value

Glen Moreno Chairman
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QOur business models

Pearson is the world’s
leading learning company,
working to support
learners and teachers in
over 80 countries around
the world.

BUSINESS MODEL

Instde services

lmage removed

Where we provide a set of integrated services
to insututions (public and private) that have

an institution-wide impact on improved learning
outcomes (often at lower cost)

Includes

Swetemn COC prowvides 2 complete
sotunsn from digiat and trad vontd
fearming 1o assessroent ook ang
pedagogical suppor. forpre

142 wehoely in Brazd reachng

166 JO0 staderts

Logo removed

Ematinet s the leading provdes of anlne

E m b a n e t {ear ning ser vices for the world s premier

schoole colleges and wmvel siucs

We orovide technology and
management SeFy Les Lo support ASU 5
online students ASUIs rhw fot gesr public
urversicy 1o the US by envolment

Logo removed

Whetber it's through new digital fearning products
in the US, developing qualificatons and assessments
i the UK, tratming school feaders in the Middle East,
teaching Englhish in China or educating professionals
through content from the Financial Times, we're
helping people make measurable progress i thewr
fives through learning

Our products and services may be provided and used
tn a standalone way, but are increasingly integrated
and customused to meet the needs of indvidual
education systemns, customers and learners We have
idenufied four major market opportunities for our
products and so we create value for our customers

in four different, but related ways, outhined below

BUSINESS MODEL

Direct delivery

Image removed

Where we own and operate the learning institution
{physicat, virtual and/or blended), providing an
ntegrated learning environment direct to the
learner rather than through other parves

Includes

CTFhn aprvate higher educauon
wstunen i South Afica offering full
NG PaFt-NMa studies In infok manon
Techacdog) Psycaology and Coursellng
Creatn g Arts e Graphic Desgn
Cemmerceant. Law of rempuses

sp1 ead througl cut Souar Afilca

Logo removed

Wall Strect Faghsh s among the largest
orovider s of English tanguage nstruction
for adufts aud corporate of ents ai ound
tner won bt oper aung aver 450 contresin
28 counuries

Logo removed

Connecuons Academny offers 1 vanimy
of acredied vituat «chool apuiet sfor
stuaents in grades K-{7 m g US

Logo removed




Underpinning the effectiveness of each of these

four models, from design through to delivery, 1s the
Efficacy Framework, a tool we have devised to help
understand how our products or services can achieve
the best possible outcomes or results You can read
maore about our commitment to efficacy from page 14,
and online at efficacy pearson com

Like any business, we understand that there are
certain risks associated with each model Read more
about how we are managing and mitigating these

on pages 4i to 45

BUSINESS MODEL

Learning services

Image
removed

The tndividuat elements of our products, including
learning materials, that are increasingly digital in
nature and operattng as part of an integrated
tearning ecosystem

jncludes

erVizion™MATH s desgned for students
in grades K-6 and sechs ro hefp strdents
develop on understandmg of maths
concepts through problem-based
mstnicnen smalt group imeracton

and viseal lewring wnth a focus on
reasamng and modefling

Image
removed

Mylal & Mastering 1s the world sleading
colleztion of onling homewoerk tutarial
?nd as5eLEMEnt progucts Creates
personalised 2nd conunuously adastve
fearning experientes

Mylab &
Mastering

Speakout s an award-winnmng English
course for adulis used around the warld
in partnership wiih the BEC iy ncludes
exerases small group waork audio
clips and vides chips from well-known
TV piogrammes

speakout

Secuon | Overview 07

Associates and joint ventures

We have a 47% stake in Penguin Random House,
the world's first truly global trade book publisher
Penguin Random House was formed on | july 2013,
upon the completion of an agreement between
Bertelsmann and Pearson to merge their respectve
trade publishing comparies, Random House and
Penguin Other associates and joint ventures
include Vedomost in Russia and a 50% stake in

The Economist Group

BUSINESS MODEL

Assessment

Image
removed

VWhere we provide services that enable an
Institution or system to measure and validate
learner progress towards relevant standards
or to cerufy competency

Includes

Pear.on YUE 1s the world’s teading
romputer based testing and assessmeny
business working witn o gamsations
of afl s17e5 102 create flewable cuttom-
budg 1s5essmerng sohunons and
delivering them i a secere and rekable
TeSTNg ¢Nvironme nt,

PEARSON VUE

BTEC vocavonal qualficavons are

LOQO recognised in more than B0 countries
femoved worldvade andin 2004/2012 over2m
learners registered for BTECs inchegiag
650 000 schoof students

We aeate deliver and process nate and
natienal acsessments mithe US In 2013
we administered nearly 50m online and
paper Losts

Graph removed
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We have a remarkable opportunity

to make animpact

on some of the biggest and toughest
challenges in education

Image removed




Secuon { Qverview 09

Pearson’s strategy: John Fallon, Chief executive

johnFation Chief executive of Pearson

By accelerating the
transformation of Pearson
we become more
confident of our ability

to seize that oncein a
generation opportunity

— to become directly
accountable for helping
people make progress in
their lives through learning.

Dear shareholders,

Lastyear, in my first letter to you as Pearson’s
chief executive, I wrote about the establishment
of a clear Pearson educauon strategy and (s
accelerated implementation That acceleration -
the transformation of the company —is now well
underway Twelve months on, | am convinced that
we started it not a moment too soon, and that the
changes we need to make must go deeper; and
happen faster, than [ originally envisaged

The global opportunicy

The long-term opporturaty in global educationis
greater than ever Last year. the QECD reported

that poor math and hteracy skills imit access to
better-paying and more-rewarding jobs People who
are strong in these skills are not just weaithier and live
heatthier hves, they are also more actively engaged in
public ife Nelson Mandeia was night education really
1s the most powerful weapon with which to change
the world

As rapid advances in technology conunue to disrupt
the world of work, the economic value of education
and skills will continue to merease Governments
spend trihons of dollars per year on education and
training, and, each year, the stilf rapidly growing middle
class invests more of 1ts own increasing wealth i the
education of themselves and their children And yet,
the world fals to meet the learning needs of far too
many of our fellow citizens One in five adults 1n today's
world st fack the written communication skaills they
need to progress in life, 57 mik:on children remain out
of school, and many muflions more are i education, but
not really learming anything very much at all

Pearson has a umque set of advantages with which to
help meet this global demand for better education and
skilfs. in part by applying technology to help tangibly
improve learning outcomes And, by being better able
to meet some of the biggest challenges in global
educanon, we can buid a stronger, meore profitable
and faster growing company
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Pearson’s strategy John Fallon, Chief executive

continued

The transformation of our company

To setze this opportumity, we need to accelerate our

shift from mature to developing markets, from print to

digital products and from education inputs {0 services
with demonstrable learming outcomes For much of

the fast decade, we've been implementing this strategy

by reshaping the company portfolio through
acquisitions and disposals — and we continued this
worlk last year We completed the Penguin Random
House merger, securing both Penguin s commercral
and creative Tuture and the opportunity for significant
economies of scale We sold Mergermarket in
February 2014, which has flourished under Pearson’s
ownership, but was not part of our strategy i global
educarion The sale proceeds helped us to finance the
acquisition of Grupo Multi, the leading adult English
fanguage training company in Brazil It fits very well
with our strategy of nvesting more n {aster growing
economies and n digital and related services that can
have a greater and more measurable 1mpact on
education around the world

WE ARE TRANSFORMING FASTER

Qur revenues in emerging markets
and services

$1,302m

£819 £3,020m

Qur revenues in digital products

$4,72/m

More urgently, the strategy now demands that we
run the company in a fundamentally different way, too
Early last year, we started the biggest restructuring

mn the company s recent hustory, to ult us towards our
biggest growth opportunities, and by measuring
everything we do in terms of impact i improwving
learning outcomes

This is what we are doing

Redirecting more of cur operating expenses
1 and our aorganic investment, more quickly
1O OUr MOSt pramising opportunities

We need fewer people, and resources, deployed

in the publishuing, productron and manufacturing of
textboaoks and their phystcal distribution, sales and
marketing We need less print-based testing capacity,
as we consohdate our operatons znd move more
towards online testing By spending much less on
these activities as demand falls (for exampie, US
Higher Education textbook volumes have declined
by more than 20% i four years), we can invest much
more in our biggest growth opportutittes (for
example, MylLab dgital registrations and our sales

i emerging markets have both doubled over the
same period)

Qur revenues In pAnt vs
digital products and services

2013 revenues

003 2013

$471m

£235m £1,125m

2007 Image 2007
removed

$2,253m

Graph remaoved

Image
removead Print

Dngiral and
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o) Running Pearson as one globally
connected company

Cur operations are now entirely focused on our global
educatron strategy in which we include the FT Group
We have appointed a new executive team to lead it
We'd outgrown our orgamsation and, as a collectian of
relatively stand-alone companies, we were duplicating
investment and proliferating small-scale ininatives,
limiting our ability to build global scale We are now
organising around a smaller number of global products
and platforms, built around a single, world-class
infrastructure and common systems and processes
Thus will help us to grow more quickly, as it frees up
resources to mvest in our digitat transformation, and
the new, more service-criented, products that are vital
to future growth

3 Publicly commutting to efficacy and
improving learning outcomes

We will judge ourseives — and invite others to judge
us — not by the products that we make bt by their
wmpact on learners. This changes how we deade
which companies to acquire, where and how we
mvest, which products we get behind and which

WORKING AS ONE PEARSON

Global funcuons

Partner with geographies and lnes of
business operate as integrated global
funcuons to achieve scale economies

Lines of Bustness

Responsible for global siratepy, investment
priorities, product strategy and product
portfolio for respecuve bearner ‘age and stage

Geographves

Responsible for customer telationshups
sales and marketing, and delvery of
educauon products in theirr markets

Secuon | Overview E

we reure It changes how we recruit, train and reward
each and every person in this company |t will change
how we develop new products, unleashing, | belteve,
a new wave of innovatton and creatvity across the
company [t will be difficult to pull off, and 1t will take
tume That's why we specifically talk about the ‘path
to efficacy’ that we are on And itis why we have
committed to providing audited learning outcomes
data for all our products and services by 2018 But,

as detarled elsewhere i this report, we are making
some specific, and measurable, efficacy commitments
for this year

4 We are putting the learner at the heart
of everything we do

V¥e are putting the learner at the heart of everything
we do Our commitment to efficacy recogruses the
fact that, whilst our customer s often a teacher, an
nstitution, an education authority, a parent, or 3
company, the real beneficary of our worl —and of
our customers’ work —is always the learner

Qur purpose as a company —and, ulumately, the true
measure of our success — s whether we really do help
to equip more people with the education and skills
they need to progress in their lives

Graph removed

MIIAYIAOD

|
|

AINVIWYO4¥3Id ¥NO

SSANISHE F1EISNOJISTY |

AINVYNYIACT

|
i
i

SANINILYLS TIVIDNY NI




~

~

~

12 Pearson pic Annual report and accounts 2013

Pearson's strategy- John Fallon, Chief executive

continued

A necessary transiton

This 15 changing the way that every person in the
company works At tmes, 1tis proving difficutt and
disruptive. In the short term. it 1s made more pamful,
but all the more necessary, by the fact that we are
batthng against a number of cyclical, policy-related
structural and operational headwinds These ied to

a sharp decline mn earnings and free cash flow last year
and will conunue to make life difficult for us in 2014

The creanon of Penguin Random House s a major
portfolio change, which creates economic value for
Pearson, but the move to assoGiate accounting
reduces our reported operaung profitin 2013

and 2014

Our US college business, our biggest and most
profitable acuvity, 1s highly counter-cyclical, as
enroiments grow strongly during a recession, when
jobs are harder to come by, and then fall back in the
early years of economic recovery

Our two big assessment and qualifications businesses,
i the US and the UK, are seeing demand fall in the
short term due to changes in government policy,
which will open up new, and bigger, opportunities

as these changes are implemented

UMIQUE MARKET POSITION

The transformation of our company 1s fundamental to
get ahead of the significant structural changes takng
place in education — chiefly the digital shift, in which
Pearson s playing a leading role [t means that we are
now it a much more intensive phase of investment at
the same tme as we are finanang the one-off costs of
the biggest restructuring i Pearson’s recent history
We are investing much more, both in bullding the
technology and related infrastructure, and in the next
generation of products and services, that are vital 1o
making the most of that globat education opportunity

We make this investment with confidence as we
continue to grow strongly i emerging markets and
with our digital and service-related products In future
years, thvesting in these new growth areas will be
financed by cutting back in the print-led related areas

t outhned earlier But, first, we face significant one-off
costs, both in 2013 and agan in 2014, 10 achieve this

Graph remaoved




An ever mare purposeful, and faster growing, company

VWe have a for of work ahead of us, but when |

wirite again in 12 months we will have completed

our second year of sigmficant restructurmg and
reorganisatton We will be reaping the rewards of
significant Investment, and we will start to see the
benefits of a more favourable tradimg environment
as those headwinds, over time, begmn to ease and the
operavonal risks recede

By accelerating the transformatton of Pearson,

we are ensuring that we shorten this transitional
period —and that we get the company growing in a
more profitable and sustainable manner, as quickly
as we can Aswe do so, we open up, for Pearson,
bigger growth apportunities, a farger addressable
market and a greater impact on learning outcomes

We become more confident of our ability to setze that
once-in-a-generaton opportunity - to become
directly accountable for helping people make progress
in their lives through learning We see the chance for
Pearson ta be the stand-out company in education,
which 1s now emerging as one of the new global
growth industrees

Secuon | Overvew 3

I thanic all my colteagues for all their hard work and
commutment, including all our former colleagues, who
have served the company with such disunction P'm
50rTY to see many good cofleagues leave the company
as a result of our restructuring and | wish them every
success m thew future careers | also thank all our
shareholders for their support and pauence through
this short, sharp transition

I'm determined to ensure that it is rewarded, as soon
as possible, by bullding a leaner, more cash generative
and faster growing business — and one ever more
equipped to tackle some of the biggest and most
intractable problems i global educauon

John Failon Chief executive
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Pearson’s commitment to efficacy

In November 2013,
Pearson announced a new
commitment to report

on learning outcomes
across its product portfolio

from 2018. This new and
transparent approach

to efficacy is central to our
purpose to help people
make progress in their
lives through learning.

We want Pearson's customers to be confident that
working with us will help them to achieve their long-
term learning goals and enable them to make progress
in their lives

In November 2013, Pearson announced a new
COMMEtMent to report on learning outcomes across
its product portfohio from 2018 We also published
The incomplete Guide to Delivering Learming Outcomes,
sharing the actions we have taken over the last two
years to prepare our company to meet this unique
challenge and demonstrate the efficacy of

our products

This new and transparent approach to efficacy s
central to our purpose and also makes good business
sense We hope that by demonstrating the evidence
base that supports our products we widl encourage

a deeper engagement with [earming outcomas across
the education sector and at the same ume clearly
demonstrate the benefits of using those products

We are now defining the practical approach that we
will take to reporung publicly on learning outcomes
in 2018, and how we will demonstrate and report
on our progress along the ‘Path to Efficacy’

Below, we summarise our work to date and share our
priorities for 2014 Our approach will continue to be

refined i the corming years as we work towards our (
goal, and we will consult upon it within and outside

of Pearson through 2014 and beyond Our vision is

that by 2018, we will report on learning cutcomes

alongside our financial results

We welcome comments, feedback and support
as we take our nextsteps Please emadl our
sentor vice-prestdent of efficacy, Saad Rizvi
saad nizvi@pearson com with any questions

or comments that you may have

Pearson’s Efficacy Framework and Review Process

Pearson has developed an Efficacy Framework to

support our product development and managemant

reams to define measurable learning outcomes for

Pearson products and services, and progressively

to improve the hikefthood of achieving them (

The Framework is a wol of systemauc discovery that
helps us to ask key quesuons about our soluuons,
and evaluate the likelihood that they will deliver their
intended learner outcomes

A standardised Efficacy Review process accompantes
the Framework to ensure 1ts wide and consistent use
across the organisation More detait on the
Frameworlk, review process and scoring system can
be found at efficacy pearson com




THE EFEICACY FRAMEWORK

Secuon [ Overview

Graph removed

How it works

Using thus Frameworic we assess

the potenual efficacy of a product o
programme aganst {2 enteria By giving
each criterra a raung on the four poim
scale {green to red} we gauge the likely
overall effectiveness of a product

The Framawork serves to idenufy specific
areas which, f improved, willincrease our
likebhood of intended impact Teanss are
able focus therr acuvity on talang these
steps before the product 15 assessed again

EMBEDDING THE EFFICACY FRAMEWORN

Our progress

r In 2012, we began using the Efficacy Framework to
review all nvestments above $3min value and in 2014
all mvestments above $Im will underge a review
Products and programmes are repeatedly reviewed over
time to ensure progress and improvements are being made

+ Pearson acquisibon opporiurities are | eviewed using the
Framework to evalvate the oppormunity to ymprave learning
outcomes through Pearson ownership

> We will now focus on securing the consistency with which
the Frameworlc1s apphed by clarifying cur defimuons and
expectations of research, efficacy and quality standards

Key stausucs at year end 2013

|23 33%

Reviews completed, Showed progress
including rine potential 1N repeat reviews
acquisittons and

[4 internal functions

Qur plans in 2014

r A standardised Pearson Product Lifecycle will be introduced.

~

w

~

~

~

ensuring that the principles which supporr greater efficacy
are embedded consistently in all new product Ivestments

We will increase the number of repeat Reviews on single
preducts and increase the percentage of products showing
an improved score between Reviews

Pearson s Lines of Business and Gecgrapnies will be
reviewed agamst Key Performance Indicator s which address
the implemematton of Pearson’s Efficacy Framework and
Review processes

At least 40 of our top products will have in place the detated
targers, measures and systems necessary to track jearner
outcomes over hime

All new product developments will have defined and
measurable learner outcomes

We will have atleast three products wiich are already in
a posttion to report on learning outcomes, covertng the
range of learner ages and stages
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Pearson's commitment to efficacy
continued

Towards reporung on outcomes

The Efficacy Framework and Review process ensures
that afl Pearson products and ptogrammes address
the factors that could affect the learning outcomes
that they are ulumately able to produce, ina
consistent way.

Scores on the Framework do not in themselves
represent evidence of tmpact Pearson’s ultimate goal
15 1o produce evidence of impact aganst defined
learming outcomes for all of our products

Evidence will take a varety of forms depending on
where a productis within its ifecycle Efficacy
evidence tends to be a longitudinal measure requiring
multiple measurements over the lifecycle of a product
The standard of evidence that s avafable will vary by
product according to the specific learning outcome
targets for that product and its maturity

We antcipate therefore, that the nature of evidence
will vary by product and time We will be transparent
about the standard for each of our products

TOWARDS REPORTING OUTCOMES
Qur plans in 2014

» We will investigate and consult on how best vo define pur
evidence standads, wot king with an independent partner

We will complete and share efficacy studies that
demonstrate jearner outcomes for several
producr categories

-

As we move towards 2018

-

We will be able to malke avadable mcreasing detald about
the standard of evidence that exsts for each of our
products, in support of its stated intended outcome, and
the esumated number of learners reached by that product
Qur goal 15 1o continually improve the standard of
evidence avattable

Executives will be measured on leat ner outcome-onenied
KPis, mcluding the quabty of ewdence available across thewr
product portfolics, along with financia retur ng

~

KPls will be updated and refined to include rargets which
capture Pearson's aggregated impact on agreed learrung
outcomes Areas addressed may include academuc quality,
employability fearner progression, access or afforgablity

-

improving outcomes, n partnership

By using the Efficacy Framework and commutting
to high standards of evidence, we will be better
able to anticipare and mitigate potential challenges
to our products’ efficacy, and to report back clear
evidence as to thewr success imimproving defined
fearning outcomes

We are acutely aware that our efficacy challenge 15 not
one we can meet alone We rely on guidance, support
and insights of our colleagues and partners across the
education commumty We see a significant opportunity
to work in collaboration to debate and address the
broad educational research gquestions that will mform
and improve our contribution to learming worldwide,
and drive continuous iImprovement across education

As part of our commitment to efficacy n November,
we brought together experts from mside and outside
of education to share their perspectives on the
opportunity ahead to improve learning outcomes
globally through the paper Asking More The Path to
Efficacy We also began a series of public engagements
on the topic of efficacy, bringing together experts in
dedicated events at the National Insutute of Education
i Singapore, and the MIT Media Lab in Boston

We also discussed the challenges around efficacy

at important global events such as the Education
World Forum in Londen and the World Economig
Forum in Davos




PROGRESS IN 201314

An Avalanche 1s Coming

Sir Michael Barber Szad Rzvi Katelyn
Daonnelly published with thinic tank IPPR,
this report explores the challenges and
opportunities for higher education nan
age of MOOCs, ifelong fearning and
students as consumers

Image
removed

www ipprorg/publicaton/55/10432/
an-avalanche-is-coming-tugher-
education-and-the-revoluton-ahead

Learning Metrics Task Force

Pearsan co-chan ed this Broolangs
Foundation initiative which sought input
from more than 1,700 mdviduals in 118
countrres to malke a series of
recommendations on improving learning
opportunaties and outcomes for children

image
removed

and young peaple worldwide

www brockings edu/research/
reports/2013/09/learming metrics-task-
force-unversal-tearning

A Rich Seam How New Pedagogies Find
Deep Leaining

Published m partnerstup with {TSE, MaRS
Discovery Districr and MNesta Professor
Michael Fultary and Mara Langworthy's
report asks how technology i schools s
changing the student-teacher relationship

image
removed

research pearson com

We will continue and extend this programme of
research, dizlogue and engagement in 2014 and
2015, worlung with partners to pursue and share
research outputs around eight key questions which
we believe will shape the effecuveness of education
in the future through our new Global Research
Funcuon This mcludes exploring educator quality
and pedagogy, system reform and the future role
of learning technologies and learning science 1n
IMproving oulcomes

Our research 1s now shared at research pearson com

Section | Overview

Alive in the Swamp

Professor Michael Fullan, Katelyn
Donnelly published with Nesta tius
report addresses the impact of digital
nnovaton m education

www nesta org uk/publications/alive-
swamp-assessing-digital-innovauons-
education

Asking More The Path te Efficacy

This pamphiet shares insights from some
of the wot id's leading education
practiioners and busimess peopla to
tughhght the urgent need for a global
focus on outcomes n education

efficacy pearson com

Image
removed

Image
removed
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Putting the IearnerJ

at the heart

of everything we do

image removed




Secuon 2 Our performance %

Our performance: 2013 financial overview

Image rermoved

Robin Freestone Chieffinancial officer of Pearson

In 2013, Pearson increased
sales by 2% in headline
terms to £5.2bn generating

adjusted operating profit
of £736m after net
restructuring charges.

Penguin Random House was reported post-tax
following completion of the transaction on 1 july 2013
and resulted in a £23m reducuon in the contribution
to operaung income with an equal benefit to our tax
charge We expensed £135m of net restructuring
charges during the year Adjusted operating profit
including the negative impact of Penguin Random
House associate accounting but excluding the
restructurmg charges was £87im

The headline growth rates were helped by both
currency movements and acquisiuons  Currency
maovements increased sales by £i9m (with a £50m
benefit primarily from a stronger dollar partly offset
by a £31m reduction from non-dolfar currency
deprecation relative to sterling, primarily in emerging
markets) but reduced operaung profits by £4m
(with an £8m benefit from a stronger dollar more
than offset by a £12m reduction from non-dotlar
currency depreciation) At constant exchange rates
(1 e stripping out the impact of those currency
movements}), our sales and adjusted operating
profit grew 2% and dechned 21%, respecuively

KEY FINANCEIAL GOALS

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed

Acquisitions contributed £119m 1o sales and £50m to
operating profits This includes integratton costs and
investments related to our newly-acquired companies,
which we expense Disposals and our exit from
Pearson in Practice reduced revenues by £49m but
boosted operating income by £23m. Associate
accounting anising from the Penguin Random House
transacuon reduced operating income by £23m

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes the
Penguin Random House transaction, net restructuring
costs and benefit and currency movements, revenues
grew by 1% underlying while adjusted operating profit
declined by 9%

Qur tax rate tn 2013 was 4 6% compared to 23 1%
n 2012 reflecting the associate accounung impact
from Pengumn Random House and movements in
tax settlements in each year

Adjusted earnings per share before the impact of
net restructuring charges were 83 4p (2012 82 ép)
Total adjusted earnings per share after net
restructuring charges were 70 tp
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Our performance 2013 financial overview
continued

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow dechined by £200m
reflecting restructuring and increased investment in
new education programmes Free cash flow declined
by £388m o £269m, addimonally reflecting higher tax
payments Our average working capial to sales ratio
improved by a further O 4 percentage pomnts to [3 4%,
helped by lower inventory levels and the absence of
Penguim m the second half of the year

Return on invested capital

Our return on average invested capital was 5 4%
(2012 9 1%} ROIC was affected by lower underlying
profit, restructuring costs and higher cash raxes

Statutory results

QOur statutory resuits show a decrease of £29m
operating profit to £458m, from £487min 2012,
reflecting the absence in 2013 of the £113m closure-
related costs for Pearson in Pracuce n 2012, lower
underlying profits and restructuring costs Basic
earnings per share increased to 66 6p in 2013, up from
38 7p m 2042, mainly due to the Penguin Random
House transaction

Balance sheet

Our net debt increased to £1.379m (£218mn 2012)
reflecting higher cash tax payments from settlements
and deferred payments from 2012 due to Hurricane
Sandy, iower cash conversion costs associated with
disposals, restructuring costs and increased pre-
publicanon mvestment Since 2000, Pearson’s net
debt/EBITDA rato has fallen from 3 9x to { 6x and
our interest cover has mereased from 3 Ix to 10.2x

Dividend

The board 15 proposing a dividend increase of 7% to

48 Op. subject 1o shareholder approval 2013 wilt be
Pearson's 22nd straight year of increasing cur dividend
above the rate of inflaion Over the past 10 years we
have increased our dividend at 2 compound annual rate
of 7%, returning more than £2 %bn ta shareholders
We have a progressive dividend policy we mtend to
build our dividend cover to around 2 Ox over the long
term, increasing our dvidend more in line with
earnings growth from then

Graph removed

Qutlook 2014

in 2G14, we wili contnue the major restructuring and
productnvestment programme, imtiated in 2013,
designed to accelerate Pearson's shift towards
significant growth opportuntties in digital, services and
fast-growing econormes We belteve this will provide
Pearson with a significantly larger market opportunity,
a sharper focus on the fastest-growing markets and
stronger financial returns

Thus restructuring comades with contnued structural,
cychcal and policy-refated pressures m some of our
fargest markets At this earfy stage in the year, we
expect to report adjusied earnings per share of
between 62p and 67p 1n 2014 This gundance
incorporates our expected trading environment,
restructuring activity and product investrment

This guidance also assumes current sterling exchange
rates aganst the dollar and key emerging

market currencies

The major factors behind our guidance are as follows,

Portfolio changes

The sale of Margermarket to BC Partners was
completed on 4 February 2014 and will reduce 2014
adjusted operating profit before central costs by
£28m This will be partly offset by a part-year
conuribunion from Grupo Mul, which will be difuted
by integrauon costs and the weakness of the Real
against sterhing

We expect the contribution te adjusted operating
profit from Penguin Random Haouse to be
approximately £20mlower in 2014 compared to the
£78m coneriburion in 2013 That reflects currency
movements, integration charges (which will be
concentrated m the first half of 2014) and an addiuonal
half-year of associate accounting




Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of iis sales in
the US A five cent move in the average £ § exchange
rate for the full year {which in 2013 was £1 $1 57) has
an impact of approsxamately 1 2p on adjusted earmings
per share The move from an average £/% exchange
rate of I 57 mn 2013 to the rate at the end of February
of | 67 will reduce operaung income by approximately
£30m i it conuinues for the full year Similarly, when
compared to 2013 average exchange rates, Sterling
has significantly appreciated against a range of non-
dotlar currencies, primarily in emerging markets

i current exchange rates for those markets persist
throughout 2014, that would reduce operating income
on our 2013 base business by a further £20m

Restructuring and mvestment programme

We will benefit from the absence of £176m of gross
restructuring charges expensed n 2013, which we
expect to generate £60m of incrementat cost savings
in 2014

Thesa benefits will be partly offset by an additional
net restructuring charge of approximately £50m

i 2014, primarily in North America and weighted
towards the first haif of the year. Our goal s to
complete our restructuring programme by the

end of 2314, returning to more normal annual tevels
of restructurg expenditure from 20(5

As previously anncunced, we expect addittonal
product investment of approximately £50m n 2014
in chgital, services and emerging markets to
accelerate growth

Trading conditions

We expect trading conditions to remain challenging
in 2044, reflecting

In North America, our largest market, we expect
college enrolments to dechne agam and some states
to defer assessment programmes as they transition
10 the Common Core State Standards Though we
expect the School pubhstung market to show some
improvement, we expect the benefits to be largely
offset by higher revenue deferrals and pre-publication
amortisation We expect margins to be lower in 2014
when compared to 2013, reflecting the above organic
outlook, revenue mix, launch costs for major mulu-
year service-based contracts, tugher amorusation
and new product development expenditure

Section 2 Our performance 21

In our Core markets {which include the UK and
Austraha), we see tough trading conditions 1n the
UK as curniculum change affects school, vocational
publishing and assessments, market stabifisation in
Austraha, and a new adoption year in {taly

1n our Growth markets {which include Brazd, China,
India and South Africa), we expect continued growth
in China with Brazil benefitting from a better year in
public sistemas and a part-year contnibution from
Grupo Mult We expect a slower year in South Africa
after strong gains in 2013

Looking at our global Lines of Business, we expect
School and Higher Education to remain challenging,
especially in our two largest markets North
Amenica and the UK In Professional, we expect
continued good growth in Pearson VUE and English
with the Financial Times conttnuing to benefit from
its digital transiuon

Interase and tax

We expect our interest charge to be similar 1o 2013
reflecting higher floating rates broadly offset by a
weaker dollar agamst sterling We expecta tax rate
of between {9% and 2{% on our total profit before
tax (which inciudes the post-tax contribution from
Penguin Random House)

As Pearson's struciure has changed to better surg
our marketplace and aspiranions, so must our
financial reporung change In this year's annual
report, we discuss the progress made through
the lens of our existing financial reporung segments
{Morth American Education, International
Education, Professional and the Finanaal Times
Group) We will report our 2014 revenues and
operating profit against new segmeants that better
reflect the shape of our business, these will be by
Geography (MNorth America, Core and Growtiy)
and by Line of Busmess (School, Higher Education
and Professional)

We will make avattable historical 20143 half-year
and full-year revenues and operatng profit by
Line of Business and Geography in the second
quarter of 2014
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Creating personalised products and services

that meet learners’ neec

and deliver measurable results

Image removed




North American Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

North American
Education is Pearson’s

largest business, with
2013 sales of £2.8bn and
operating profit of £406m.

CASE STUDY

Onhine learning

We introduced adaptive learning capabihities in
over 200 MyLab and Mastering products across

I subjects Student registrations in North America
grew 9% to almost {1 mitkon Usage conunues

to grow strongly with graded submissions up

15% to almost 370 milion across the globe
Evaluation studies show that the use of Mylab
programmes, as part of a broader course redesign,

Total number of MyLab registracons

Section 2 Our performance 23
Sales Adjusted operating profit
063 £2779m 2083 £406m
2012 £2658m 2012 T £536m
Headine growth 5%  Headiine growth {24)%
CER growth 3'9?: CERgrowth (25)%
Underlyngg_growth_A ~_~-6§6“ Underlyinggrowth  {30)%

can significantly improve student test scores and
nstitutional efficiency (http //bit ly/ IderVim)

Ve acquired Learning Catalytics, which allows
faculty to obtain real-ume responses to open-ended
or critical thinking questions, to determing which
areas require further explanation, and enables
aarlier mtervention to help improve retention

and outcomes

99m

2012

[Im

2013

Image removed
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North American Education
continued

in 2013, we generated good growth in our digital and
services businesses, where we continue o imnvest to
build scale and volume and solid growth in our school
currtculum business, which benefited from Common
Core curriculum purchasing Market conditions
remamned tough, with ongoing state budget pressures
and the transition to the Commen Cere affecting our
School assessment business Lower enrolments
affected Higher Education with the career college
enrolments, where we have a strong market position,
being parucularly weak I addition to these market
pressures, our MNorth American margins were further
affected by £49m of net restructuring charges, reduced
demand in our assessment business as states prepared
for new Common Core testing and curriculum related
investment and amortisatton, the launch costs refated
to major mult-year service-based contracts in hugher
education, and Increased returns provisions

Higher Education highlights m 2013 include

In Higher Education, total enrolments fell | 9%, with
career enrolments in two-year public (community)
and four-year for-profit dechiming 4 4%, affected by
rising employment rates, state budget pressures
and regulatory chiange affecting the for-profit and
developmental learning sectors The publishwng
market was broadly level with 2012 on a gross basss,
according to the Association of American Publishers,
while our higher education revenues grew 5% wath
an underlying decline more than offset by the
contribution from Embanet

We partnered with West Virginia University
Parkersburg Onhne to redesign its Developmental
Education curriculum using Competency-Basad
Education (CBE) modules Qur CourseConnect CBE
products will enhance up to 220 existng courses and
wilt be delivered through OpenClass where we will
also provide access to eTextbooks. tutoring and media
rescurces Other CBE partnerships indude Texas
A&M Unversity-Commerce South Texas College,
Kentucky Community & Technical College System
and Northern Arizona Uneversity

?

e

Lvd

School tughlights 1 2013 include
For our School businesses, state funding pressures, '
the Federal sequester and the transition to Commeon
Core assessments continued to make market
conditions tough Revenues grew modestly in 2013
with declines n state assessment contracts and
learning assessments more than offset by gains in
nauonal assessment contracts for the PARCC
consortium and the federal government’s NAEP
programme as well as demand for Connections
Education’s virtual charter schools and Common
Core reading/language arts and math programmes

Actionable data s critical to personahsing learning and
boosting achievement Our Schoolnet business aligns (
assessment, curriculum and other services to help
ndividualise nstruction and improve teacher

effectiveness PowerSchool helps teachers automate

and manage student attendance records, gradebooks

and tmetables

Schoolnet won significant contracts including two

new Race to the Top State Instriuctional Improvement
Sysrem contracts i New York and New Jersey, which
takes the total number of state system contracts to
seven, and new district contracts for Schoolnet
assessment, educator development and learning
management solutrons in Dallas, Texas, Palm Beach,
Fiorida, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and New York
City PowerSchool woin new contracts in Charfotte-
Mecklenberg, North Carolina, Grand Ene DSB,
Ontario, and San Diego Califormia Its mobsle app
connecting teachers, students and parents was (
downloaded by almost 3 4 million users PowerSchool
now supports almost 13 milkon students (in 70
courrries), up more than 5% on 2012 while Schoolnet
supports more than nine millon students, up 7%

on 2042




CASE STUDY

Section 2 Our performance 23

Image removed

Online learning

programmes

Enterpnse-wide partnerships with Arizona State
Unwersity Online, Ocean Community College,
Indiana Wesleyan Urniversity and Rutgers, where
we run fully online learning programmes and earn
revenues based on the success of the students and
the mstituuon, gained more than 64,000 student
registrauons, up 45% on 2012 In January 2014,

we extended our parinership with the University
of Forida to include both its graduate and under
graduate programmes providing technology,
e-Textbooks, recrutment marketing, enrolment
management, student support and retention services

Pearson Embanet increased new student enrolments
by 8% to almost {2,000 and total student enrolment
by 6 5% to more than 27,000, adding [6 new
pragrammes, launching three new key acadermic
partners with Adelphi University, Villanova University
and University of Maryland, and expanding
partnerships with exisuing customers such as
Maryville and Northeastern More than 200 colleges
are working with Pearson to build online fearning
programmes thatimprove access to high quality
undergraduate and graduate degree programmes
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North American Educaton
continued

The Partnershup for Assessment of Readiness for
College and Careers (PARCC)}. a consortium of

1B states, awarded Pearson several contracts to deliver
test tem tryouts, develop field tests and to provide
the onltne delivery platform using our cloud-based,
mobife-ready TestNav 8 system for new English and
mathematics assessments The assessments will be
based on what students need to be ready for college
and careers, and will measure and track their progress
along the way We helped Kentucky and New Yark
dehiver the first Common Core aligned state
assessments, and we won new online assessment
pragrammes in Colorado, Mmnesota and Mississippt
We continued to produce strong growth in secure
enline testing We delivered almost |2 million secure
online tests, up 33% on 2012 Legistative changes in
Texas and California reduced the scope of assessments
ahead of Common Core implementation

We renewed our contract with the US Department
of Education to admiruster the National Assessment
of Educancnal Progress (NAEP) for the 2013-2017
assessment cycles and won a number of state contract
extensions in Georgta, Puerto Rico, Tennessee,
Maryland, Arzona, South Drakota and Okiahoma
We were selected by the Mauonal Board of
Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) as therr
partner to develop ther next-generaton
programmes, and deliver and support NBPTS
through 2025

CASE STUDY

Mental health
administration

Pearson Chrnical Assessment launched Q-interaciive,
a portable digizal tool that enables mental health
professionals to autematically manage the
admimistration of clinical assessments, digital sumud,
response recording through stylus notes and audia
it serves 1,500 users within hospitals, private
practice and schools in five countries (US, UK,
Awustralia, Canada and Netherlands} Pad test
admunistrations have mcreased ten-fold since taunch

» ACT Aspire, a cotlege and career readiness assessment
ahgned to the Common Core State Standards,
successfully faunched its first field test on the new
TestMNav B assessment system ACT Aspire 1s a joint
venture between Pearson and ACT, Inc Alabama s
the first state te adopt the ACT Aspire system for
measuring the Common Core State Standards

Connections Educaton, which operates K-12 managed
virtual public schools, managed blended public schoals
and a private school, served almost 51,000 students in
December 2013, up more than 20% from 2012, and
now aperates 33 managed public schools in 23 states
and an mnternational private virtual school
Connections Education also prowides virtual and
blended services to schoot districts and other schools
seelang to incorporate virtual learning mito thew
programmes Connections Academy Schools have
consistently bugh performance ratings, particufarfy in
states focused on measuring growth n student learning

~
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Learning

Services

in Learning Services, we performed well in new
adoptions, taking a market leading 33% of the total
new adopuon market ($390m), with #1 positions in
maths, sctrence and social studies and a #2 position in
Reading/Language Arts We were selected by the
two largest schoot districts in the US| Los Angeles
Urified School District and New York City, 1o
imptement Common Core mstructional
programmes Mew York City adopted our new K-5
Common Core English Language Arts programme,
Ready Gen, and our middle school math offering,
Connected Math In Los Angeles Umified School
Dustrict, we partnered with Apple to dehiver our

innovatve next generation digital learning Commeon
Core System of Courses across K-12 Mathernatics
and Enghsh Language Arts, mitially to 30,000
students In both districts, we are providing
professional development to thousands of

teachers Learners using our OnRamp to Algebra
supplemental programme, which targets strugghng
maths students, significantly out-gained peers using
other supplemental maths programmes, achieving
20% mcrease in their percentile rank while thewr
peers ncreased by only 3% In addwion, students of
all ability fevels using OnRamp to Algebra exceeded
the gans of their peers
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International Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

: H Sat Ad d fi
Our International Education == lusied operaung profi
) . 013 £1539m 2013 £i40m
business achieved 201 fl5e6m 7012 (2iem
another strong underlying =~ todogows | 0 Hedioegown (5%
f . . CERgiowth %  CERgrowth 2N%
per Ormance In €me rgl ng Underlying growth 1% Underlyinggrowih  (30)%
markets, particularly in
South Africa and China.
CASE STUDY
China
In China, student enrolments at Wall Street Enghsh franchised fearning centres with investment in
increased 7% to 65,000, boosted by good underlying learning centres and digital learning platforms
demand Cur students rapudly acquire high-tevel enabling us to better meet tearner demands and be

English skalls with average grade levels achieved rising & premier brand i3 test preparation Around 70%
by 2 during 2013 Enrolments at Global Educaton, of the high-end course students achieve IELTS 70
our test preparation services for English language whuch demonstrates a high level of proficency m
and vocatonai qualifications, increased 24% to more Enghsh and a key grade when studying abroad.
than t 3 million, through 82 owned and 426

Wall Street English student enrolments i Chuna

65,000

2013

61,000

2012

image removed
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Our International education business achieved another
strong underlying performance in emerging markets,
parucularly in South Africa and China This growth was
offset by weak textbook sales in developed markets,
currency weakness agamst sterling, the exit from
certam publishing businesses primarily 1 Australia,
fapan, Germany, France and the UK, increased
customisation resulting from the Kirtsaeng ruling in

the US, and policy changes affectng qualifications

and textbook publishing in the UK Although margins
before restructuring charges were simifar to 2012,
reported margins fell due to £69m of net restructuring
charges expensed during the year More than

I 3 mihon students registered for our MyLab digital
learning, homework and assessment programmes,

an ncrease of 17%, with good growth in school,

ELT and institunional selling in higher education

Key highlights in 2013 nclude

» Qur Growth market revenues expanded strongly,
boosted by curriculum change in South Africa, strong
enrolment growth at CTI/MG!, and continued good
growth n China, partly offset by weaker currencies
against sterling, particularly in South Africa and
enrolment decines in our public sistemas in Brazil

» In Mexuco, our fully accredited online uriversity
partnership, UTEL, reached 6,000 active studentsn
20 undergraduate and two graduate programmes and
through its services arm, Scala, signed us first three
agreements to help campus-based umversities make
the transition to online 5400 students have
completed short duration courses in programmes
developed to address corporate and government
workforce tramning needs

in the Middle East, we won a five-year contract with
the UAE’s Ministry of Educavon to provide leadersiup
training and professional development for 700 current
and future Emiratt school prineypals, in partnership
with the UICs National College for Teaching and
Leadership We partnered with Taibah University in
Saudi Arabia to implement Foundation Level
MylabsPius across four subjects for 16,000 students,
Riyadh's Princess Noura University in Saudr Aratna,
the world’s largest female university, to provide
12,000 new students with {T course content {through
our MyLabs e-learning technology) for tablets, and
Qatar University to implement Myl absPhus for

5.000 students

~
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Image removed

I South 1
Adrica

fn South Africa our market leading school
publishing brands Maskew Miller Longman and
Hememann, performed strongly in a year of
significant curriculum reform Student enrolments
grew strongly at CTI/MGL. our universiues, up 15%
to 11,700 across 13 campuses

» Qur Core market revenues dechined significantly,
affected by curriculum change in the UK and the exit
from publishing operauons in Australia, Japan and
Continental Europe

~

[n the UK, revenues dechned due to a softer school
curriculum and vocational qualificanons (BTEC)
market antiapatng curriculum change This was partly
offset by a strong performance in the GCSE and A/AS
level qualifications market In higher educauon, we
partnered with Leeds Metropolitan University to
develop a suite of onlne learning business education
courses In assessment, we marked almost six mithian
GCSE A/AS Level and other examinations with more
than 93% usmg onscreen technology Ve marked

2 7 milhon test scnipts for over half a milion pupils
taking Nawvonal Curnicufum Tests ar Key Stage Two

in 20{3 and were selected to administer the test untl
2016 2013 also saw the first delivery of the Next
generavon BTEC quahficauons to over 100,000
students with a further 365,000 students 1o date
enrolled for 2044715 delvery
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International Education
continued

In Italy, revenues declined, with market conditions
tough due to a one-year government mandated pause
in new adoptions

In Japan, GlobalEnghsh and the FT partnered with
MNikke: inc on a ‘GlobalEnglish Nikket edinon’, an
English tanguage fearming service to serve English
students in the japanese business community Ve sold
our school textbook publishing business Kirthara
Shoten, to management

In Australia, market conditions were very tough,
parucularly in higher education where we exited the
vocauonal pubhshing market ‘We continue to make
good progress developing our digital and services
business including significant sales of Secondary School
Awustralan Curnicuium ebooks In higher education,
we partnered with Monash University with an
enterprise implementation of the Mylab suite of
products for 6,500 students inctuding faculty training,
and to provide [earming services and sotutions for
online graduate programines ncluding course
development, marketing, student recruitment and
retention, and faculty traimng

CASE LTUDY

Brazil

in Brazil, we ended 2013 with 497,000 students
(533,000 1n 2012) in our public and private sistemas
{or tearning systems) [n 2013, we added 24,000 net
students n our three private sistemas, COC, Dom
Bosco and Puert Domus, up 7% on 2012 Tough
market conditions for public sistemas resulted in
lower enrolments i this post-election year but our
NAME sistema includes the #1 performing lower
secondary school in Brazil based on the 2011 [DEB
(natonal public test) scores of 3,067 municipalies
90% of our muniaipal custorners tested 20% above
the nanonal standard and 70% of the municipalities
that adopted NAME showed improvement in their
IDEB scores On i February 2014 we completed
the acquisition of Grupo Mul, the largest provider
of private language schools in Brazil serving over
800,000 students across more than 2,600
franctused schools

» in English Language Learring, Wall Street Enghsh
(WSE), Pearson's worldwtde chain of English language
centres for professionals, opened a new centre in
Ho Chi Minh City in Vietnam (and 1s now present in
28 countries), and has 107 owned and 338 franchised
centres Cur students rapidly acquire bngh-level
Enghsh skills with average grade levels achieved vising
by 8% during 2013 Student numbers grew shightly to
192,000 Registered users for ELL digital products
grew 45% to 610,000 with MyEnghshLabs registrations
up 5% 1o 400,000 and Our Discovery {sland
registrations, an onhne adventure aimed at Primary
education, up almost 77% 1o 104,000

Image removed
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Professional Education

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our Professional Education S;’m T
business is focused on 2002 £390m 2012 £37m
publishing, training, Meadinogrowt K Hewdinegrown 54X
. . . CER growth 4%  CERgrowth 51%
teStlng a’nd certlﬁca‘tion Underlying growth B%‘ Undertying ;1 owth {7)%

for professionals.

Cur Professional Education business 1s focused on CASE STLDY

MILAYIAC ’

|
|

publishing, traming, testing and certfication for
professionals The Professional division performed
well, with good revenue and profit growth in testing
and traming partly offset by declines in publishing
Key tughlights in 2013 include image removed
» Professional pubhishing revenues and profies decknad,
with good profit growth i the US, underpinned by a
strong performance in our direct ecammerce sales and
at Safari Books Ginline, our jomni-venture with O'Redly

FONVRYOSHEd YNO

Mediz, offset by exiting some of our professional
publishing businesses in Continental Eurcpe

Vocational training in

Saudi Arabia

In Professional traming, TQ grew strongly and was
awarded a five-year contract by Saudi Arabia’s
Colleges of Excellence to develop and operate
three vocational colleges in Saudi Arabia providing
high quality vocauonal skills and qualifications

The three colleges opened in the second half of 2013
with an expected wutal intake of 1,100 students,
rising to 8,000 swdents over ime

» Professional testing continued to see good revenue
and profit growth test vofumes at Pearson VUE up 25%
on 2012 to almost 12 million Key contract renewals
included tests for the American Board of internal
Medicine, the Assouation of Social Worl Boards and
the Pharmacy Techmician Certification Board We will
continue to deliver our UK contract to admunister the
Driving Theory test for the DVSA untf September
2016 We won 2 number of new contracts for
computer-based testing including the Charter of
Fimancial Analysts, Saudr Cornmussion of Health
Specialties and the Korean Productvity Centre
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Financial Times Group

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Financial Times Group
achieved profits of £55m,
an underlying increase of
|'7% year-on-year.

CASE sTUDY

Growth in digitai readership

The FT's total arculation grew 8% year-on-year to
652,000 across print and onhine, the highest paying
readershup i its {25-year tustory FT com digitat
subscriptions grew 31% ta 415,000, more than
offsetting plannea reductions in print airculation
Dugieal subscribers now represent almost two-thirds

Financiaf Tirnes digital subscriprions

image removed

Safes Adjusted operating profit
2043 £449m 2043 £55m
2012 @m0 £47m
Headlir e growth !;o- [:i—ea_dlme growth 7%
CER growth 0% _EE.E’_\gV!:-O;;i;‘ T 17%
Underlying growth 0%  Underlying growth 7%

of the FT's total paying audience and corporate

users grew nearly 60% to more than 260,000
We continue to invest to shuft resources from

analogue to digital and have further reduced leased
printing capacsty globally since 31 December 2012
from 20 to 16 sites

415,000

316,000

2042

2013

image removed
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The Financial Times Group achieved profits of £55m an
underlying increase of 7% year-on-year This was driven
by strong growth in digieal and content businesses and
improved print circulation margins which more than
offset weak adverusing Digital and services revenues
accounted for 55% of FT Group revenues (31% in 2008)
Content revenues comprised 63% of revenues (48% in
2008), while adverusing accounted for 37% of FT Group
revenues (52% mn 2008)

Key highlights i 2013 include

Advertising continued to be short term and generally
weak but the FT increased sts market share with
luxury and financial sectors showing good growth

i3 digital

Maobile i1s an increasingly important channel for the

FT, driving 62% of subscriber consumpuion, 45%

of total traffic and almost a quarter of new digital
subscripions The FT's flagshup web app now has
more than 5 milion users and new FT apps on Google
Newsstand and Fhpboard have strengthened our
mobile offering Other mnovations, nduding launching
24-hour news service fastFT, redesigns to mobile apps
and improvements to FT com, have helped
significanty increase overall digital engagement

The Economist Group in which Pearson owns a
50% stake, had a record operaung profit after tax,
up 3% on 2012 Content revenues accounted for
60% of total revenues (44% in 2008} and digital and
services revenues comprised 39% of total revenues
(29% n 2010} Global print and digital circulation at
The Econarmust reached a record hugh of 1.6 muflion

On 4 February 2014 we completed the dispasal of
Mergermariet to BC Partners for £382m, payable n
cash In 2013, Mergermarket contnbuted £108m of
revenue and £28m of adjusted operaung profit before
central costs

Secuon 2 Our performance 33
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Image removed

Executive I

education

The FT conunues to expand its executive
education business FT in Education products,
including annotation tool FT Newshines, are
now used by almost 300 education institutions,
including 37 of the world's top 50 business
schools The FT launched its Non-Executive
Director (NED) Diploma in Hong Kong

More than a thurd of NED enrolments are

now outside the UK
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Penguin Random House

The merger of Penguin and Random
House was completed on | July 2013.
Bertelsmann owns 53% and Pearson owns
47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer publishing company.

image remocved

/

Penguin Random House traded well in the second
half of the year, with a strong bestseller performance
in all major ternitories Penguin Random House was

reported post-tax following completion of the merger

on | July 2013 and resulted in a £23m reduction in the
contributton to our operating ncome with an equal
benefit to our tax charge Market share normahsed,
following the unprecedented success of E L fames

50 Shades of Grey trilogy for Random House in 2012

The integration of the two comparses has commenced

tin each of its territories Divisional structures are
being combined, systems integration 1s underway,
and the US business has announced a planto
consahidate distribution operations

Key highlights 1n 2013 include

In Australia, where market, conditions remain
challenging, we had four out of the top five bestsellers
for the year [eff Kinney's Hard Luck Diary of a Wimpy
Kid, Jamie Cliver's Jormie’s 15 Minute Meals and Save
with jarnie, and Dan Brown's Infeino

in Brazl. Companhia das Letras {(45% stake} posted
strong revenue growth driven by an expanded
pubhstuag program In a challenging market, Penguin
Random House India had more than 440 titles pro
forma on the 2013 Hindustan Times Meelsen top ten in
combined categories tn Ching, our focal-publishing
programime continued to grow with natable
bestsellers, including My Life by Li Na D achieved
significant growth through its co-edition model with
Chinese publishers 1n South Africa, Pengum Random
House completed the purchase of the Times Media
Group’'s majortty stake in Random House Struik,
cementing our mai ket leading position, but lost a
sigrificant agency contract during the year

» DK performed well, boosted by the exceptional
performance of Brady Games? GTA V Serategy
Guide™ which sold over 800,000 capies, and the (
ongoing success of the DK LEGO* properues, which
sold almost 10 mitlion units in 2043

> The pro forma eboolk share of Penguin Random House
global revenue 1s 20% Ebook growth for Pengun
conunued but at a slower rate, while Random House
ebook sales declined sigmificantly year-on-year due
to much fower sales for the Fifty Shades triogy
Digreal mnovations indluded the faunch of Bookscout,
a dedicated app created for and with Facebook which
enables sharing personahised reading recomimendations
among friends and online communittes

- Penguin Random House's authors won nuimerous
majar hterary prizes around the world, ncluding the
2013 Nobel Prize for Literature {Alice Munro), The
MNational Book Award for Fiction i the US (James
McBride's The Good Lord Bird), and an unprecedented (
four US Pulitzer Prizes

» In self-publishing, Author Solunions performed well,
growing sigrificantly over 2012, and conunutng to
launch and plan for self-publisting imprints n
conjunction with Pengum i such territortes as india
and South Africa

> For 2014, Penguin Random House has a strong
pubhshing st with major new books from authors such
as tsabel Allende, Marun Amus, Lee Child, John
Cleese, Harlan Coben, Steve Coogan, Lena Dunham,
Janet BEvanovich, Ken Follett, Stephen Fry, Robert
Gates, ina Garten, John Grisham, Deborah Harkness,
Carl Hiaasen, Jan Karon, Sue Monk Kidd, Jeff Kinnay,
Michael Lewts, David Mitchell, Haruka Murakam Jarmie
Ohiver, James Patterson, Jodi Picoult, Nora Roberts,
Danielte Steel. Colm Toibin, Jacqueline Wilson, and
movte Le-in paperbacks of john Green’s The Fault in
Our Stars, Gilhan Flyna's Gone Gitl, and Laura
Hiflenbrand's Unbroken
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Bestsellers in2013

in the UK, on a pro forma basis, Penguin and Random
House published 102 Bookscan bestsellers including
Dan Brown's infeino, David ason’s My Life, famie
Ohver's Save with Janie, Rachet joyce's The Unlikely
Pilgnimage of Harold Fry, Helen Frelding’s Bridget Jones
Maod About the Boy, and a strong ongoing overall
performance from jeff Kinney's Diary of ¢ Wirnpy Kid
series, and from its newest volume Hard Luck

in the US, on a pro forma basis, Penguin and Random
House published 480 New York Times bestsellers,
including three out of the 1op five Bookscan adult
ficuon bestsellers for the year Dan Brown'’s Inferno,
John Grisham's Sycamore Row and Khaled Hosseinr's
And The Mountains Echoed Other New York Times
bestsellers included, m adult nonficton Sheryl
Sandberg's Lean in, Charles Krauthammer's Things
That Matter, and iy children's fiction John Green's

#1 bestselling The Fault in Our Stars
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More and more people want

a better education

and new ways of learning
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Other financial information

i3 2012
im £fm

MNet finance costs
Net interest payable {(72) {65)
Finance income n respect
of employee benefit plans (3) {2)
Other net finance costs 6] {29)
Total net finance costs (76) (96)

Net interest payable m 2013 was £72m, up from £65m
in 2012 Although our fixed rate policy reduces the
impact of changes in market interest rates, we were
stll able to benefit from low average US dollar and
sterling interest rates during the year Year-on-year,
average three month LIBOR (weighted for the
Group’s net borrowings in US dollars and sterling at
each year end) fefl by 0 2% to 0 3% This decrease in
floating market interest rates was offset by an increase
in the Group's average net debt which was the man
driver behind the Group’s hugher interest charge
These factors combined with lower levels of cash and
deposits and the impact of new notes 1ssued in 2043
created a decrease i the Group's average net interest
payable from 7.0% to 4 8% The Group s average net
debt rose by £561m, largely reflecung acquisiion
activity, cash costs relatng to the formation of Penguin
Random House (PRH) and cash paid in respect of the
closure of Pearson in Pracuce m 2012 together with an
increase i tax and dvidend payments which more
than offset cash generated from operations.

Cash generated from operations was lower in 2013
pardy as a result of restructuring activity in the year

Net finance costs relating to post-retirement plans
have been restated to reflect the adoption of [AS |9
{revised) and under the new standard was £3mn
2013 compared to £2m in 2012 Finance costs relating
to retirement benefits have been excluded from our
adjusted earmings as we beheve the new presentation
does not reflect the economic substance of the
underlying assets and liabilicies

Also included in the statutory definimon of net finance
costs are finance costs on put options and deferred
consideration assocated with acquisittons, foregn
exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs
for put options and deferred consideration are
excluded from adjusted earnings as they relate to
future earn outs and similar payments on acquisiions
and therefore do not reflect cash expended

Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are

Secuon 2 Our performance 37

excluded from adjusted earnings as they represent
short-term fluctuations in market value and are
subject to significant volathity These other gains and
losses may not be realised in due course asit1s
normally the ntention to hoid the related instrurents
to maturity In 2013, the total of these items excluded
from adjusted earmings was a loss of £1m compared to
aloss of £29m i 2012 The majonity of the loss in 2012
relates to movements in the valuation of put options
associated with acquisttions In 2013 losses relating to
put options were largely offset by foreign exchange
gains on a proporton of unhedged US dollar assets

Funding positon and hquid resources

The Group finances its aperations by a mixture of
cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings
from banks and commercial paper markets, and
longer-term loans from banks and capral markets
Our objective s 1o secure continuity of funding ata
reasonable cost from diverse sources and with varying
maturities The Group does not use off-balance sheet
special purpose entiues as a source of hquidity or for
any other financing purposes The net debt position

of the Group is set out below

i o
Cash and cash equivalents 729 1,062
Marke_table securities 6 6
Net dervative assets 76 178
Bonds (2168} (2.200
Bank loans and overdrafts 47} (55}
Fmance leases {H} n
Net debt — continuing (1.415)  (1.026)
Net cash classified as held for sale 36 108
Total net debt {F379) (518)

Acquisiton acuivity, cash costs relaung to the
formaton of PRH and cash paid 1n respect of the
closure of Pearsan in Practice in 2012 together with an
ncrease in tax and dividend paymenis and lower than
expecied cash generation in 2013 are the largest
contributors to the increase in the Group's net debt
Reflecung the geographical and currency spht of our
business, a iarge proportion of our debt s
denaminated m US dollars (see note 19 for our policy)
The strengthening of sterling against the US dollar
during 2013 (from $1 63 to $1 66 £1) decreases the
sterhing equivalent value of our reported net debt
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Other finanaial information
continued

The Group's credit ratings remained unchanged during
the year The long-term ratings are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the shori-term
ratings are P2 and AZ respectively In january 2014,
Moody's changed the outlook on thew short-term and
long-term rauings from “Stable to ‘Negative’ In May
2013, the Group accessed the capital markets, rasing
$500m through the sale of notes maturing in May 2023
and bearing interest at 3 25% The notes were
swapped to floating rate to conform with the policy
described innote {9 The Group has 2 $1,750m
commtted revolving credit facibty which matures in
November 2015 At 31 December 2013 this facility was
undrawn The facility is used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabiliues, including acting
as a back-up for our US commercial paper programme
This programme ts primariy used to finance our US
workng capttal requirements, 1n particular our US
educational businesses which have a peak borrowing
requirement s june At 31 December 2013, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
mamntamns other commutted and uncommutted facliues
to finance short-term working capital requirements in
the ordinary course of business Further details of the
Group's approach to the management of financal risks
are set out n note 19 to the financial statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adusted earmings m 2013
was 14 6% as compared to an effective rate of 23 1%
in 2012 The reduction in the rate 1s partly explained
by the assocate accounting treatment of our
investment in PRH —tax on the profits of PRH are
netted agamst profits in the presentatton of the
associate nterest and is not included i the tax ine
Our averseas profits, which artse mamly in the US, are
largely subject to tax at hugher rates than that in the
UK (which had an effective statutory rate of 23 25% in
2013 and 24 5% in 2012} Thase higher tax rates were
largely offset by amorusauon-related tax deducuons
and by adjstraents ansing from settlements with tax
authorities The reported tax charge on a statutory
basis was £87m {22 8%) compared to a charge of
£138m (35 3%) 0 2012 The decrease n the statutory
rate 1s due to the factors affecung the adjusted rate as
described above but is also exacerbated by the lack of
tax rehef in 2012 on the loss on closure of Pearson in
Practice Ta« paidin 2013 was £246m compared Lo
£65mn 2012 Tax paid in 2012 was unusually low as

a result of the permitted deferral of US tax payments
following Hurricane Sandy These payments were
subsequently mads in 2013 and were accompanted

by additional payments arising from settlements
with tax authonities including £55m relaung to prior
year disposals

Discontinued operations

In October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann
announced an agreement to ¢reate a new consumer
publishing business by combining Penguin and Random
House The transaction completed on | July 2013 and
resuited in a gain on the disposal of the Penguin assets
of £202m The gain arises as Pearson no longer has
control of the Penguin Group of companies The 47%
Interast i the new Penguin Random House (PRI}
venture has been accounted for as an equity
investment from | July 2013

The loss of control resulted in the Penguin business
being classifted as held for sale on the Pearson balance
sheet at 31 December 2012 and the results for both
2012 and the first six months of 2013 have been
included in discontinued operatons The share of profit
from assocate interest in the PRM venture arising m the
second half of the year has been included in operaung
profit in contintng operations net of tax of £23m

Addionally on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale on the Mergermarket Group to BC Parmers
The saie was completed on 4 February 2014 and the
Mergermarket business has been classified as held for
sale on the balance sheet at 31 December 2013

The resufts for both 2012 and 2013 have been included
i discontinued operatons.

Non-controlling mterest

There are non-controlling interests in the Group’s
businesses in the US, South Africa and China although
none of these are material to the Group numbers
Some of the minorities in South Africa and the
minorities m india were bought out mn the year

Other comprehensive income

ihcluded in other comprehensive ncome are the

net exchange differences on translavion of foresgn
operattons The net loss on transtation of £217m

i 2043 cornpares to a loss n 2012 of £238m and

15 principally due to movements i the US dolfar

A sigmificant proporton of the Group's operations

s based 1s the US and the US dollar weakened shightly
tn 2013 from an opening rate of £I ${ 63 to aclosing
rate at the end of 20{3 of £I $1 66 Atthe end of 2012
the US dollar had also weakened i comparison to the
opening rate moviag from £1 $1 35 to £1 $1 63
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Also included in other comprehensive income n 2013 15
art actuanal gain of £79m in relatton to post retirement
plans This gain arises from changes m the assumptions
used to value the habilimes and from returns on plan
assets that are in excess of the discount rate The gamn
compares to an actuartal Joss for 2012 of £103m

Dividends

The dividend accounted for 1n our 2013 financal
statements totalling £372m represents the final dividend
in respect of 2012 (30 Op) and the interim dividend for
2013 {16 Op) We are proposing a final dividend for 2013
of 32 Op, bringing the total pard and payable in respect
of 2013 to 48 Op. a 7% wcrease on 2012 Thus final 2013
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2014, is subject o approval at the forthcoming AGM
and will be charged against 2014 profits For 2013, the
cdividend is covered | 5 times by adjusted earrings

We seel to mamtain a balance between the
requirements of our shareholders for a nising stream
of dividend mcome and the reinvestment opportunities
which we identify around the Group and through
acquisitions The board expects to raise the dividend
abave wnflation, mare wn line with earnings growth,
thereby mamtaining dividend cover at around two
times earnings :n the long term

Pensions

Pearson operates a vanety of pension plans Our UK
group plan has by far the fargest defined benefit section
We have some smaller defined benefit sections i the
US and Canada but, cutside the UK, most of our
companies operate defined contribution plans

The charge to profitin respect of worldwide pensions
and retirement benefits afrer restatng 2012 figures for
1AS 19 (revised) and including disconunued operations
amounted to £i04m in 2013 (2012, £114m) of wiich

a charge of £101m (2012 £112m) was reported m
adjusted operatng profit and £3m (2012 £2m) was
reported against other net finance costs

The overall deficit on the UK group plan of £1%m at the
end of 2012 has become a surplus of £86m at the end
of 2013 The movement has arisen principally due to
favourable asset returns and deficit funding In total, our
worldwide defict in respect of pensiens and other post
reurement benefits fell from a defiat of £172m at the
end of 2012 1o a net defiat of £56m at the end of 2043
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Acquisizions and disposals

During the year the Group purchased a 5% interest

i NOOK Media for $89 5m The Nook investment
was made as part of the strategy to accelerate our
move into digital content and personalised learning
and was made at the same ume as entering into a
commercial arrangement to work together on device-
agnostic platforms

Also 1n the year we have completed the purchase
of remaining minorities interests I some of our
South African and Indian businesses

The acquisiion of Grupo Multi for £492m announced
in December 2013, completed in February 2014 and
has not been reflected n the financial statements at

3! December 2013

in the first half of the year the FT Group disposed
of 1ts associate mterest in BDFM, the South African
Business Media Group realising a small loss and in
July 2013 the International busimess disposed of its
Japanese school and local publishing assets viaa
management buy-out for a nominal sum The sale
of Mergermarket will be accounted for in 2014

Net cash consideration for alt acquisiions made n
the year ended 31 December 2013 was £198m
including the investment in NOOK and provisional
goodwill recagmsed was £19m In total, acquisitions
completed in the year contributed an addiuonal £§5m
of sales but did not contribute a materiat amount to
operating profit

Return on mvested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 1s calculated as total adjusted operating
profit less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of
average gross invested capital ROIC felt in 2013 to

5 4% from 9 [%51n 2012 Reduced profit and increased
tax payments are the mam reasons for the movement

Related party transactions

T ansactions wath related parties are shown in note 37
of the financial statements

Past-balance sheet events

On 4 February 2014 the Group completed the sale

of Mergermarket for £382m On It February 2014, we
acquired 100% of Grupo Mulu, the leading adutt English
fanguage traimuing company n Brazil for approximately
£435m i cash plus the assumption of £57m of debt

1
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Applying and working with the best

techno

ogy, iInnovation

and expertise

from around the world




Principal risks and uncertainties

Qur principal risks and uncertamties are outhned
below These are the most significant risks that may
adversely affect our business strategy, financal position
or future performance The risk assessment process
evaluates the probability of the nsk materalising and
the financial or strategic impact of the risk. Those risks
which have a hugher probability and sigrficant impact
on strategy, reputatton or operazions or a financal
impact greater than £40 million are identified as
principal risks The risk assessment and reporuing
criteria are designed to provide the board with a
consistent, Group-wide perspective of the key risks
The reports to the board, which are submitted twice
per year, include an assessment of the probability and
impact of risks materialising, as well as risk mitigation
mniuiatives and their effectiveness

PRINCIPAL RISKS ~ IMPACT AND PROBABILITY

Fas

IMPACT

BRAND/
REPUTATION
MANAGEMENT

DATA PRIVACY
BREACH

BUSINESS
TRANSFORMATION

INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY
RIGHTS
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We conduct regular risk reviews to idenufy risk
factors whech may affect our bustness and financiat
performance and to assist management tn Pricritising
their response to those nsks Our Group internal audit
and comphance funcuon facktates nsk reviews with
each business, shared service operations and
corporate functons, identfying measures and controls
to mitigate these risks These reviews are designed

50 that the different businesses are able to tailor and
adapt ther nsk management processes to suit their
specfic arcumstances Management is responsible

for considering and executing the appropriate action
to mitgate these risks whenever possible {tsnot
possible to identdy every nsk that could affect our
businesses, and the actions tzken to mimgate the risks
described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a risk will not materalise and/or adversely affect
our business or financial performance

EDUCATION
REGULATION
AND FUNDING

TECHNOLOGY
CHANGES

ECONOMIC
UNCERTAINTIES

EMERGING
MARKETS

ACQUISITIONS
AND MERGERS

PROBABILITY

MAIAMAND
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Principal risks
TECHNOCLOGY CHANGES

QOur businesses will be impacted by the
rate of and state of technological change
mcluding the digital revolution and other
disruptive rechnologies

We operate in markets which are dependent
on Informauon Technology (IT) systems and
technological change The transipon of our
products and services to digital increases the
potentiat exposure to cyber rhreats

[OUCATION REGULATION AND FUNDING

Qur US and UK educationai solutions

and assessment businesses may be
affected by changes n government funding
resuiting from erther general econonmic
conditions, changes In government
educational funding, programmes, policy
decistons, legistation and/or changes in
the procurement processes

LCONMOMIC UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic conditions may adversely
impact aur finanaal performance.

A significant detertoration in Group
profitability and/or cash flow caused by
prolonged economic instability could reduce
our hguidity and/or imparr our finanaal
ratios, and trigger a need to rarse additional
funds from the captal markets and/or
renegotiate out banking covenants

We generate a substantal proporuon of

our revenue in foreign currencies, particularly
the US dollar, and foreign exchange rate
fluctuation could adversely affect our earnings
and the strength of our balance sheet

Mitigating factors

Qur global education strategy will drive a faster move

to digital and services, recognising that this s a sigruficant
opporturity for Pearson, as well as a porenual riske. We
are rransforrmng our preducts and services for the dignai
envtronment along with managing our print inventories
Qur content 1s being adapted to new technologies across
our businesses and is priced to drive demand We develop
new distribution channels by adapting our product offering
and ivesung in new formats

We seek to mingate IT risks by establishing strong IT policies
and operational controls, employing project management
techniques to manage new software developments and/or
systems implementations and have implemented an array

of security rmeasures to protect our [T assets from attacks
or failures that could impact the confidentabity, avadability
or ntegrity of our systems

In the U5 we actively monitor changes through parucpation
i advisory boards and representation on standard setting
committees Qur customer relatonship teams have detalled
knowledge of each state market We are investuing i new
and innovattve ways to expand and combine our products
and services to provide a superior customer offering when
compared to our competitors, thereby reducing our rehance
on any particular funding stream in the US market. We work
through cur own corporate affairs team and our industry
trade associations including the Association of American
Publishers We are also monstoring municipal funding and
the impact on our education receivables

in the UK we maintain refationships with those government
departments and agencies that are regponsible for policy and
funding. We work proactively with them to ensure our
programmes Mmeet existing and new government objectives
at the nght quality

The Group’s approach to funding s described on page 37
and the Group's approach to the management of financial
risles 15 set out 1n note 19 to the firancial statements,




Principal risks

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

The pace and scope of our business
transformation imtiatives increase the
execution risk that benefits may not be
fully realised, costs of these changes may
increase, or that our business as usual
actvities do not perform m line

with expectations

If we fail to actract and retain appropriately
skilled employees, our business may
be harmed

BRAND/REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

Our business depends on a strong brand,
and any fallure to maintain, protect and
enhance our brand would hurt our ability
to retan ar expand our bustness

Section 2 Our performance 43

Miugating factors

A chief transformation officer was appointed m 2013, to
oversee the development and implementation of a significant
change programme Some of the key mitigations for potential
execution risk include change management workshops for
sentor leaders, additional support for people moving to new
roles, and regular communication from the CEQ and his
leadership team i person and by online videos To clary
deasion-making authority and accountabibity in the new
global matrix organisation, worked examples of day-to-day
activities have been developed mcluding customer-faong
acuvities such as developing and defivering online

education services

Our trading update in January 2014 noted the importance

of our transformation and our decisions on timing of changes
such as deferring sales-related restructuring to avoid key
selling periods

Through the changes during 2013, we have been successful
in promouing our bestnternal talent and recruting
individuals who are global leaders in their specific field

Further details of how we are managing the risks associated
with transformational change are set out under ‘Responsible
business’ from page 47

We seel to mrtigate this risk through the development of
comprehensive processes to enable our business units
to effectively manage relationships with stakeholders,
customers, communities and employees We have an
ongoing process to understand and evaluate potenual brand
threats and monitor and evaluate information about our
brand across media sources This process and associated
governance includes the reputation and responsibitity
commuttee The committee met during 2043 and has
considered a number of toptcs including Pearson's
non-financial targets brand and reputation metrics and
reputational risk and mitigations associated with testing
fatlures in the US

We take very seriously the health, safety, weilbeing and
protectton of our employees, learners and customers and
implement appropriate policies. standards and procedures
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Principal risks and uncertainties
contmnued

Principal risks
EMERGING MARKETS

Our investment into inherently riskier
emerging markets is growing and the returns
may be lower than anticipated

INTELLICTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

If we do not adequately protect our
ntellectual property and proprietary rights
aur compettve postion and results may be
adversely affected and imit our abihty

to grow

ACQUISITIONS AND MERGERS

Falure to generate anticipated revenue
growth, synergies and/or cost savings from
acquisions, mergers and other business
combinations could fead to poodwill and
intangible asset anpairments

Msugaung factors

We draw on our experience of developing businesses
nternatonally to manage spectfic country risks Ve have
designed and adapted an operating model for a globally-
connected education company and we continue to strengthen
our financial conirol and managerial resources in emerging
markets to manage expanston The diversdication of our
international portfolia, and relative size of emerging markets
in relation to the Group, further mimimises the effect any one
territory could have on the overall Group resuits

VWe seelc to mittigate this type of risk through general
wigifance, co-operauon with other publishers and trade
assuciatans, advances in technology, as well as recourse to
faw as necessary Digital rights management standards and
monitoring programmes have been developed We have

a ptracy task force to wdentfy weaknesses and remediate
breaches We monttor aciivities and regulattons in each
market for developments in copyright/imteltectual property
faw and enforcement and take legal action where necessary

We perform pre-transaction due diigence and closely
monitor actual performance Lo ensure we are meeung
operational and financial targets Any divergence from
these plans will result in management action to ImMprove
performance and mnimise the risk of any imparments
Executive management and the board recewve regular
reports on the status of acquisitions and mergers




TN

Principal nsks

DATA PRIVACY BREACH

Failure to comply with data privacy
regulations and standards or weakness in
information security, including a fallure to
prevent or detect a mahaous attack on our

systems, could result v a major data privacy

breach causing reputational damage to our
brands and financial loss

TESTING FA{LURES

A control breakdown or service failure in
our school assessment and guahfications
businesses cauld result in financral loss
and reputational damage

Our professional services and school
assessment businesses involve complex
contractual relatlonships with both
government agenctes and commercial
customers for the provision of various
tesung services Our financal results,
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adversely affected if these contracts
and relationships are poorly managed

Secrion 2 Qur petformance 45

Miugating factors

Through our global enterprise information secunity and
compliance programme we have established a governance
model, security and privacy framework and policies, 2 global
security and privacy orgamsational model, and scandard-based
information security and privacy controls and practices

We constantly test and re-evaluate our data security
procedures and controls across all our businesses with the
aim of ensuring personal data 1s secured and we comply with
relevant legislation and contractual requirements We pursue
appropriate privacy accreditations e g, TRUSTe Privacy and
Safe Harbor Seal We regularty monitor regufation changes
to assess the impact on existing processes and programmes
Ve have established a global security operations centre that
provides ongoing monitoring of potential malictous attacks on
our infrastructure and systems

We seek to minimise the risk of a breakdown in our student
marking with the use of robust quabty assurance procedures
and controls and oversight of contract performance,
combined with our investment m technology, praject
management and skills development of our peaple

In addition to the internal business procedures and controls
implemented to ensure we successfully deliver on our
contractual commitments, we also seek to develop and
maintamn good relationships with our customers to minimise
assoctated rsks

We also logk to diversify our portfolio to munimise reliance
on any single contract
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Improving

learner outcomes

at scale, and at fower costJ

image removed




Responsible business

Secuon 3 Responsible business 47

Our purpose as a company is
to help people all over the world
make progress in their lives

through learning.

In 2010, we identified three key issues as the focus

of the responsibility strategy for our company raising
literacy levels, improving fearning outcomes and
contributing to competitiveness

Last year, we signalled that 2043 would be a year of
signfficant change for Pearson as we developed our
global educational strategy and looked forward to the
creation of Penguin Random House We also made a
commutment to look at our responsibility frameworlc
using four questions to guide us

» Are the three key issues st the night ones for us’

» How should we measure and report the educational
impact of our products and services?

s What commutments and targets should we
set ourselves?

» What are the big unmet educational needs that
we can help tackle?

As our work on the global education strategy
progressed, so a clear priority emerged — to
deliver for the learner 1s the single most important
contrtbution that Pearson can make to social and
economic wellbeing The tools and means by which
we will deliver for the learner has become the
efficacy agenda and this s central to our global
education strategy

To reflect the mpartance of learning outcomes, we
have introduced a new efficacy section in our annual
report {page 14} In that secuon we describe our
commitments and targets on measurement and
reporting as we go down the path towards efficacy
Our vision 1s that by 2018, we will report on learmng
cutcomes alongside our financial resuits

This sectton will now report on our wider responsible
business agenda

We welcome feedback on thus aspect of the company
as we do on any other Please email our director of
corporate responsibility at peter hughes@pearson.com
with any questions or comments you may have

Together with sections one and two of this document,
this section forms our strategic report, which was
approved for ssue by the board of directors on

10 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

K/

Robin Fregstone Chief financal officer
(and board member responsible for
corparate responsibiity)
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Responsible business
continued

Overview

Helping learners to learn and progress is both the
focus of our business strategy and the single most
significant social contribution we can make

The section on efficacy (page 14) describes the
approach we are taking to our responsibihttes towards
the fearner

In addition, Pearson has adopted a broad definimion
of responsibie business reflecting priorities we share
with many industry sectors and indvidual businesses
These include commitments across a broad range of
social, community and human rights ssues relevant to
Pearson to

» Ensure that our products and services are inciusive,
appropriate in content to the age and location of the
learner and are safe to use and access

» Inform, support and equip colleagues to embrace and
respond to new priorities and ways of working

» Provide a safe, healthy workplace where our employees
and increasingly the learners we directly serve are able
to realise therr individual potential and there is respect
for privacy, digruty and Iife outside work

» Extend our principles on fabour standards, hurnan
rights and environmental responsibility to nclude
supphers and business partners

» Provide opporiuniues for Pearson people 1o be good
aitizens and to get involved i their local communities.

» Debver against stakeholder expectations on a
response to chimate change and in makmg better,
more efficient use of resources

> Be open and wransparent nn how we share and engage
with those with an interest and passion for education
and learming

We consider our policies relaning to these matters to
be effective

Transformng our company — supporting our people
through change

Last year, we announced our plans 1o transform
Pearson nto a single company driven by a focus on
helping learners make measurable progress in their
lves through learning

A priority for 2013 was to design and putin place a
new organisational structure that shifted the company
fram being a portfolio of businesses towards a single
operating model with standard systems, clear
accountabibity and quicker deciston-makung

We recogrised that change can be both inspining and
empowering but can also bring operatonai risks
To mitigate this, we

> Were clear about the purpose of the change to better
focus on a shared single purpose of delivering for
the fearner

» Held change management workshops for senior
leadership teams to prepare for the new organisatonal
structure and operaung model supported by videos,
blogs, ematls and interactive materials

> Introduced the new leadership team and their
priortes for 2014, both wirtually and in-person

» Explained how the new operatung model would work,
focusing on better use of mformation, tmproved
efficiency and cohesiveness 1n collaborating on
strategic priorigies

W

Supported the people that left the orgarsanion as
a restdt of the restructure

Conunually tracked morale and reaction to change
to inform and shape how we communicated and
supported our people

~

At the same time, we continued to focus on our
broader responsibihties as an emplayer During the
year, Pearson

Launched Milo, a single global platform for alf our
people to access learning and development resources

-

Adopted a new consistent global health and safety
pohicy and introduced a new set of common
management and reporting procedures for our
businesses globally

'

b

Reviewed and refreshed our code of conduct including
emphasising our commtment te learners of zll ages
and types

Conunued to focus on how to meet our commitments
o attract, recruit and retain the best people We
know that oreating and sustaining an iclusive work
environment s critically impaortant, offering equal
apportuntty from the beardroom down regardiess

of race, gender, gender identity or reassignment, age,
disability religion or sexual orientation

»




CASESTUDY

Gender diversity

During 2013, we conttnued with the development of
the gender diversity strategy at Pearson Pearsonis
a supporter of the 30% Club which brings together
chairs and CEOs to work to encourage better
gender balance across their companies There was
continued progress in advanaing women and people
from diverse backgrounds An example of our work
s the diversity toolkit introduced in the UK 2012,
and launched in the United States and made
available globally in 2013 Designed for managers
and busmess leaders across Pearson, 1t 1s made up
of guides, tips, advice and employment law, to
enable our leaders to successfully buitd, manage

and develop their diversity management skills

We introduced a single global data collection
process based on our new operatng structure to
help inform people management This includes our
first global view on the gender balance within the
company More work remains, 1n particular to
incorporate gender data from countries with
recent acquisitons The gender balance based on
the introduction of our new organisational
structure was

MEN WOMEN
Board of directors 7 78% 2 22%
Senior managers
{excluding executive
board directors)” 61 69% 8 3%
All employees® 17,090 43% 2277 57%

“ For the purposcs of s report senior mdnagers at Pearson are defined
as the semor leadership team namely those up to and nduding two
reporung liner from the CEQ We believe thys (= the most meaningiul
way tao st razc the seriorlcadors and derisson-makers at Pearson

** Datafor over 2 000 employees prcaomnanvdy from Chna nd
Irtfoaesm by potincaded mthe all employe os noambers aoove
Employge mformauan car Le found on page 142

» In the Umited States, Pearson received a perfect score
of 100% in the 2014 Corporate Equalty Index (CEIl),
a benchmarking survey and report on corporate
policies and practices related to LGBT workplace
equality, admuaistered by the Human Rights Campaign
{HRC) Foundation We were also named as one of
the 100 Best Adoption Friendly Workplaces by the
Dave Thomas Foundanon for Adopuon

e

~

~

Section 3 Responsible business 49

Disability forms a part of our wider commitment

to equal opportunity We work to ensure that
appropriate policies, procedures, traming and
support are avaitable for disabled colleagues and
thew managers A recent example is a guide on how
to develop corporate videos, 50 that all our people,
including those with disabiliues, can access and
benefit from these films

Partnering and investing to extend access to learning

Extending access to quality educationis a big
challenge, parucularly in the poorest countries

in the world Meeting the challenge requires a
sustained commitment to partnership —internatonal
organisations hike the UN and the World Bank,
national governments, doner agencies and charities,
businesses such as Pearson, education providers and
suppliers all working together

We are committed to playing our part We do thig
through being active m helping shape and inform the
global debate around education and learning pokhcy
as well as investing in projects that explore possible
solutions to the most intractable learning needs

In20{3, we

joined the board of the Global Partnership for
Education (GPE) represenung the private sector

and private foundations GPE brings together
representatives from nearly 60 developing countries,
donor governments, charttable foundations and
private bustnesses to work together to help
developing countries strengthen their education
systems www globalpartnership org/

Championed the role of the private sectorin
education and learming in developing countries as a
founding member of the Giobal Business Coalition
for Education www gbc-educaton.org/

Made a series of commutments during the UN General
Assembly including to mvest $30m i innovative
education solutions, establish a multi-year flagship
partnership to help overcome barrers to learning for
marginalised chidren, work with the GPE to develop
a private sector strategy that meets the goals of its
strategic focus on fragile states, and by 2018, to help
20,000 new graduates from across sub-Saharan Africa
to transition Into employment
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Responsible business
continued

Continued to mvest in models that provide access to
affordable education through low-cost private
schoots The $15m Pearson Affordable Learning Fund
has invested i projects in Ghana, Kenya and India.
www affordable-learning com/

Continued to support the Education Zone on the
Business Fights Poverty network Thezoneisa
platform for debate on the role of business In global
education www businessfightspaverty org/page/
education-zone

Launched Pearson Catalyst, a new incubator
programme to identfy and back the most promising
educaton start-up comparmes Pearson provides
mentors, seedcorn funding and access to resources
and insight

Our communities

Not-for-profit partners help us extend our reach
and impact In ways that have a real impacton
learring — especially for the most disadvantaged -
and are complementary to our business abjectives
We also believe that our stakeholders expect and
value our efforts to work in partinership with
charitable organisations

We therefore partner and fund a number of chanitable
orgamisations with the Pearson Foundation being the
largest of these In 2013, our worldwide chartable
giving was £11 8m or { 5% of pre-tax profits

Highlights this year include

Booktime gave its ten muthonth book Booktume sees
every child starting schoot i England and Wales
receive a book pack contamung two free books 1o
take home and keep

We were the {argest book donor to Book Ard
International in 2013 We have given | 2 mulhion
books to the charity to support the development
of ibraries in schools and communities across sub-
Saharan Africa

The Financial Times seasonat appeal raised £1 4m for
World Chid Cancer, a charicy helping treat sick
children i some of the poorest countries Since 2006,
FT appeals have raised £14m for chanity partners

For 2014 we will look more broadly at our approach to
community partnerships ncluding the metrics we use

CASE STUDY

Pearson Foundation

The Pearson Foundation ts an independent charity
that aims to malee a dfference by promoting
iiteracy, learming and great teaching Its programmaes
in 2013 included

» Helping Jumpstart's Read for the Record to seta
new wartd record for reading the same book on
one day as 2,462,860 adults and chidren read
Qus, by Loren Long, i classrooms, hibrames, and
commurity centres across the United States

Strong Performers and Successful Reformers in
Educaton, developed n partnership with the
Orgamsation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD) helps inform what works
i education globally

~

BridgelT has reached over one mithon children
and their teachers using mobile technology to
deliver professional development marenials and
educational resources to remaote and underserved
classrooms in ten countries around the world

~

In 2011, the Pearson Foundation faced criicism on
some of its programmes and the New York State
Attorney General announced an investigation into
the Foundation's governance. adrmimstration, and
relationshup with Pearson We co-operated fully
with the investigation A settlement agreement
with the Pearson Foundation and Pearson, tne
has been concluded

Pearson and the Foundaton mamtain we have
always acted with the best intentions and complied
with the law However, we recognise there were
umes when the governance of the Foundauon could
have been dearer and more transparent Overthe
past two years, the Foundauon has taken several
steps to strengthen its governance, beginning with
the addiwon of ndependent directors to the board
and the adoption of stronger operational systems
Under the settlement, these efforts will be further
enhanced by the creation of a three-person

audit committee

The Foundation has also agreed to pay $7 5m

mto a fund managed by the Attorney Gener al

that will support the work of 100Kinl0, an
organisation committed to placing 100,000 scence
and mathemarics teachers into US schools in the
Next ten years




COMMUNITY

Challenges Access to learning,

teracy and great teaching

Our commitiment

How we measure
progress

To maintain our total commumty investrent
at [% or more of operaung profit

One way we extend our reach s through
par tnerships with literacy and learning

Section 3 Responsible business 51

Rasing literacy levels

Using 2010 as our base. to expand our
book gifing acuviues

Number of books donated to schoofs,
hbrartes and literacy charities

charities VWe report on our community

nvestment spend

Community snvestment spend

Number of books donated

Graph removed

Graph removed

Environment climate change and avoiding deforestation

Extreme weather events continued i 20{3, most
notably Typhoon Haiyan n the Philippines which

was one of the worst storms on record Pearson

has around 350 peopte in Mamila with the majority
working for the FT Although our employees are all
safe and our operations were not directly affected,
many had anxious moments tracking family members

Pearson matches contributions made by Pearson
employees in countries and communities where we
operate Over 1,000 Pearson people around the
world contributed to a special fund ser up i the wake
of Haiyan, which together with matching from Pearson
meant that over $150,000 was raised for chanes
working in the Philippmes, primarnly to help chidren
get bacl into school and to rebuild their fives

Typhoon Haiyan was a stark remunder on the
importance of mmimising environmental impact
Pearson conunues to be climate neutral, a
commitment we first achieved in 2009 and have
maintaned ever since

This commitment was designed to encourage the
company to focus on carbon reduction Pearson was
included i the media category as a Decoupling Leader
in the Natural Capital Index developed by Trucost,

a research firm focusing on sustanabihity metncs
Trucost iooked at the envirenmental impact of 4,600
publicly traded companies and 34 were recognised

as Decoupling Leaders having successfully separated
growth from resource use over a sustained period

Qur second focus area s forests As a purchaser of
paper and newsprint for our books, magazines and
newspapers security and sustamnabiicy of supply
are very important to us We have focused on
sustainability sourang and being more efficient in
how we use paper Also, as our transitton towards
being an educational technology and solutions
provider gathers pace, so this will change our
environmental footprint

MIIAYIAO

IDINYWHO4Y3d YN0

SSANISNG 3TAISNOJISIY

ADNYNYIAOD

SLINIWILVYLS IVIDNVYNII



52 Pearson plc Annualreport and accounts 2013

Responsible business
continued

Highlights of our acuvities include

» Pearson received a 2013 Green Power Leadership
Award from the US Environmental Protecuion Agency
{EPA) for s green power purchase 100% of the
electricity purchased by Pearson globally — over
215 MWHhn 2013 — comes from green power

> We have invested in renewable energy generation at
four sites and have 2 3 Megawatts of wind and sofar
assets nstalled

» Pearson was the second ever organisation to be
certified globally against the Carbon Trust Standard
This recognises leadership i measuring, managing
and reducing year-on-year carbon emissions

» Facthues i the United States also seek to secure
LEED, an internationally-recogrused mark of excellence
by the US Green Building Council Over 800,000
square feet across six of our buldings are LEED
certified Pearson s also cerufied aganst 15O 14004,
the environmental management standard in the UK
and Australia

Pearson mvests in forest-based carbon offsets for
any part of our chmate footprint that we cannot
reduce or avord through other means Since 2009,
this prograrame has seen over 700 hectares of farest
protected in Colombia, Costa Rica, the United States
and the UK.

ENYIRONMENT

Challenges Climate change

Cur commitment

To maintam our
commutment to
chmate neutrahty

How we Through carbon 1 educuon,
Mmeasure progress purchase of renewable
energy, renewable
energy generauon at our
sites and the purchase
of carbon offsets

GLOBAL GHG EMISSIONS DATA FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2017

Metric tonnes
Eorussions from of COpx

Combustion of fuel and operation

of faciliies (GHG Protacol Scope )

natural gas company owned/

leased vehicles, 1 efrigerant gas loss

and fuel o 30170

Electricity heat steam and cooding
purchased for own use
(GHG Protocof Scope 2) 115,548

Total 145,718

tntensity metric (tonnes CCxe/full ume
employee forscope { and 2) 319

We have reported on all of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic
Report and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013
These sources fafl within our consolidated financial
statement We do not have responsibility for any
emission sources that are not included in our
consolidated statement

The method we have used to calculate GHG
ermussions is the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (revised edition), together
with the latest ermssion factors from recognised public
sources incuding, but not brited to, Defra, the
International Energy Agency, the US Energy
lnformanon Admunustration, the US Environmental
Protection Agency and the Intergovernmental panel
on Climate Change

We publish a separate report prowviding more
information on our environmental impact and this
mndudes some corporate value chain emussions data
{GHG Protocol Scope 3)




External benchmarks

Secuion 3 Responsibie busipess 33

One way we assess how we are dotng as a responsible business is to maintain our position n key indices and

benchmaris of social responsibiity.

7013 2642

Dow Jones Silver class
Sustainabihicy

Indexes®

Gold class

Pyl 2010

Global sector leader

BITC Corporate Plaunum
Responsibtlity

Index

Platinum (retained)

Platinum Plaunum (retained)

Inclusion
FTSE4Good

Yes

“Gold class s wathin {% of the sector leider silver chass 1s within 2% of the secior [eader

Qur vaiues, principles and behaviour

Although the structure and culture of the company 15
changing, values are what define us Our values to be
brave, inagmative and decent in everything we do are
the foundation of the company

QOur values are underpinned by our Code of Conduct
that covers, among other things, individual conduct,
learners, employees, community, the environment
and society

‘We malce sure everyone Is aware of and understands
the code and this forms part of our nduction for new
employees Once a year, everyone working for
Pearson gets a copy etther electromcally or on paper,
and s asked to read it, to confirm to the Pearson CEQ
that they have read it and understood it, and in doing
so, to provide a check that the company complies with
it If anyone has concerns, these can be raised with a
kne manager or through afree confidential telephone
kine/website

Pearson has a zero tolerance policy towards bribery
and corruption Our policy imtroduced in 204 sets out
our standards, we carry out risk assessments and have
a networl of designated managers across the business
responsible for compliance with cur policy

We are committed 1o making sure owr people
understand how we are doing as a company, including
how world wends might affect them and the business
We provide comprehensive, relevant informauon in

a vartety of ways including regular presentatons from
senior executives and consulting where appropriate
so that we can learn and take account of the views of
our people

!
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We have a passion

for the life changing impact of learning

around the world
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Board of directors

Section 4 Governance

Company Number 53723

Pearson’s board brings a
wide range of experience,
skills and backgrounds.

CHA{RMAN

SYECUTIVE DIRECTORS

55

Image removed

lmage removed

Image removed

Glen Moreno Chairman
aged 70 appomted { Ocrober 2005

Charrman of the normination
committee and member of the
remuneration cOmmittee

Glen has more than four decades of
experience in business and finance,

and 15 currendy deputy charman of

The Financial Reperung Council Lirited
in the UK and non-executive director
of Fidehty Internanonal Linuted Previously
Glen was deputy charman and semor
independent du ector at Lioyds Banlung
Group plc seror independent diecto
of Man Group plc and acung chairman
of UK Financtat Investments Limited

the company set up by HIM Treasury wo
manage the government s shareholdings
n UK banks

lohn Fallon Chief executive
aged 5i, apponted 3 October 2012

Member of the nomination committee

John pecame Pearson s chief executive

on } January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the company s educauon
businesses outside North America and

a member of the Pearson management
commtee He joined Pearson i 1997

as director of communications and was
appointed president of Pearson lnc arole
he combimed with bis commumcanon:
responsibiries, ¢y 2000 tn 2003 he was
appointed CEQ of Pearson s equcaronaf
pubhshing businesses for Eut ope,

Middle East & Afrea (EMA) and gradually
100k on a broader nternauonal educavon
bref Pnor io joming Pearson John was
director of cot porate affairs at Powergen
plc where he was also amember of

the conpany’s executn e committee
Earlier in his career joha held servor
pubkic policy and communications roles

in UK {ocai government

Robun Freestone Chief financiat officer
aged 55 appotnted 12 June 2006

Robin's experience i management and
accounung includes a previous role as
group financral centroller of Amersham ple
{now part of General Electric) and senior
financral positons wath BC pic, Zeneca and
Henkel UK He joined Fearson m 2004 as
deputy chief finanaal officer and became
chief finanaal officer n June 2006

Robin qualfied as a chartered accountant
with Touche Ross {now Deloitte) and s
currently a non-execusive director and
founder sha ehalder of aChem Limuted
Robun sits on the Advisory Group of the
ICAEW s Fmanaal Reporung Facuity and
15 charrman of The Hundred Group of
Finance Drrectors He also sits on the

CBl s Economtic Growth Boar d
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HON LXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Dawvid Arcutus Non-executive du ector
aged 67, appointed 28 February 2006

Chasrman of the remuneration
committee and member of the audit
and nommauon comnititees

Dawid has experience 1n banking
telecommunications and publishing in a fong
career n business Currently he is chairman
of Numis Corporation plc and the Advisory
Board of the Briush Library and s a member
of eouna of Cranfield Universiy Dawvid s
previous roles include the charrmanship of
Aldermore Bank plc O2 pic, Severn Trent
plc and WPC Group as well as chief operaung
officer of United Business Media plc group
managing director of EMAP plc and a non-
executive dwector of Telefonica 5 A

David served from 2002 ro 2006 as
chairman of the UK government’s Better
Regulatien Task Force which worked on
reducing burdens on business

Vivienne Cox Sentor ivdependent director
aged 54, appointed | fanuary 2012

Member of the audit 1emuneration
and nomunalion commiriees

Vivienne bas wide experience in energy
natural resources and busimess mnovasion
She worked for BP ple {or 28 years m Botan
and Continental Europe in posis including
execuilve vice president and chiel executive
of BP's Gas Power & Renewables busmess
and s Alternattve Energy umit She is non-
execunve director of muning company Rio
Tinto plc and energy company BG Group
ple, and chairman of the supervisory boarc
oi Vaiourec which supplies tubular systems
for the energy tndustry She is also tead
independem director atthe LK Depariment
for International Development Vivienne s a
commisstoner of the Awrports Commission
which was set up by the UK government

to examine any requirements for addivonat
UK wrport capaaty

Linda Lorimer Non-executive director
aged 61, appomted 1 July 2013

Member of the audit and
nOMINALON Cammittaes

Linda has a deep background i education
strategy, adminsiration and public affairs
She s vice president for Global & Strategic
instiatsves at Yale University in New Haven
Connecucut where her duties include
oversight of Yale's Office of Internauonal
Aftawrs and Office of Digital Disseminauon
Ower a 30-year career in hugher education,
she has been responsible for many of Yale's
administrative services including the
university's pubke commurmcations alumni
refatiens and Office of Sustamantiiy
Previcusly Linda served as president of
Randolph-Macon Woman's College n
Virgimia and had earlier worked ar Yale in
several serwor roles including associate
provost She ts a non-execuuve director of
Save the Chidren (US! and was chair of the
toard of the Associancn of Amerncan
Colleges and Universities

Image removed

Image removed

Image removed

Ken Hydon Non-execuuve director
aged 69 appointed 28 February 2006

Charrman of the audit committee
znd member of the remuneration
and noMination commitices

Ken s experience in finance and bustmess
includes working in the elecironics, retal
consumer preducis and healtheare

sectors He s a non-executive director

of Reclutt Benckiser Group plc one of the
world 5 leading branded consumer goods
companies i health hygiene and home

He 15 #ls0 2 non-executive director of
Metlin Entertainments ple the world'’s
second largest vistor attracton operator
From 2004 to 2013 he was a non-executive
director of Tesco plc Previously Kenwas
cheed financial officer of Vodafone Group plc
the multunational telecommunications
company and financial director of
subsidianes of Racat Blectromies

fosh Lewis Non-executive director
aged 51 appomted 1 March 2011

Member of the remurneration and
nOMINATION COMMITIEes

Joshs erpenence spans finance educaton
and the development of digital enterprises
He 1z the founder of Salmaon River Capral
LLC a2 New York-based prvaze equrty/
venture capital firm focused on technology-
enabled busmesses in educauon finznaal
services and other sectors Over a 25-year
career(n active, principal invesung, be has
been mvolved in a broad range of successid
companies cluding several pioneering
enterprises in the educaucn sector

In addinen, he has long been acuve in

the non-profit education secior witn
assooations including New Leaders New
Classrooms, ana the Bill & Melinda Gates
Foundauon He s also a non-execunve
director of eVestmeant and Axioma both
financia! data/iechnology companies, and
Parehment, an educaoon cradennals
management company

Harisih Manwan Non-execuuve director
aged 60 appointed | Qetober 2043

Member of the nomitnaton commitiee

Harish hias 2n extensive background in
emerging markers and senior experience

in a successful global organsauon

He i« chief operatng officer of consumer
areducts company Un lever, and serves

on the company's executive board

Hartsh jomed Unileverin {376 as a
marketing management trainee in India, and
has held seior management roles around
the world mncluding North America Laun
America Europe Africa and Asia Hes
non-gxecutive chairman of Hindustan
Undevar Lumited 1 india, and serves on the
poard of Whirlpool Corporanan i the US
He 1s also on the board of e Indian Schoot
of Business the Economic Development
Board (EDB) of Singapare and The Human
Capital Leadership Institute 1 Singapore
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Chairman’s letter

Dear shareholders

This year, we are reporting for the first time against the
2012 edwon of the UK Corporate Governance Code
{the Code)

As has been highlighted elsewhere within this reporrt,
2013 was a peniod of great change in our orgarisation,
following the appointment of John Fallon as chief
executive at the start of the year | would like o take
this opportunity to share with you some insights as to
how our board and governance operauons have
adapted throughout the year to take account of
Pearson’s focus on becoming one global education
company

The Pearson beard consists of senior executive
management alongside a strong group of non-executive
directot s drawn from successful international
businesses and educanon insututions with experience
of corporate strategy, education, emerging markets,
1echnology and consumer marketing We continually
assess and refresh the board to ensure we mamtain

an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and
experience

2013 saw a number of changes n Pearson’s
boardroom, reflecting both the new strategic direction
of the business and our desire to maxmmise the valuable
external expenrience which non-executive directors
bring to the table Executive directors Rona Farhead
and john Malunson stepped down from the board in
Apnl and July respecuvely, although John remains part
of the Pearson family in hus new role as chairman of
Penguin Random House In August we said goodbye to
Susan Fuhrman, a non-executive director for nine years
and, at the end of December, Will Ethndge stepped
down from s executive position on the board and
from hus role as CEO of Pearson North American
Education, although he will rermaimn a valued adviser

to the campany dunng 2014

During the year we also welcomed Linda Lormer
and Harnsh Manwani to the board, as non-executive
directors Linda and Harish bring a wealth of
experience m the areas of educauon, digital vuuatves
and emerging markets, which reflect preasely those
areas on which Pearson is now focused

With these changes the board now predominantly
comprises ndependent non-executive directors We
believe this re-balancing enables Pearson to benefic
from our board’s wide range of perspectives and
backgrounds, and allows the board to fock at the
bigger prcture of the Group's strategy, performance
and vatue, whilst allowing the executtve management
to focus on what it does best - driving our company
forward

May 2013 saw the announcement of the new Pearson
Exccutive team  You will have read elsewhere in this
report about the new Geographies and Lines of Business
along which Pearson 1s now organised The presidents
of these Geographies and Lines of Business now sit on
the Pearson Executive, together with colleagues leading
the key enabling funcuons The board and | had the
pleasure of spending two days discussing strategy with
the Pearson Executive in October 2013, of which a

Iittle more later in the governance report

As a board we organise our work around four major
themes where we believe we can add value
governance, strategy, business performance and
people Our board calendar and agenda provide ample
ume to focus on these themes and we have set out
some examples of the business considered by the
board, as well as the governance practices to which
we adhere, on the pages that follow

We hope this report clearly sets out how your
company is run and how we align governance

and our board agenda with the strategic direction

of Pearson We always welcome questions or
comments from shareholders, either via our website
{www pearson com) or in person at our annual
shareholders’ meeting.

Glen Moreno Chairman
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Board governance

Corporate governance

Introduction

The board believes that during 2013 the company was
in full comphiance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) A detaled account of the provisions
of the Code can be found on the FRC's website at
www frc org uk and we encourage readers to view
our compliance scheduie on the company website at
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
informacion/governance

Composition of the board

The board currently consists of the chairman,

Glen Moreno, two execunve directors including the
chtef executive, John Falion, and six mdependent
non-executive directors

Chairman and chief executive

There is a defined splic of responstbilives between the
chairman and the chief executive The chairman is
primartly responsible for the leadership of the board
and ensuring its effectiveness, the chief execunive 1s
responsible for the operauonal management of the
business and for the development and implementation
of the company s strategy as agreed by the board and
the Pearson Executive The roles and responsibifies of
the chairman and chief execuuve are clearly defined,
set out in wnting and reviewed and agreed by the
board annually

Chairman
There were no changes to the charman's significant
commitments during the course of 2013

Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox 1s the company's sentor independent
director. having been appointed to the role on

! Jaruary 20103

Vivienne s rofe includes meeung regularly with the
chairman and chuef execunve to discuss speciic 1ssues,
as well as being available to shareholders generally if
they should have concerns that have not been
addressed through the normal channels

Following Patrick Cescau's departure m December
2012, he was invired baclk in February 20{3 —in bus
former role as semor independent director — to
conduct a session with the other non-executive
directors and the chief executive to apprase the
performance of the chawrman, including in refation to
the effecuveness of the nomination comimitiee as part
of the annual board evaluation process

Vivienne, as incumbent senior mdependent director,
has responsibifiy for apprarsing the chawman's
performance during 2013 and beyond

The sentor independent director would be expected
to cha the nomination commuttee in the event that
it was considesing succession to the role of chairman
of the board

Independence of directors

All of the non-executive directors were considered by
the board to be independent for the purposes of the
Code durmng the year ended 3} December 2013

The board reviews the independence of each of

the non-executve directors annually This includes
reviewing thei external appomntments and any
potental confhicts of interest as well as assessing thewr
individual arcumstances in order to ensure that there
are no relanonships or circumstances bikely o affect
therr character or judgement [n addwon to this review,
each of the non-executive directors 1s asked annually to
complete an independence questionnaire to sausfy
requirements arising from Pearson’s US histing

Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon have each now served
on the board for eight years and it 1s therr intention to
retire from the board at the 2015 AGM As chawrmen
of the remuneraton and audit committees respectvely,
the nomination commuttee is actively considering
opuons for their successors both in their capacity as
non-executive directors and for then charmanships

Graph remaoved
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Confhicts of mterest

Under the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), directors
have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts of interest with
the company The company’s Articles of Association
(Articles) aliow the directors to authonse confiicts of
interest The company has established a procedure to
idenufy actual and potenual conflicts of interest,
mncluding all directorships or other appointments to, or
relationships with, companies which are not part of the
Pearson group and which could give nse to actual or
potential confiicts of mterest Once noufied to the
chairman ar company secretary, such potential
conflices are constdered for authorisation by the board
at 1ts next scheduled meeting The relevant director
cannot vote on an authonsation resolution, or be
counted in the quorum, In refation to the resolution
relavng to hus/her conflict or potential confliet

The board reviews any authorisations granted on

an annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six scheduled meetings m 2013, with
some mesatings taking place over two or more days

In recent years, we have developed our board meetmg
agenda to ensure that board discussion and debate 15
centred on the key strategic issues faang the company.
Over the course of 2013, the board mantained a
watching bnef over the transformation project and
receved regular formal updates from the chief
executive and the transformarion team, headed by

the director of communicatons Qther major items
covered by the board in the year included

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE. FEBRUARY 2013, LONDON

» 2012 report and accounts and dridend
recommendation

> 2013 operating plan

» Risk assessrnent and review of mitigatng actions

» Annual review of authonsed condlicts

» Review of division of responsibilities between
charrman and chief executve

» Plans for board effectiveness review

» Discussion of accounting exempruion for UK subsidraries

GOVERNANCE AND SHAREMOLDER MATTERS
AFRIL 2013, LONDON

> Focus on forthcoming AGM and review of

shareholder issues

» Review of investor relations strategy and share price
performance

» Review of corporate social responsibility

» Status update on Pengum Random House transaction
and ebook settlement proposal

» Risk assessrnent and review of mitigating actions

» Governance update

STRATEGY JUNE 2013 JOHANNESBURG

» Review of Southern African education business
including site wsits, panel sessions and debates -~ see
case study on page 62 for furthet informauon

BUSHVESS PERFORMAMNCE JULY 2013, LONDON

» Intenm results and dvidend approval

» Pengun Random House - post-completon update
> Inrial review of proposed Multr acquistaon

y Consideratron of Mergermarket sale

STRATEGY OCTOBER 2043 LONDON

» Launch of efficacy strategy

» Discussion of New Yorlk Atiorney General's review
of the Pearson Foundatton

» Review of standing committee terms of reference

» Workshop with Pearson Executive - see case study
on page & for further information

STRATEGIC PLAN DECEMBER 2013 NEW YORK

» Prelmmary view of 2014

» Overview of changes to the 2013 year end reporung
requirements

» Risk assessment and review of mutigaung acuons

» Approval of schedule of authonty fimes

In addition to the six scheduded meeungs the board
held one further full meeting in Novermber 2013 to
approve the Mergermarket sale and Grupo Mult
acquisiuon and undertook discussions throughout the
year, both in formal meetings and as otherwise
required, to consider the progress and terms of these
and other corporate wansactions
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Board governance continued

The following table sets out the attendance of the
company's directors at scheduled board meetings
during 2013

Powd

meciings
_ . atcended L N?T;G-.‘:
Chawman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Executive directors
john Fallon 6/6
Will Echnidge 5/6 absent for medrcal reasans
Rona Fairhead - stood down 26 Aprl 2013
Robin Freestone 6/6
John Makinson 373 stood down | fuly 2013
MNon-executve directors
Dawid Arculus 4/6  unable to travel due 1o injury
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Susan Fuhrman 3/4  stood down 7 August 2012
Ken Hydon 6/6
Josh Lewis h/6
Linda Lorimer 3/3 appainted | July 2013
Harish Manwan 2/2 appointed | Ccrober 2013

The role and business of the board

The board 1s deeply engaged in developing and
measuring the company’s long-term strategy.
performance and value VWe beheve that it adds

a valuable and diverse set of external perspectives
and that robust. open debate about significant
business issues brings a valuable additional disciphine
to major deaisions

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval is avartable on our website,

at www pearson com/mvestors/sharehoider-
informauon/governance

A standing commuttee of the board has been
established to approve certain ordinary course of
business items such as banking matters, guarantees,
ntra-group transactions and routine matters relatng
to employee share plans The committee has written
terms of reference, reviewed and approved each year,
whuch clearly set out its authonty and duttes These can
be found on the company website at

www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
information/ governance

The board recewves tmely regular and necessary
financial, management and other information to fulfil ies
duues Comprehensive board papers are circulated to
the board and committee members at least one week
in advance of each meeung and the board recerves
regular reports fram the chief executve In addivon

to meetng papers, a kbrary of current and historic
corporate informanton 15 made avallable to directors
electronicaily to support the board's decision-making
process Directors can obtain independent professional
adwvice, at the company’s expense i the performance
of thewr duties as directors All drectors have access ro
the advice and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local senior
management every time board and committee
meetings are held at the locations of operating
companies, such as duning the board's 2013 tnp to
South Africa This allows the non-executive directors
to share their expenence and expertise with senjor
managers as well as allowing them to better
understand the abilities of senior management, which
m turn will help them assess the company's prospects
and plans for succession

Culture and values of the board

During a ume of widespread orgamisational and
strategic change at Pearson, the board has had
oversight of the plans to eimbed efficacy firmly into
the company’s cufture

Since 2012, the board has been kept abreast of the
company’s intentions through a number of sessions
with the chief education adwvisor At the most recent
such session, in October 2013, the board had the
opportunity 1o discuss bulding efficacy o alf aspects
of Pearson’s operations, and noted their strong
support for Pearson’s involvernent in the global public
dialogue on efficacy and education
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Successton planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning —
not only at board and executive management level but

for all key positions throughout the business ~ as one
of s prime responsibiities

2013 has seen a large scale reorgarsation of both the

company and the structure of its senior management

team Throughout the year, the board received regufar

updates from the chief executve and the
transformation team on the organisational redesign
project This ncluded oversight of the key

appomtments made to the Pearson Executive and that

team's direct reports, the senior leadership group

CASE STUDY

Board and Pearson Executive

As part of the board’s regular programme

of updates on the education strategy and
orgamsational design inruatives, a sectron of the
October 2043 board meeting was dedicated to

a workshop mwolving members of the Pearson
Executive Each member of the Pearson Executive
discussed with the board their new roles, strategic
priorities, and the challenges and opportunities
facing thew particular business area as they
moved towards the new operating suructure

on | January 2014

The session had benefits for alt partes involved —
the board was able to learn more abouit the
recently appointed execttive team, and 1o
explore with them key tssues relating to the
geographies, lines of business, products and
technologies, whilst demonstrating to the
executive its involvement and support during

a period of great change

Duning the year the board also approved formal
conungency plans for temporary absence of the chuef
executive for health or other reasons

Board evaluation

The board's review of 1ts effecuveness in 2012 tock
place during earty 201 3. A pnimary focus for the board
in 2012 was chtef executive succession On review
the board conciuded that the process was structured,
detailed and effective

For 2013, the board identified two key priorives

» To restructure and sirengthen the board through
a hugher proportion of iIndependent directors with
experience and skills relevant to Pearson’s strategy,
particularly m educatron and emerging markets The
appointments of Linda Lonimer and Harish Manwarn
were I ine with this objectve,

» To keep the board closely informed and involved in
Pearson’s strategic transformation during the year,
including regutar detailed briefings on strategy. planned
organsational changes and key leadership
appomntments The board reviewed plans and actions in
considerable detail on six diferent occastons in 2043,
including at the strategy workshop held in October
with the Pearson Executive

The board has also given considerauon to the
informauion it receives and how this is reporied Asa
result, an improved board informaton system s being
designed which will enable the board to more
effectively track performance and developments in the
business mode! As part of this review, i january 2014,
we instituted a revised monthly chief executive’s fetter
to the board

The board also wished to give consideration as to ways
in which to maximise the effectiveness of its overseas
meetings In June 2013, the board held 2 meeting in
South Afnca, more informanion on which 1s set out in
the case study on page 62 Following the rip, a short
guestionnaire was distributed to board members
Particular learrung points ansing from the board’s input
refated to

» Continuing to ensure SIite VISIts are representatve
of Pearson's operations in the region,

» The high value placed on meeung the end users
of Pearson’s products — students and teachers,

» Logisucal arrangements both before and during the
trip, and

» Ensuring that board presentatons are pitched to
wnpart a sufficient level of knowledge for directars
1o perform thar roles
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Board governance continued

It 15 intended that these learning pomts will be used to
shape future overseas agendas, including potent:al visits
by the board to the US and an emerging market
territory during 2014

During the course of the year the executve directors
were also evaluated on their performance agatnst
personal objectives Up to 20% of the execunves total
annual incentive opportunity for 2013 was based on
{uncuonal, operational, strategic and non-financial
objecuves relevant to therw specific area of
responsitihty The charman leads the assessment of
the chief executive, and the non-executive directors,
ted by the serior independent director, conduct a
review of the charman’s performance

th accordance with the Code, the board anticipates
undertaking an external evaluation during 2014 The
board is currently discussing focus and timing for the
process to gain the maximum benefit from the review

In addition to the review of the board and individual
directors, the audit and remuneration commuttess each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review their
performance and effectiveness The process covers
areas such as roles and responsibilities, quahty and
omeliness of meeting matenals, opporturuty for
dsscusston and debate, dialogue with management

and access to independent advice

CASESTUDY

South Africa

In June 2013, the board visited South Africa for s
three-day meeting to understand the economic
and political environment, the education landscape
and Pearson’s South African business, one of the
Group's most consistently successful businesses
over the [ast decade

The board metwith a number of Pearson’s serar
leaders mn the region and also took the opportunity
to meet with the leader of Pearson’s Nigeria
business as i learned more about scope for growth
i that country and more widely across Africa

The board spent time visiting local schools as well
as reviewing higher education iitiatives on the
marn campus of CT1, Pearson’s higher education
bustness in South Africa

The beard also met with Cyril Ramaphosa, the
recently elected deputy president of the ANC,

at a session involving a range of business teaders,
Jjournalists, authors and key opinion leaders in
education, exploring how Pearson could do more
to tackle problems in education and training tn
the region

Emally outside of the core educauonal focus of the
trip, the board recewved an update on Pengun n
South Africa to learn more about how the merger
with Random House s enhancing publishing
opportunites
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Directors’ training and induction

Directors receve a signficant bespoke induction
programme and a range of informauon about Pearson
when they jom the board This includes background
mformation on Pearson and detalls of board procedures
directors’ responsibihittes and various governance-refated
issues, Including procedures for dealing in Pearson shares
and thewr legal obligations as drectors The inducuon also
includes a senes of meetngs with members of the board,
presentations regarding the bustness from senior
executives and a briefing an Pearson's vestor

refations programme The inducuon programme for
Uinda torimer and Hansh Manwani 1s ongoing and 1s
being tallored to best introduce them to Pearson ina
period of organisatonal change

The directors’ traiming 1s supplemented with
presentations about the company's operanons, by
holding board meetings at the locatons of operating
compantes and by encouraging the directors to visit
operaung companies and local management as and when
their schedule allows The company secretary and general
counsel, n conuncuon with the Group's advisers,
monitor legal and gavernance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the charrman
Directors can also male use of external courses

Directors’ indemnities

In accordance with secuon 232 of the Act, the company
grants an indemnuty to all of is directors The indemmity
relates to costs ncurred by them in defending any civil
or crimunal proceedings and in connection with an
application for relief under sections 661(3) and (4) or
sections | 157(1)-(3) of the Act, so long as monies are
repaid not later than when the outcome becomes final if
(1) they are convicted in the proceedings, (i} judgment is
given against them, or () the court refuses to grant the
relief sought

The company has purchased and maintams directors’
and officers’ nsurance cover against certam legal liabhiues
and costs for clams i1 connection with any act or
omisston by such directors and officers in the execution
of thenr dunes

Shareholder engagement

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders —farge and smalt insttuuonal
and private

In 2013, we conunued with our shareholder outreach
programme, seamng approxmately 780 msututonal and
private mvestors at more than 450 different insutunons
n Australia, Brazf, Canada, Chma, Continental Europe,
India, Japan, Malaysa, Singapore, South Afiica, South
Korea, the UK and the US

There are five trading updates each year and the chief
executive and chief financial officer present our
preliminary and interm results updates They also attend
regular meetings throughout the year with investors in
the UK and around the world, talored to investor
requirements, to discuss the performance of the
company, the company's strategy, Our restructunng
programme, structural changes in our markets and nisks
and opportumties for the future

The chairman meets regularty with significant
shareholders to understand any issues and concerns they
may have This is in accordance with both the Code and
the UK Stewardship Code The non-executive directors
meet informally with shareholders both before and after
the AGM and respond to shareholder quenes and
requests as necessary 1he chairman ensures that the
beard 15 kept informed of princpal investors’ and
adwisers’ views on strategy, and corporate governance

We zlso have an established programme of educauonal
sermunars for our mstitvtional shareholders focusing

on individual parts of Pearson These serminars are
avadable to alf shareholders via webcast on

WWW Dearson com

Private investors represent over 80% of the shareholders
on our register and we make a conceried effort to
engage with them regularly Shareholders who cannot
artend the AGM are mwvited to email questions to the
chairman i advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson com

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a weaith

of inforrmanon on our website abour managing Pearson
shareholdings, see

www pearson com/investors/ shareholder-informaton
for further informauon, or wen to page 210 of ths repart.
We also encourage all shareholders, who have not
already done s0, to register their emait addresses through
our website and with our registrar This enables them to
recewve ematl alerts when trading updates and other
Impottant announcements are added to our website
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We post all company announcements on our website,
WWW DEArson com, as 5oon as they are released, and
major shareholder presentations are made accessible
wia webcast or conference call Our website contatns

a dedicated mvestor relations secton wath an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentatons,
histonical financial performance, share price dara and

a calendar of events It also includes information about
alt of our businesses, hinks to ther websites and details
of our corporate responsibility policies and acuvities

We are committed to ensuring that all our
shareholders recewve therr dividends and encourage the
use of our dividend mandate service which enables UK
and many overseas shareholders to receve dividends
directly into their nominated bank account

Due 1o its conunued popularity we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to
use our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, giving
them the chance to add to or reduce thew stake in
Pearson at significantly reduced dealing rates, or to
donate shares to chanty with ease Ths service proved
very popufar wath shareholders, and consequently we
mntend to offer this service again at a future date

We believe it 1s impoitant that our employees have
a shared interest in the direcuon and achievements
of Pearson and are pleased to say thar a large number
of aur employees are shareholders in the company

Qur AGM — which will be held on 25 April tus year
— 15 an opportunizy for all shareholders to meet the
board and to hear presentations about Pearson’s
busmnesses and results

Board commuttees

The board has established three formal commitrees
the nomination committee, the remuneraton
committee and the audit commuttee The chanmen
and members of these committees are appointed
by the board on the recommendauon (where
appropriate) of the nomunation committee and mn
consultation with each relevant committee chalrman

In addinon to these board comrmittees, two further
committees operate with board input. the standing
committee and the reputanon and responsibiicy
committee which pnmanly focuses on reputational nsk
More detadl on the work of this commuttee can be
found within the principal nsks and uncertaihtes
section on pages 41 to 45

Durmg 2013, the balance of work considered by the
board and its formal committees has shifted, so that
more time Is spent by the committees discussing ther
areas of expertise, enabling the board meetings to
focus on strategy and performance Reports to the
board by each of the comnuttee chairmen continue to
form a standing item on each board agenda, ensuring a
good communication flow between the bodies

The following table shows attendance by directors at
committee meetings throughout 2013

Audit  Remuneraugn Nomination

commitree committce commiteee

mecungs meetmgs meetings

Glen Moreno - 5/5 5/5
john Fallon - - 5/5
David Arculus’ 4/5 5/5 3/5
Vivienne Cox 4/5 3/5 5/5
Susan Fubimnan™ 3/3 - 3/4
Ken Hydon 5/5 5/5 5/5
losh Lewis™* 5/5 4/4 5/5
Linda Lommer - - 2/2
Harish Manwar - - i/1

* Unable to travel due to mjury
™ Stcod down on 7 August 2013
*** loined remuneration commutiee on 23 Aprid 2013

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman Glen Moreno

Members David Arculus Vivienne Cox, fohn Faflon, Ken Hydon
Josh Lewrs Linda Lonmer, Harish Marvwam and Glen Moreno

The nomination committee meets at least once a year
and at other times as and when required The
commuttee primarly monitors the composiaon and
balance of the board and 1ts commutees, and Wenufies
and recommends to the board the appointment of
new directors and/or comimittee members
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During 2013, the commuittee met five umes with its
primary focus being to consider suitable candidates
for non-executive positions, culminating in the
appomntment of Linda Lonmer and Hansh Manwaru
to the board An external search consultancy, Egon
Zehnder, was used duning the recruitment process
Egon Zehnder does not have any other connection to
Pearson apart from as a search consultancy Pearson
uses a number of leading firms in its board and
executive search acuviues

Dunng the year, the committee also discussed and
approved the appointments of josh Lewis to the
remuneration committee and of Lindza Lonmer to the
audit committee, i place of josh Lewis who stepped
down at the end of 2013 Linda Lorimer and Hansh
Manwan! also joined the nominaton committee
following thetr appointments to the board during

the year

Although the charman of the board chairs the
nominauon committee, he is not permitted to char
meetings when the appointment of his successor 1s
being considered or dunng a discussion regarding his
performance At such times, the senior independent
director will char the meetings

The cornmuttee has written terms of reference
which clearly set qut its authonty and duties
These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
infermaton/governance

Duversity

The board embraces the Code’s underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nomination commuttee, led by
the chasrman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstraie a broad balance of skills, experience and
natonality, to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the glabal nature of the Group’s business

The commuttee and the board always take account of
dwersity in its broadest sense when considering board
appotntments whilst ensuring that appointments are
made based on merit and relevant expenience

Lord Dawvies’ review published in 2011 called for
companies to target 25% female representation on
boards of FTSE 100 comparues by 2015 Pearson i
committed to having at least 30% female directors
within Lord Dawvies’ 2015 umeframe and currently has
two female directors on its board of nine (representing
22%6) Whih the retrement of three female direciors
over the last year, the committee 15 actively seeking to
recruit at least one additional femate board member

Immediately below board level, the Pearson Executive,
not including the chief executive and chuef financial
officer who are mamn board directors, has four female
members out of a total of {3 (represenung 31%)

Pearson considers diversity as an important issue
across the Group, not just at board level One of the
key atms of Pearson’s diversity pohcy is to increase the
number of leaders coming from a diverse background,
including advancing more women into leadership
posiions The Responsible business section of thts
report on pages 47 to 53 contans further informauion
and staustcs on diversity throughout the Group

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Charman Dawnd Arculus

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon, Josh Lews
and Glen Moreno

The remuneratsion commititee reports to the full board
and the directors’ remunerauon report, which has
been considered and adopted by the board, 15 set out
on pages 781to | i4

The commuittee met five tmes dunng the year, and has
a written charter and terms of reference which clearly
set out ts authonty and dutes These can be found
on the company website at www pearsan.com/
investors/shareholder-informauon/governance
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman Ken Hydon

Members Dawvid Ai culus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon and
Linda Lorimer

As a committee we welcome the new gover nance
requirements for the financial statements, enshrined
in the changes to the Code intreduced n 2013, and
in particufar that the report and accounts need to be
fair, balanced and understandable The producuen,
co-ordination and review of the annual report and
accounts is a substanual exercise which needs to be
undertaken within a relauvely short umeframe,
running alongside the formal audit process
undertaken by our external auditors tn order to
arrive at a position where the audit committee and
the board are sausfied with the overall fairness,
balance and dlarity of the document we discussed the
new reguirements and agreed with management a
robust process of review and approval

The commurtee 15 aware of the recommendations of
the Competimon Commission and the EUJ on audnt
tender and rotation, and currently expects that the
tender process will begin no later than 2017 for the
2018 financial year end. The committee reviews the
auditor’s independence on an annual basis and also
monirors on a quarterly basis the nature and level of
non-audit fees payable to them As described laterin
this report, during 2013 Pearson spent a cansiderable
amount of non-audit fees with PwC In the main, this
expenditure related to specific assurance and tax
adwvisory services assoctated with the planned
creaton of the venture between Penguin and
Random House, and both management and the audit
committee believe that using PwC for these services
was the most pracuical and economucal solution for
the company We anticipate that this level of
non-audit fee 15 unusual, and that the balance of audit
10 non-audst fee pad to PwC will return to more
normal {evels in 2014

As | have said 1n previous years, a key part of the

role of the commuttee s in providing oversight and
reassurance to the board with regard to the mwegriy
of the company’s financial reporting, mternal control
policies, and procedures for the identficanon,
assessment and reporting of risle. The latter two

have been a particular focus for the Pearson audit
committee throughout 2013 as the company
embarked on such a wide ranging and significant
transformationat and organisanonat change through
the faunch of its global education strategy Agan,
committee meetings are always attended by the civef
financral officer and SVP internal audit and comphance
and our external auditors, and others often attend by
nvitatton, including the chief executive and chairman

Dunng the year the audit committee contimued

to interact with local and business management,
and in particular spent tme with local management
during their visit to South Africa, discussing the
implementation of the company’s anti-bribery and
corruption pahcy. data protection, disaster recovery
planning, risk registers and the Pearson code of
conduct. The committee also added an addmonal
fifth meetng to its annual calendar, both to allow an
appropnate amount of urme be set aside for
consideration of all relevant matters, as well as to
allow us to focus on a number of rsk deep-dives, in
parucular on data security and privacy, treasury nsk
and ant-bribery and corruption

In August 2013, Susan Fuhrman stood down from the
board and audit commuttee, and art the end of 2013,
Josh Lews stood down from the commitiee and has
been replaced by Linda Lorimer We thank Susan and
Josh for thew wise counsel over the last few years and
welcome Linda

Ken Hyden
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Members

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-executive directors and have financial and/or
related business experience due to the sentor postuons
they hold or have held in other listed or publicly traded
companies and/or similar public organusations

Ken Hydon, chairman of the commuttee, 1s the
company’s designated financial expert He 1s a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Association of Corporate
Treasurers He also serves as audit commuiitee
charrman for Reclutt Benckiser Group plc and Merlin
Entertainments pic and unul 2012 for Tesco pic and
Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust.

The qualfications and refevant experience of the other
committee members are detalled on page 56

Role and responsibilities

The committee has written terms of reference winch
clearly set out its authority and duties These are
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
website at www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
information/governance

The commutee has been established by the

board primanty for the purpose of overseeing the
accountng, financial reporting, imemal control and risk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financal statemenits of the company

The commuttee Is responsible for assisting the board's
oversight of the quality and integnity of the company's
external financtal reporung and statements and the
company's accounting policies and pracuces.

The group’s internal auditor has a dual reportung Iine
to the chief financial officer and chair of the commuttee
and external auditors have direct access to the
committee to raise any matter of concern and (o
report on the results of work dwecred by the
comnuttee The comimittee reports to the full beard
al every board meeting immedtately following a
commuittee meetng It also reviews the independence
of the external auditors, including the provision of
non-audit services (further detaills of wiuch can be
found on page 73 and note 4 to the financial
statements), and ensures that there 1s an appropriate
audit relationship and that audior objectiviry and
independence 15 upheld

External audit

Based on management's recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appointment
of the external auditors The comrmuittee reviewed the
effecuveness and independence of the external
audirors during 2013 and remains sausfied that the
audizors provide effective independent challenge

1o management

The review was conducted by distnbuting a
questuonndire to key audit stakeholders ncluding
members of the audit committee, the chief executive,
chief financial officer SVP company secretanal, SVP
wternat audic and compliance, operating company
CFOs and heads of corporate funcuons In relation 1o
specific comments received, the lead audit partner
explamed to the committee how PwC were
monitoring and reviewing each highiighted area and
confirmed that they would consider how to adapt their
approach in hght of feedback

In addinon, in accordance with our external auditor
policy, Group thternal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
This review takes into account mtemal znd external
information and benchmarks and forms the basis for
a recommendaucn by the comnmuttee to the board in
respect of the appomntment and compensation of our
external auditor

Recognising the importance of maintaining auditor
independence and objectivity, the commuttee paid
parucular attention to this matter during 2013 PwC
were appointed to provide assurance procedures over
the completton balance sheet and tax adwice on the
Penguin Random House transacuon This decsion was
made only after careful consideration of the
alternaunves, as well as ensuring that appropriate
safeguards were put in place to maintain independence
As a result of this deaiston, non-audit fees paid to PwC
exceeded Pearson's target proportion of audi fees
during the year
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The committee will contnue 1o review the
performance of the external auditors on an annual
basis and will consider their independence and
objecowity, taking account of alf appropriate gurdelines
There are no contractual obligations restricung the
commuttee’s choice of externat auditors tn any event,
the external auditors are required to rotate the audit
partner responsible for the Group audit every five
years The current lead audit partner rotated onto the
Group's audit in 2013

Pearson s last audit tender was in respect of the 1996
year end resulting n the appointment of Price
Waterhouse as auditors Given the recent rotation of
lead audit partner ahead of the 2013 reporung period
and giving careful consideration to the uming and other
pracucalives of undertaking a formal audst tendering
process, the comimittee agreed that a tender process
would commence no later than 2017 to ensure
auditors have been appomted in ume for the 2018 year
end audit, following the end of the current lead

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

Pengun Random House transaction

A number of complex accounung and business
maodel changes including disposal accounting,
valuaton of the new husiness and intangibles
assoclate accounting including has monisauon of

partner’'s term The committee 1s also monttoring
developments from the Competition Commission on
audit tendering and at EU level regarding mandatory
audit rotation for listed comparues, and will factor
any legislative requirements nto its future plans for
audit tender

Significant issues

During the year, the commuttee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit as

it proceeded.

Az the July 2013 audit committee meenng, the
committee discussed and approved the auditors’
Group audit plan and reviewed the key nisks of
misstatement of the Group's financal statements,
which were updated at the December 2013
committee meeting The table below sets out the
significant issues considered by the audit committee
together with details of how these items have been
addressed

HOW [SSUES WERE ADDRESSED

The commuttee discussed this rssue at a number of meetings, including
reviewing management's discussion of the significant accounting judgements
and esomates and monionng the views of the external audrors The
committee and management have visibility of Pengumn Random House's
accounung to ensure that all accountng policies, valuauons and adjustnents

accounting policses, changes to exisung operaung e considered in Pearson’s accounts The committee morntors and, where

model of shared services, infrastructure and
corporate costs such as pensions

appropriate, challenges mitigating acuons by management These acuons
incfude key Sarbanes-Oxley controls over acquisiion and disposal accounting

mcluding review by the techrucal accounting team, use of excernal valuation
experts and use of iocal management to ensure that policies and operating
model are communicated and adjusted as required

Revenue recognition

The committee receives a regular presentation from Mmanagement on revenue

This 15 considered significant in hght of a number  recogniton and rouunely monitors the views of the external audiors on this

of products and services sold by Pearson where
revenue recognBon pracuces are complex and
mariagement assumptions and eskmates ate
ABCESSErY

issue The commuttee has wisibility to internal avdit findings refating to revenue
recognition controls and processes, the related management action plans

and omely dosure of open issues The commitiee monmitors and, where
appropriate challenges nutigating acnons by management. These actons

incfude key Sarbanes-Oxley controls and identification of significant contracts
through the ‘large and unusual process, such that accountng wreatment can
be agreed by specialists
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

US tax acuviry

Changes 10 processes, structure and sirategy in
2012 and 2013, and IRS audit actvity

impairment of goodwill and intangibles

The Group carries ssgruficant goodwill and
acquired intangible asset balances There s
Judgement i the identfication and aggregation
of cash generating units (CGUs} and in the
assumptions used in the annual goodwill
HMPAFMEnt review
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HOWY ISSUES WERE ADDRESSED

The committee met with the SYP Tax twice dunng 2013 discussed the tax
strategy and held a nsk deep dive mto the tax process in October Key tax
accounting matters mcluding judgements and estmates were reported to the
committee by management, and the committee monitored the views of the
external audiors on the company’s tax accounting The commitree monitors
and, where appropriate chailenges miugaung acuons by management These
actions include key Sarbanes-Oxfey rontrols in place i the US, and improved
UK central oversight to ensure critical jJudgements are appropriately reviewed
and understood

The committee considered the results of the Group's annual gocdwall
impairment review and management s judgements and assumptions used m
arrving at a valuaton for each of the Group s CGUs The key assumptions are
cash flows denved from strategic plans, fong-term growth rates and weighted
average cost of capial The comnuttee also considered sensimvives to changes
n assumptans and related disclosures as required by 145 36 ‘tmpawrment of
Assets’ The annual impairment review n 2013 showed that there was
sufficient headroom m each of the Group s CGUs and based on the sensitiity
analysss a reasonably possible change in any of the assumptions s unlikely to
cause an mmpatrment it any of the CGUs

The committee discussed these 1ssues with the
auditors at the tme of ther review of the half year
interim financal statements i july 2013 and agan at
the conclusion of thew audit of the financal statements
for the year tn February 2014 Ali the signdficant issues
were areas of focus for the auditors, as detaded in thew
report o pages 116 to 22

In December 2013, the commuttee discussed with the
auditors the status of thewr work, focusing in parucular
on internal controls and covering the significant 1ssues
outhned above

As the auditors concluded their audit, they explamed
to the committee

The work they had conducted over revenue, which
ncluded targeted procedures and testing of products
and services which were considered to have more
complex revenue recognition, such as muluple efement
arrangements (e g the provision of supplementary
print oc digital matenials or traming with textbooks)
and certamn fong-term contracts in the educatian
businesses,

Thewr evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the
Penguin Random MHouse transaction and assessment
of valuations of that business and associate accounting
The work they had done to understand the Group's
tax strategy and idenufy business and legislative risks,
to chailenge key underlying assumptions and assess
the recoverability of deferred tax assets,

» Their assessment and evaluation of returns provisions
and controls in the shipment and returns processes
particufarty in hght of the ongoing business transition
from prng to digital,

Their evaluation of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and wwventortes These are considered to be
materal and judgement 1s required to evaluate thewr
valuation. plus estmaung recaverability may be more
complex during the transiion to digital,

Their focus on goodwidl impairment due to the
Group's significant goodwilt and intangible asset
balances, and the work they had done to test
management’s imparrment analysis, underlying
assumpuons, calculation of discount and growth

rates and integrity of the valuaton model,

The results of thewr controls testing to date for
Sarbanes-Oxley Act section 404 reporting purposes
and in support of their finanaial starernents audt, and
The review of the company's 'going concern’ reports

~

~

N

~

The auditors &lso reported to the committee the
musstatements that they had found in the course
of theirr work, which were insignificant, and the
committee confirmed that there were no
material items remaining unadjusted in these
financial statements
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Traming

The committee receves regular technical updates

as well as specific or personal tratning as appropriate
During 2013, the committee discussed with PwC atan
audit commitiee meeung the new Code requirement
for the annual report and accounts to be far, balanced
and understandable’, and the disclosure commttee
undertook a training session on the subject

Committee members also meet with focal
management on an ongoing basis in order to gain
a better understanding of how Group policies are
embedded n operations

Meetings

The committee met five umes durng the year with
the following m attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and complance, members of the
semor management team, and the external auditors
Additionally, the chief executive and charrman
periodically attended comnuitee meetings The
committee also met regularly in private with the
external auditors and the SVP internat audi and
compliance

At every meeting, the committee considerad reports
on the actvites of the Group internal audit funcoon,
including the results of internal audits, sk reviews,
project assurance reviews and fraud and
whistleblowing reports The commuttee also monitored
the company's financial reporung, nternal controls

and risk management procedures, reviewed the
non-audit services provided by PwC and considered
any significant legal claims and regulatory issues in the
context of their impact on financal reporting

Specifically, the commuttee considered the following
matters during the course of the year

The 2012 annual report and accounts preliminary
announcement, financal statements and income
statement,

The Group accounting policies,

Complitance with the Code,

Form 20-F and related disclosures including the annual
Sarbanes-Oxiey Act section 404 atrestation of financial
reporung internai controls,

Receipt of the external auditors’ report on the Form
20-F and on the vear end audit

Penguin Random House transaction ~ accounting
marters,

» Assessment of the effecuveness of the Group's internal
control environment,

» Reappontment, remuneration and engagement letter
of the external audiors,

» Prowiston of nan-audit services by PwC,

» Review of the interim financial statements and
announcement,

» Review of key findings of over |06 Group mnternal
audits and speciat projects,

> Annual reapproval of the Group internal audit
mandate,

» Compliance with SEC and NYSE requirements
including Sarbanes-Oxley Act,

» Reviews of the effectiveness of the audit committee,
the external auditors and the Group tternal audit
funcuon,

» Externat auditor benchmarking

» Review of the committee’s terms of reference,

> Annual internal audit plan,

> Review of company risk maps and rinigating actions for

top nisks,

Risk deep dives — anti-bnbery and corrupuon, data

security and privacy, and treasury risk,

tmplementation of new health and safety strategy,
policy and reporung of any significant inaidems;

Fraud, whistdeblowing and code of conduct matzers,

Review of Group fax strategy, tax risks and tax

deparumental structure, and

Annual review of treasury policy and strategy

~

[ RV

v

At s December meetng, the committee considered
the Group’s business contnuity planning, the latest
internal report on which indicated that readiness to
withstand significant business interruption does not
currently meet Pearson’s own stringent standards

it was noted that workable plans generally existed but
that, in ight of the scale of business transformation,
these plans had not been updated or tested within
the past year The committee reported this risk to the
board at its December meeting where 1t was noted
that managenient had in principle accepted the level
of nsk on the basis that the restructured orgamisation
would change the focus of business conunuity plans
which would consequently require updating

in February 2014, the commuttee also considered
the 2013 annual report and accounts, including the
preliminary announcement, financial statements,
strategic report, directors' report and corporate
governance compliance statement
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Internal control and risk management

The directors confirm they have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of nsk
management and internal controls, including strategic,
financial, operational and comphance controls and nisk
franagement systems, i accordance with the Code
and Turnbull guidance These systems have been
operating throughout the year and to the date

of this report

During 2013, the semi-annual reporang of top risks
was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and audit committee The principal risks are set
out on pages 41 to 45, together with mingating factors
During the year, the audit commuttee considered the
oversight of specific selected prinaipal nisks, through a
senes of nsk ‘deep dives’ This 1s covered m more
detal in the separate report on the audit committee

The key elements and procedures that have been
established to provide effective risk managernent
and nternal control systems are described below We
recogruse that during 2014, we will need to ahgn these
existing procedures to the new orgarnisation structure

Control environment

The board of directors has overall responsibiity for
Pearson’s system of internal control, which s designed
to manage. and where posstble miugate, the nisks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance aganst material financial
misstatement or loss

Responsibiiity for monitoning financial management and
reporting and risk management and intermnal control
systems has been delegated to the audit committee

by the board At each meeting, the audit committee
considers reports from management, Group mnterpal
audit and the external auditors, with the aim of
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal financial

and operating conirel environment cf the Group

The dentficauon and munigation of significant business
risks 1s the responsibiity of Group semor management
and the management team for each bustmess area —
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each business area, mcluding
the corporate centre, maintains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to Its structure, business
environment and nisk assessment, whilst complying
with Group polictes, standards and guidelines

Financial management and reporting

There 15 a comprehensive strategic planning, budgetng
and forecasting system with an annual operating plan
approved by the beard of directors Monthly financal
informauon, including trading results, balance sheets,
cash flow statements, capital expenditures and
indebtedness, 1s reported against the corresponding
figures for the ptan and prior years, with corrective
action outhned by the appropriate sentor executive
Group senior management meet periodically with
business area management to review theur business
and financial performance against ptan and forecast
Major risks relevant to each business area as well as
performance aganst the stated financial and serategic
objecuves are reviewed in these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effecuveness of controls in refation to the financial
reporting and consokdation process including the
refated information systems This includes up-to-date
Group financal policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, Group consofidation reviews and
amalysis of material vanances, Group finance technical
reviews, ncluding the use of technical speciahsts, and
review and sign-off by semor finance managers These
processes are subject to reviews based on Group
mternal audit’s nsk based audit programme The
Group finance function alsc monitors and assesses
these processes, through a finance compliance
function

These conirols include those over external financial
reporung which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is relevant to

our US hsung One key control in this area s the
disclosure committee, which reports directly to the
audit comnuttee This commuttee s chaired by the SVP
mnternat audit and comphance and members include the
chief financial officer, general counsel, SVP financial
communtcations, SVP company secretarial as well as
sentor members of financial management The primary
responstbility of this cammittee 15 to review Pearson’s
public reporting and disclosures to ensure that
informanon provided to shareholders 1s complete,
accurate and comphant with all applicable legislauon
and hisung regulations

The effecuveness of key firancial controls 15 subject
to management review and self-certfication and
ndependent evaluatior: by Group mternal audit
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An enterprise risk management (ERM) framework is 1n
place to identify, evaluate and manage risks, including
key financial reporting risks Business areas undertake
semi-annual nisk reviews 1o wentfy new or potenually
under-managed nisks Throughout the year, risk
discusstons are faciktated by the nsi assurance team
with Group and business area management to dentfy
the key nisks the company faces in achieving its
objectives, to assess the probability and impact of
those risks and to document the actions being taken to
manage those risks The Pearson Executive reviews the
output of these sessions, focusing on the key risks
facing the business Management has the responsibility
ta consider and execute appropriate acuion to nutigate
these risks whenever possible The results of these
reviews are reported to the audit commuittee and the
board in detail

Group internal audtt

The Group internal audit function s responsible for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audit committee on the design and effectveness of
internal controls to mingate strategrc, financial,
operational and complance risks The rsk-based
annual tternal audit plan 1s approved by the audu
comnuttee Management action plans to improve
nternal controls and to mitgate nisks, or both, are
agreed with each business area after each audit. Formal
follow-up procedures allow Group internal audit to
monitor busmess areas’ progress in implementing its
recommendations and to resolve any control
deficencies Group mternal audit has a formal
coflaboraton process m place with the external
auditors to ensure efficient coverage of internal
controls Regular reports on the work of Group
internal audit are provided to executive rmanagement
and, via the audit committee, to the board

The 5VP internal audit and compliance oversees
comphance with our code of conduct and works with
senior legal and human resources personnel to
trvestigate any reported incidents including ethical,
corruption and fraud altegatons The Pearson anu-
bribery and corruption programime provides the
frameworl to support our comphance with various
anu-bribery and corrupuion regulations such as the
UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its procedures are
reviewed regularly by the audit commitiee Major
transactions are authonsed outside the department
at the requsite tevel, and there 1s an appropriate
segregation of dutes Frequent reports are made
10 the chref financiat officer and regular reports are
prepared for the audit commuttee and the board

insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this (s avallable on a cost-effective basis
Pearson’s msurance subsidary, Spear insurance
Company Limited, 15 used to leverage the sk
retention capability of the Group and to achieve a
balance between retaiming insurance risk and
transferring it to external nsurers

Going concern

Having reviewed the Group's liquid resources and
borrowing facilites and the Group’s 2014 and 2015
cash flow forecasts, the directors beheve that the
Group has adequate resources to Continue as a gong
concern For this reason, the financal statements have,
as usual, been prepared on that basis Informaton
regarding the Group's borrowing habdittes and financial
risk management can be found i notes 18 and 19 on
pages 164 o {72

Share captal

Detads of share 1ssues are given in note 27 to the
accounts on page {85 The company has a single class
of shares which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinary shares are in registered form

As at 31 December 2013, 818,580,447 ordinary shares
were in issue At the AGM held on 26 Apnil 2013, the
company was authonsed, subject to certain condiions,
to acquire up to 81,746,807 ordinary shares by market
purchase Sharehclders wilf be asked to renew this
authority at the AGM on 25 Apnil 2014

information provided to the company pursuant to

the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website
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As at 4 March 2014, being the latest pracucable date
before the publication of this report, the company had
been notified under DTR5 of the followng significant
voung nights inits shares

Percentage

Number of as at daee of

vaung nghts noufncmo_r\_

Harbor International Fund 24598034  30i%
Libyan investment Authority 24,431,000 301%

Annual General Meeung (AGM)

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 25 Aprid 2014 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
Londorn WC2N 5BY, is contained m a aircular to
shareholders to be dated 24 March 2014

Registered audicors

In accordance with secuon 489 of the Act,

2 resolution proposing the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw(C) as auditors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of rernuneration to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

In line with best practice, our relanonship vith PwC

15 governed by our external auditors policy, whichhs
reviewed and approved annually by the audit
committee The policy establishes procedures to
ensure the auditors’ independence 15 not
comprormused, as well as defining those non-audit
services that PwC may or may not provide to Pearson
These allowable services are i accordance with
relevant UK and US legislation

The audic committee approves all audit and non-audit
services provided by PwC Certain categories

of allowable non-audit services have been pre-
approved by the audrt committee subject to the
authorities below

Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chuef financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative hmit of £500,000 per annum,
Acquisitton or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in hight of the need for confidentaity
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess of
£100,000 must be speciically approved by the audit
committee,

» Tax compliance and related activities up to the greater
of £1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit
fee, and

For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
tnost appropriate adwiser, usually after a tender
process Where we decide to use our independent
audrzors, authonty, up to £100,000 per project subject
to a cumutative it of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by Pw(C above these fumits and all
other alfowable non-audit services, irrespective of
value must be approved by the audit committee
Where appropriate, serwices will be tendered prior to
a deciston being made as to whether to award work to
the audhtors

~

The audit commuttee recetves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2013, Pearson spent a considerable amount of
non-audit fees with PwC In the main, this expenditure
related to specific assurance and tax advisory services
associated with the planned creation of the venture
between Penguin and Randorn House PwC were
selected only after consideration that it was most
pracucal and econoimcal to utilise PwC for these
services We anucipate that this level of non-audut fee
15 unusual, and that the balance of audit to non-audit
fee patd to PwC will returs to more normat levels
2014 Other significant non-audit work performed by
Pw(C during 20143 was

» Tax comphance services refated to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service;

» Assurance services on a corporate bond issued in
May 2013, and

» Other assurance services which were individually less
than £100,000 per project

I each case, PwC was selected as they were best able

o provide the services we required at a reasonable fee
and within the terms of out external auditors policy

To assist in ensuring that independence and objectivity

is maintained, for forward-tooking tax advisory and due
dihigence work PwC assign a different partner from the

one leadmg the external audit

A full statement of the fees for audit and services is
provided in note 4 to the accounts on page 14|
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Fai, balanced and understandable reporting

Pearson is mindful of the Code's revised principle C |
relating to fair, balanced and understandable reporting
and has accordingly burlt in addwonal steps to 1s
annual report tmetable to ensure that the directors
are given sufficient opportunity to review, consider and
comment on the report

The disclosure comimittee and the board each held an
additional meeting as part of their review process, and
members of the disclosure commuttee also attended a
trairung session prowided by PwC to better understand
the requirements In additton the audit commitiee

15 avadable to advise the board on certain aspects of
the report, to enable the directars to fulfif ther
responsibility in this regard

Statement of directors’ responsibthties

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annuat
report, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial statements in accordance with applicabie law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the directors have prepared the Group and parent
comparty financial statements in accordance vath
International Financial Reporting Standards ({FRSs)

as adopted by the European Union Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satishied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affars of the company
and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that pertod

in preparing these financral statements, the directors
are reguired to

Select sutabte accounung policies and then apply
them consistently

Make udgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonable and prudent,

State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements. and

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless it 1s napproprate to presume that the
company and/or the Group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial posiuon

~

i

of the company and the Group and enable them to
ensure that the financal statements and the report on
directors’ remuneration comply with the Act and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Artcle 4 of

the |AS Regulauon They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the Group
and hence for kg reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanues

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and
ntegrity of the company's website Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissermmaton

of financial statements may differ from legislaton

in other junsdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are
Iisted on pages 55 and 56, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge

The Group financal statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habidities, financial posiuon and profit of the Group and
company, and

The directors’ report contained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
company and Group, together with a description

of the pnnarpal nisks and uncertamnties that they face

The directors aiso confirm that, for all directors
wn office at the date of this report.

&) so far as the directors are aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditors are unaware, and

b} they have taken ali the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audrt informauon and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of that information

In addition, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the annual report, taken as a whole, 1s
fawr, batanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business modef and strategy

Sections one ta four of this document contam the
informaten required to be disclosed in the directors'
report and were approved by the board on |0 March
2014 and signed on its behalf by

<KLAL
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Additional information for shareholders

Set our below 1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson 1s required to disclose
in 1ts directors’ report

Amendment to Articles of Association

Any amandments to the Articles of Associauon of the
company {the Artcles) may be made i accordance
with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

(the Act) by way of a special resolution

Rights artaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
in the Articles A shareholder whose name appears
on the company’s register of members can choose
whether his/her shares are evidenced by share
certficates {: e n ceruficated form) or held
electronscally {1 e uncertdicated form) in CREST

(the electronic settlement system m the UK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
atend any general meeung of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder {or his/her
representative) who 1s present at a general meeung has
one vote on each resolution for every ordinary share
of which they are the registered holder A resolution
put tc the vote at a general meeting 1s decided on

a show of hands unless before, or on the declaranon
of the resuit of, a vote on a show of hands, a pollis
demanded A poll can be demanded by the chairman
of the meeung, or by at least three shareholders

(or thew representatives) present in person and having
the rnght to vote, or by any shareholders (or thesr
representatves) present in person having at least 10%
of the total votng rights of all shareholders, or by any
shareholders (or their representatives) present in
person holding ordinary shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up of at least 10% of the total sum
paid up on alf ordmary shares At tfus year's AGM
voung will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing
an ordinary resolutton but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the
board The board can pay wnternm dividends on any
class of shares of the amounts and on the dates and
for the periods they decide [n all cases the
distributable profits of the company must be sufficient
to justify the payment of the refevant dividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders, offer any shareholder the right to
elect to recewve new ordinary shares, which will be
credited as fully paid, mstead of thew cash dmwidend

Any dwidend which has not been claimed for {2 years
after it became due for payment will be forferted and
wilf then belong to the company, unless the directors
dectde otherwise

if the company 1s wound up, the hquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the dvsion shall be
carried out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The hiquidator can also, with
the same sancuon, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
of the shareholders

Voung at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company 1n relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether
i written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours
before the tme appomnted for holding the meetng
or adjourned meeting at wiich the person named

i the appoinument proposes 1o voie

Mo shareholder 1s, unless the board decides othearwise,
enutied to attend or vote erther personalty or by proxy
at a general meeting o to exercise any other nght
conferred by being a shareholder if he/she or any
person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice
under sectton 793 of the Act (which confers upon
public comparves the power 1o require mformation
with respect 1o interests (n their voung shares) and
he/she or any interested person faled to supply the
company with the informauen requested within

14 days after delivery of that nouce The board may
also decide, where the relevant shareholding comprises
at least O 25% of the normmnal value of the issued shares
of that class, that ng dvidend s payable in respect of
those default shares and that no wransfer of any default
shares shall be registered

Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to
hold shares, pending employees becoming entitled
to them under the company's employee share plans
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There were 9,282 365 shares so held as at

31 December 2013 Each trust has an independent
trustee which has full discretion in relation to the
voting of such shares A dividend waiver operates
on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestore which holds shares
on behalf of employees There were 4,564,039 shares
so held as at 31 December 2013 The beneficial
owners of shares held through Sharestore are

invited to submit voting instructions online at

www shareview co ule i no instructions are given

by the beneficial owner, the trustees holding these
shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transferof a
certificated share which 1s not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings i shares in the
company from talung place on an open and proper
basis The board may also refuse to register a transfer
of a ceruficated share unless (1) the instrument of
transfer 1s lodged, duly stamped (f stampable), at the
registered office of the company or any other place
decided by the board, and 1s accompanied by the
certificate for the share to which « relates and such
other evidence as the board may reasonably require
to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer, (i) 1t 15 1n respect of only one class of

shares, and (i} it s in favour of not more than

four transferees.

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an unceruficated share 10 accordance with
the regulations governing the operanon of CREST

Varation of rights

if at any tme the capital of the company 1s divided into
different classes of shares. the special nghts attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked either

{1} vath the written consent of the holders of at least
75% in norminal value of the ssued shares of the
relevant class, or

() with the sanction of a special resofutton passed at
a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

Without prejudice to any special nights previously !
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class

of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,

deferred or other special nghts, or such restricuons,

whether m regard to dwvidend, voting, return of capital

or otherwise as the company may from tme 1o time

by ordinary resolunon determine

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Arucles contain the following provisions i relation
to directors

Directors shall number no less than two Directors |
may be appointed by the company by ordinary

resolution or by the board A director appointed by (
the board shall hold office only untl the next AGM and

shall then be ehgible for reappointment, but shall not

be taken into account 1 determining the directors or

the number of directots who are to reure by rotation

at that meetung The board may from ume to ame

appoint one or more directors to hold executive office

with the company for such penod {(subject to the

provisions of the Act) and upon such terms as the

board may decide and may revoke or terminate any
appointment so made.

The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the
company, at least one-third of the directors shall retire
by rotation (or, if thewr number s not a muluple of
three, the number nearast to one-third}) The first
directors to retre by rotanion shall be those who wish
to retire and not offer themselves for re-efection Any
further directors so to reure shall be those of the other
directors subject to retirement by rotation who have \
been longest i office since they were last re-elected
but, as between persons who became or were last
re-elected on the same day, those to reure shail
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves)

be determined by lot In addivon, any director who
would not otherwise be required to retire shall

retire by rotauon at the thod AGM after they ware

last re-efected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles the
board has reselved that all directors should offer
themselves for re-elecnon annually, in accordance
with the Code

The company may by ordmary resolution 1 emave any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office
in addition, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the proviston of
his/her services to the company
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Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Arucles, the Act and any
direcuons given by special resolunon the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company. including
powers refating to the 1ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restrictions or restrictions imposed by shareholders
in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithng the counterparties to exercise termination

or other rights i the evem of a ¢hange of control

of the company

Under the $1,750.000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated November 2010 which matures

in November 2015 between, amongst others, the
company, H3BC Bank plc {(as facitry agent) and the
banks and financial inseitutions named therein as
lenders (the Faabty). any such bank may, upon a
change of controt of the company, require its
outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and 1ts commitments, o be cancelled, each
within 60 days of noufication to the banks by the facifity
agent For these purposes, a “change of control’ occurs
if the company becomes a subsidiary of any other
company or one or more persons actung either
indwidually or m concert, obtains controf (as defined

in sectton 1124 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010}

of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee
share plans rank pan passu with shares in issue and
have no special nghts For legal and practical reasons,
the rules of these plans set out the consequences of
a change of control of the company
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Dear shareholders

| am pleased to present our report on directors’
remuneration for 2013

The report and related resolutions will be put forward
for your consideranon and approval at the annual
general meeting on 25 Apnl 2014

| should tike to start by summanising the decisions on,
and the changes to, directors remuneraticn made
during the year and mmportantly the context in which
those changes occurred and deaisions have been taken

Pearson has a unique set of advantages with wiich to
help meet the global demands for better educaton and
skilfis And, by being better able to meet some of the
biggest challenges i global educanion, we canbuild a
stronger, more profitable and faster growing company

To get there Pearson has fundamentally changed the way
the company is organised From January this year,
Pearson is being run as one globally-connected educaron
company, working to an operating model designed
spectfically to support a global education strategy, and a
new executive team has been appointed to fead it. The
new model ensures that the caimpany will be organised
around a smaller number of global products and
platforms, built around a single, world-class mfrastructure
and comumon systems and processes

Over tme, this will help Pearson to grow more quickly,
as wwill free up resources 1o nvest in digital
transformation, and the new, more service orented,
products that are vital to future growth It should enable
the company to mcrease the rate of nnovaron and
nvention, by focusing on the research and development
of the next generauon of global products that will have
the data to demonstrate their positive impact on
fearning cutcomes

Pearson’s executive rermuneration arrangements have
been reviewed to align with and better support this
strategy Executive remurieration decisions have been
made after careful consideraton of the needs of the
business, the transformaunon and reorganusauon of the
business and the impact on roles and responsibilities,
the pay markets in which Pearson operates and
changes in pay elsewhere within the company

Ttus strategy also Informs our remuneraton phiosophy
and policy and complements our more tradiional
financtal measures In financial terms, Pearson's goal 1s to
achieve sustainable growth on three key financal goals
(earnings, cash and rewwsrn on invested capuial) and reliable
cash returns o our mvestors through healthy and
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growing dividends We believe those are, in concert.
good indicators that we are building the long-term
value of Pearson So those measures (or others that
contribute to them} form the basis of our annual
budgets and strategic plans and the basis for annual
and long-term Incentives

The remuneration commuittee 1s conunually sensttive
to the current social and economic environment
SUI"I‘OUHCIIng executive compensaton

We welcome the UK government's acuon to improve
the clarty and transparency of remuneration
disclosure We welcome the mitroduction of the new
executive remunerauon Freportng requirenents
including a new binding vote on policy

We hope that these changes will continue to
demonstrate the hink between our remuneration
pohicy and practice and the company's strategy and
performance, as well as our commitment to
shareheclder engagement

Performance n 2013
in 2013, trading was tough n many of our biggest
and most established markets Overall, we saw

sales up 2% on 2012 at constant exchange rates

adusted operaung profit 6% lower before net
restructuring charges

our dvidend rased 7% which was Pearson s 22nd
straight year of increasing our dividend above the
rate of inflation

Over the past ten years we have increased our
dwidend at a compound annual rate of 7% returning
£2 9bn to shareholders Restructuring 1s on track to
deliver benefits in 2014 and beyond

Principles of remuneration policy

The remuneration commuttee believes that the
purpose of its remunerauon policy 15 to support the
company's strategy and to help deliver sustainied
performance and consistent long-term value creation
tn the interests of all stakeholders

Our reward pohicy 1s aligned wath the interests of all
stakeholders n prowiding

compettive base salares that reflect the market and
indrividual rofes and contnibution

a high proporucn of total remuneration being delivered
in vanable forms that are diectly linked to the annual
and long-term performance of the company

annual incentives that reward achievement of
strategic goals
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long-term incentives that drive long-term earmings and
share price growth and encourage participants i these
plans 1o acquire and hold Pearson shares in line with
shareholders’ mterests

the opportunity for many people at Pearson to share
tn the company’s success through cash-based annual
incentives and bonuses and worldwide partcipation in
share ownership plans, continuing practrces first started
m 1998

We continue to keep our remuneration pohcy under
review 1n hght of the prevaitng economic conditions
and the impact of these on the company's objectives
and strategy

What we did m 2013
Loalang back to some speafic aspects of policy and
pracuce in 2013

we reviewed and established an approprate startng
remuneration package for John Fallon comprising base
salary, annual and long-term incentives, allowances
and benefits

we reviewed and amended the service agreements for
those executive directors, including the CEO, who
contnued to serve throughout 201 3. The consegquence
of this review was to remove any entitlemnent to annual
incentive from the calculation of any compensation that
might be payable on termination of employment by the
company without notice or cause

we undertook a regular periodic review of base salanes
for 2013 taking into account general economic and
market conditions, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneraton of
executives In simidar positons in comparable
companes and mdvidual performance

appointments were made to the new Pearson
Executive

annual ncentives paid to executives for 20{3 were
below target, as they were i 2012, reflecong
performance in a tough trading environment

there was a nd pay-out on long-term incentives based
an 2013 performance reflecting below threshold
performance against the company's three-year targets
for earnings per share growth, return on invested
capital and relative total shareholder return

What we've planned for 2014
Looking forward, for 2014

we have undertaken a full review of the company’s
executive retmuneraton policy and either confirmed or,
where necessary, established maximum opporturuties
for each of the different elements of remuneration te

o
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ensure that this pokicy fully supports the needs of the
business

we have aligned executive remuneration pohicy with
the new global educaton strategy and ‘one Pearson’
organisauon

we have listened to, and sought to address,
shareholders’ concerns and wishes regarding simplicity
and ahgnment of interests

we actively consulted with our major shareholders and
their representative bodies on the directors’
remuneration policy set outn this report

As a consequence

while we have established maximum opportunites for
each of the different elements of remuneration, in ali
cases these represent maximum limits or caps 1o cover
aff likely eventuahues for the life of the policy and
should not be deemed to be a target or an enutlement
For example, for 2014 there will be no ncrease in
maximum annual incentive opportunities and award
tevels under the long-term incentive plan will be
consistent with those seen in recent years and below
the policy maximum

startng 1 2014 and onwards, the size of the global
annual incentive poo!l and the funding of all annual
incentives across the company will be linked to overall
Pearson results

for performance-related long-term incentive awards
for 2014 for members of the Pearson Executive, to
emphasise the smportance of earmings growth and

to reward the delivery of the deswed outcormes from
the strategic effort, the weighting of the performance
metrics within the Pearson long-term incentive plan will
be changed from one-third on each measure to half on
earnings per share growth, one-third {no change} on
return on nvested capital and one-sixth on relauve
total shareholder return

for performance-refated long-term incentive awards
for 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calcutatnon of refauve total shareholder return will be
moved to the period runming up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be ncreased to
three months This s understood to be more in line
with mstrtutional investors’ preferences

o promote simplicity, the previous annual bonus share
matching plan has ceased to operate with the last
awards made i 2013 i respect of annuai bonus for
2012 We have not made any compensatory
adjustments to annual or long-term incentve
opportunities 7o take this into account
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

for performance-related long-term incentve awards
for members of the Pearson Executive, performance
will conunue to be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will conunue to be released at that
poit However, staring with awards for 2014, there
will be a mandatory restncuon on parucipants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% cof the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax habiliwes) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ nights to the release of the
15% of the vested shares will be subject to conunued
employment over the same periad

we have affirmed our commitment to share ownership
and wcreased our mandatory shareholding guidelines
to 300% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary for
other execuuve directors (compared to 200% and
125% respectively) We will continue to set
performance targers for our annual and long-term
mncenuve arrangements that zre appropriately
stretching

on incentive pay-outs, we have clarified our
arrangements for adjusting for malus and strengthened
our provisions for clawhack

We are confident that these changed remuneration
arrangements wall better su the needs of Pearson
gowng forward

QOur policy and inplementanion 1s summarised i more
detail in the rematnder of this report.

| look forward to the ongoing support of Pearson
shareholders on both the advisory vote on the
executive remuneration arrangements as they were
operated in the year as well as the forward-looling
remuneraton pohcy which s the subject of the
binding vote.

! am personally committed to an ongoing diafogue with
shareholders regarding executive remuneration and
would therefore welcome any observauons or
quesuons that individual sharehelders may wish to put
forward to me 1 can be contacted at

dawvid arculus@integral2 com

Finally, | would ke to thank my fellow members of the
comumittee and the people who have assisted us for
their contnbution over the past year

Yours sincerely,

David Arculus
Charrman, remuneration comittee

[ntroduction

The rest of this report on directors’ remuneration
comprises

» the directors’ remuneration policy report - a forward-
looking statement on remuneration policy for 2014 and \
beyond. and

» the annual remuneration report — a report on
remuneration practice in 2013
Together, thus report was compiled in accordance with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)

Regulations 2008 and was approved by the board of
directors on {0 March 2014 (

The committee believes that the company has
comphed with the provisions regarding remuneration
matters contamed within the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Where reauired under current regulations, the
following tables have been subject to audit

» single total figure of remuneration and prior year
comparison {page 97)

> remuneration paid to the charrman and non-executive
directors {page 98)

» retirement benefits (page 10})

» detatls of long-term share interests including awards
made in 2013 (pages 102 to 105}

> payments to former directors (pages [05 and [06)
» payments for loss of office (page [07) {

> interests of directors and value of shareholdings
(page 108)
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Directors’ remuneraton policy report

This report outlines the company's policy on dwectors’
rernuneration that apples 1o executive directors the
chairman and non-executive directors Reference is also
made to the remuneraton pohcy for other members of
the Pearson Executive (currenty {3 i number) who are
not directors but who fall wathin the commuttee’s rermit

The policy is intended to last three years and will take
effect, subject to shareholder approval, at the AGM on
25 Apni 2014

The policy report ts comprised of the following parts

future policy table
selection of performance measures and target settng

legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

remuneration policy for other employees
pay and performance scenano analysis

other pohicies refaung to directors such as recruitment,
service contracts and termnation provisions, executive
directors’ non-executive directorships

considerations taken nto account when determining
remuneration policy for directors

chairman's and non-executive directors’ remuneraton

The committee considers that a successful
remuneration policy needs 1o be sufficiently flexible
to talee account of future changes in the company's
business environment and in remuneration practice
Our starting point continues to be that total
remuneration should reward both short- and long-
term results, delvering competiuve rewards for
target performance but outstanding rewards for
exceptional performance

Section 4 Governance 8l

The commuttee has avoided, where possible, including
general discreuons in the policy table However,
exceptional or genunely unforeseen circumstances
may artse in the future and in those ciIrcumstances it
may be in shareholders’ interests for Pearson to put n
place remuneratton arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy set out in this report If this
happens, the committee will be permitted o
implement remuneration arrangements that 1t
considers appropriate tn the arcumstances In these
crcumstances, Pearson would consult in advance with
major shareholders before it does so and would
explain the exercise of this discretion in the following
year’'s directors’ remuneration report

Gwven the long-term nature of some of Pearson's
remuneration structures — including obhigations under
service contracts, incenuve plans and penston
arrangements — a number of pre-existing obligations
will remain at the ume that the new policy becomes
effective, including obligations that are ‘grandfathered’
by virtue of being in force at 27 June 2012 Pearson's
policy 15 to honour all pre-existing obhgations,
commitments or other enutlements that were entered
into before the effective date of this pohcy
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Future pohicy table for execuuve directors

Total remuneration 1s made up of fixed and performance-linked elements, with each element supporting different

strategic objectives Total remuneration s normally reviewed annually and benchmarked against total
remuneraton for similar pesittons in comparable companies

Base salary

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
» Helps to recrust, reward and retamn

» Reflects compeutive market level, role, slalls,
experience and indmidual contribution

OPERATION

Base salares are set to provide the appropriate rate
of remuneration for the job, taking into account
relevant recruttment markets, busmess sectors and
geographic regions Base salaries may be set 1n
sterling or the local currency of the country in which
the director 15 based.

Base safaries are normally reviewed annually for the
following year taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the fevel of increases made
across the company as a whole, partcular
circumstances such as changes in role, responsibiities
or orgamsaton, the remuneraton and level of
increases for executives in simifar posiions mn
comparable companies, and indndual performance

For benchmarking purposes, we review
remuneration by reference to different comparator
groups We lool at survey data from FTSE 100
companies with significant internanional expasure,
excluding financral services, the FTSE 20-50,
excluding financial services, a broad media industry
group of US comparues, select UK human capritad-
ntensive bustnesses, and UK and US so-called media
convergence companies with a focus on media,
informanion services and technology These
companies are of a range of sizes relative to Pearson,
but the method our independent advisers, Towers
Watson, use to make comparisors on remuneration

takes this varation 1n size inte account We also look
at publicly disclosed and proxy data for global media
convergence comparators with a focus on media and
technology We use these companies because thay
represent the wider executive talent pool from
which we mught expect to recruit exeernally and the
pay market to which we might be vulnerable f our
remuneration was not competitive

Base salaries are paid in cash via the regular employee
payroll (monthly in the UK and every two weeks in
the US) and are subject to all necessary withholdings

MNe malus or clawback provisions apply to base
salary

GPPORTURITY

Base salary ncreases for executive directors will
not ordinarily exceed 0% per annum and will take
account of the base salary increases elsewhere
within the company

The committee will t etain the discretion to deliver
base salary increases in excess of 10% per annum
i spectfic individual situations includmg nternal
promotions and material changes to the business
or the role

PERFORMANCE COMDITIONS

None, although performance of both the company
and the individual are taken into account when
deterrriming an appropriate level of base salary
increase each year

PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None




Allowances and benefits

PURPOSE AND LIMK TQ STRATEGY

» Help to recruit and retain

» Reflect local competitive market
CQPERATION

Allowances and benefits comprise cash allowances and
non-cash benefits and nter aha include travel-related
benefits (comprising company car car allowance and
private use of a driver), health-related benefits
(comprising health care, health assessment and gym
subsidy), and risk benefits (comprising additional life
cover and long-term disability nsurance that are not
covered by the company's retirement plans)
Allowances may also include, where approprate,
focation and market premiurn and housing allowance
although no conunuing director 1s in receipt of such
allowances Allowances and benefits received n 2013
are set out In the annual remuneration report

[hrectors are also covered by the company’s
directors’ and officers’ hability insurance and an
indemnity tn respect of certain third-party habilities

Other benefits may be offered on the same terms
as to other employees

Allowances and benefits do not form pait of
pensionable earmings

No malus or clawbaclk provisions apply 1o
altowances and benefits

Retirement benefits

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

» Help to recruit and retamn

» Recognise long-term commitment o the company
OPERATION

New employees in the UK are eligible to join the
Money Purchase 2003 secuon of the Pearson Group
Pension Plan New employees in the US are eligible
to join the 401 (k) plan

Under the Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan in the UK, normal
retirement age ts 62 but, subject to company
consent, retirement s currently possible from age 55
or earhier in the event of ii-health Duning service, the
company and the employee make contributions mto
a pension fund Account balances are used to provide
benefits at reurement Pensions for 2 member's
spouse, dependent children and/or nominated
financial dependants are payable on death

Secuocn 4 Governance

OPPORTUNITY

The provision and level of cash allowances and non-
cash henefits are compeutive and appropriate in the
context of the local market

The totaf value of cash allowances and non-cash
benefits for executive directors will not ardinarily
exceed 15% of base salary in any year The
comimittee will retain the discretion to dehiver a total
value of benefits in excess of 15% of base salary m
specific Individual situattons including changes in
individual circumstances such as health status,
changes 11 the role such as relocation, increases in
the cost of current benefits that are outside
company control, and changes in benefits’ providers

Executive directors are also eligible to parucipate in
savings-related share acquisitton programmes in the
UK, US and rest of world, which are not subject to
any performance conditions, on the same terms as
other employees

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

None

PERFOAMANCE PERICD

None

Under the 401 (k) plan in the US which s a defined
contribution plan. account batances wili be used to
provide benefits at retirement In the event of death
before reurement, the account balances wilt be used
to provide benefits for designated beneficraries

Drepending on when they joined the company,
directors may participate in the Final Pay sectuon of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan in the UK or the
defined benefit Pearson lnc Pension Plan i the US,
both of which are closed to new mernbers

Under the Final Pay secuion of the Pearson Group
Penston Plan in the UK, normal reurement age is 62,
but, subject to company consent, retirement Is
currently possible from age 55 or earher m the event
of di-health During service, the employee makesa
contribuuon of 5% of pensionable salary and the
pension fund builds up based on final pensionable
salary and pensionable service The accrued pension
ts reduced on retirement prior to age 60. Pensions for
a mermber's spouse, dependent children and/or
nomnated financial dependants are payable on death
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Retirement benefits conunued

In the US, the defined beneftt Pearson inc Pension
Plan provides a lump sum benefit that 1s convertble
0 an annuity on retrement The Jump sum benefit
accrued at an age dependent percentage of capped
compensatian untl 31 December 2001 when further
benefit accruals ceased for most employees

Employees who sausfied criteria of age and service
as of 30 November 1998 continue to earn benefits
under an alternative formula that prowvides for | 5%
of final average earmngs, adjusted for US Social
Secunty The benefit paid to these employees is the
maximum of the lump sum benefit converted to an
annuity and the benefit earned under the alternative
fina! average earnings formula

Executive directors and other executives across the
company ray be entitted to additional penston
benefits 1o take account of the cap on the amount of
benefits that can be provided from the all-employee
pension arrangements in the US and the UK

Members of the Pearson Group Pension Plan who
joined after May 1989 are subject to an upper hmit
of earnings that can be used for pension purposas,
known as the earmings cap This irut, £108,600 as at
& April 2006, was abotlished by the Finance Act 2004
However the Pearson Group Pension Plan has
retamned its own ‘cap’, which will increase annually in
line with the UK Government's Index of Retad Prices
{All ltems) The cap was £137.400 as at 6 April 2012
As a result of the UK Government's A-Day changes
effective from April 2006, UK executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Group Pension
Plan who are, or become, affected by the ifetme
allowance or new hires who opt out of membership
of the Plan may be provided with a cash supplement
of normally up to 26% of salary as an alternatve to
further accrual of pension benefits

No malus or clawback provisions apply o
retirement benefits

MWoie tfecive frova & Apnl 2311 (he vzl allvwance (e the n ven unt
smouat of peratm, s s 1 roenelits fom tax relief rachoesr) reciced
nom £255 000 10 £50 000 and witl further reduce 1o 140 000 Hrom 6 Aprd
2014 Fecuse 6 Aprit 2617 the Wenme allowance { e the maximuom amant
of penaan and/or lump sum that cen benefil § om tax relef) redured from

£ 8meo £ 5ns and will further reduee to £1 25m from 6 Aprif 2014

QFPORTUNITY

tn the UK, company contributions for eligible
employees to the Money Purchase 2003 secuon of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan amount up to 6%
of pensionable salary (double the amount of the
employee contribution, which is imited according
to certain age bands)

In the US, company contributions to the 401{k) plan
amount to 100% of the first 3% of eligible
compensatton contributed by the employee and 50%
of the next 3%, plus a basic annual company
contribution of | 25% of ehgible compensation
Pearson Inc Pension Plan paructpants who were at
teast age 40 at 31 Decembrer 2001 can recerve an
addinonal 0 5% to | 5% of pay

fohn Falton s a member of the Finat Pay section of
the Pearson Group Pension Plan His pension accrual
rate is {/30th of pensionable salary per annum,
restricted to the plan earmings cap Untl April 2006,
the company also contributed to a Funded
Unapproved Retirement Benefits Scheme (FURBS)
on his behalf. Since Aprit 2006, he has received 3
taxable and non-pensionable cash supplement in
replacement of the FURRBS

Robin Freestone 1s a member of the Money Purchase
2003 secuon of the Pearson Group Pension Plan
Company contributions are 16% of pensionable
salary per annum, restricted to the pian earnings

cap Untl April 2006, the company also contrbuted
to a Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefits
Scheme (FURBS) on his behalf Since April 2006,

he has received a taxable and non-pensionabie

cash supplement in replacement of the FURBS

The company has no ongoing financial habidities i
respect of FURBS

Noa conunuing director ts currently a member of
the defined benefit Pearson inc Pension Plan

PEARFCGPMAMNCE CONDITIONS
None
PEAFQRMANCE PERIOD

None




Annual mcentives

PURPOSE AND LINK TO STRATEGY

» Motuvate the achievemnent of annual strategic goals
and personal objecuves

» Provide a focus on key financial metrics

» Reward indwiduat contribution to the success of
the company

QPERATION

Annualincentive 1$ delivered entirely in cash and
does not form part of pensionable earnings

Measures and performance targets are set by the
committee at the start of the year with payment
rmade after year end foliowing the committee’s
assessment of performance relative to targets

The plans are designed to incentivise and reward
underlymg performance and actual results are
adjusted for the effect of foreign exchange and for
portfolio changes (acquisitions and disposals) and
other factors that the commutiee considers refevant
in the performance year

Annual incentive plans are disct etionary The
committee reserves the right to adjust payments
up or down before they are made if it believes
exceptional factors warrant doing so The
comimttee may it exceptional circumstances make
a special award where it 15 satusfied that the normal
operation of the annual incentive does not provide
an appropriate incentive or reward to participants.

The committee also reserves the right as a form

of malus to adjust payments before they are made
if specral arcumstances exist that warrant this, such
as financial misstatement, mndividual misconduct

or reputationai damage to the company

The committee also reserves. int the same special
arcumstances, a nght to reclaim or claw back
payments or awards that have already been made.

COPPORTUNITY
Annual incentives will not exceed 200% of base satary

For the chief executive the individual maxirmum
incentive opportunity that will apply for 201415 {80%
of base salary (which 1s the same as apphed for 2013)

For other executive directors and other members
of the Pearson Executive, individual maximum
rcentive opportunities vary by individual but will be
no more than 170% of base salary

Secuon 4 Governance

For the chief executive, other executive directors
and other members of the Pearson Executive, there
ts normally no pay-out for performance at threshold

No adjustment has been made to annual imcenuve
opportunites for the cessatron of the annual bonus
share matching plan under which the last conditional
awards were made in 2013 0 respect of 2012 annual
incentive

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

The commuttee has the discretion to select the
performance measures, targets and relative
weightings from year to year to ensure continuing
ahgnment with strategy and to ensure targets are
sufficiently stretching

The commuttee establishes a threshold below which
no pay-out s achteved and a maximum at or above
which the annual incentive pays out in full

For 2014 and onwards, the funding of annual
incentives will normally be related to the
performance agamst targets for Pearson’s adjusted
earnungs per share (or operating profit), sales, and
operating cash flow For 2014, the wesghtungs will be
60% on adjusted earnings per share, 20% on sales
and 20% on operating cash flaw

individual annual incentive pay-outs will also take
ito accauntindividual performance against personal
objectives Personal objecuves are agreed with the
chief executive (or in the case of the chief executive,
the chairman} and may be functional, operational,
strategic and non-financial and indude inter afia
objectives relating to environmental, socal and
governance issues

Details of performance measures, weightings and
targets will be disclosed in the annual remuneration
report for the relevant financial year if and to the
extent that the commuttee deems them to be no
longer commercially sensitive

PERFORMANCE PERIQOD

One year
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Report on directors’ remuneration conttnued

Long-term incentives

BURPOIE AND LINK TO STRATEGY
» Help to recruit, reward and retam

» Dirve long-term earnungs, share price growth and
value creation

» Align the interests of executives and shareholders

> Encourage long-term shareholding and
commitment to the company

» Link management's long-term reward and wealth
to corporate performance in a flexiblc way

OPERATION

Awards of restricted shares are made on an
annual basis

Awards of restincted shares for executive directors
and other members of the Peat son Executive vest
on a shding scale based on performance agamst
stretching corporate performance targets measured
at the end of the three-year performance period

For performance-related awards for members of
the Pearson Executive, performance will continue
to be tested over three years and 75% of the vested
shares wilt continue to be released at that pomnt
However, starting with awards made wn 2014, there
will be a mandatory restriction on partcpants’
ability to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares
{othet than to meet personal tax habiliwes) for

a further two years Furthermore, participants’
rights to the release of the 25% of the vested shares
will be subject to continued ermployment over the
same period

Where shares vest, partucipants also receive
addiional shares represenung the gross value of
dividends that would have been paid on these shares
during the performance period and reinvested

The plan permits awards of restricted shares to be
made that are not subject to performance condrtions
to sausfy reward and retention objectives However,
other than m exceptional circumstances on
recruitment, 1t 1 the company’s normal policy not to
award restricted shares to executive directors and
other members of the Pearson Executive without
performance conditions

The long-term incentve plan also provides for the
grant of stock options Whiist 1t1s not the
committee’s itention to grant stock opitons in 2014
or the foreseeable future, the committee beheves
that st should retain the flexibility of granting stock
opucns in addiuon to, or instead of, resinicted stock
awards in the right circumstances Any decsion by
the commuttee to grant stock options in the future

would take account of best pracuce prevaiding at
the time The committee would consult with
shareholders before granung stock options to
executive directors

An opuion granted under the stock option element
may not generally be exercised until a pmie specified
when the option 1s granted The date on which
aptions would become exercisable would be set by
the committee Options may not be exercised later
than the tenth anniversary of grant Any options
granted to executive directors would vest only if
stretching performance conditions are achieved over
a three-year miimum vestung period Any options
would vest on a sliding scale based on performance
over the pertod There will be no re-testing

Pearson's reported financial results for the relevant
periods are used to measure performance

The commntee reserves the right to adjust pay-outs
up or down before they are released taking into
account exceptronal factors that distort underlying
business performance orif it beheves exceptional
facrors warrant doing so In making such
adjustments, the committes 1s guided by the
principle of aligning shareholder and management
Interssts

The commuttee also reserves the right as a form

of malus to adjust pay-outs before they are released
if excepuional crcumstances exist that warrant this,
such as financial misstatement, indvidual misconduct
or reputational damage to the company

The cammttee also reserves, in the same special
crcumstances, a nght to reclam or dlaw back pay-
outs or awards that have already been refeased

OPPORTUNITY

We set the levet of individual awards by wakung into
account

» the face value of Indwidual awards at the tme of grant,
assuming that performance targets are met i full,

» market practice for comparable companies and
market assessments of total remuneratton from
our independent adwisers,

y individual roles and responsibilities, and
» company and indtvidual performance

Restricted share awards to executive directot s may
normally be made up to a maximum face value of
400% of base salary Awards in excess of 400%

of base satary may be made in exceptional
arcumstances, for example, for retention purposes
or to reflect particular business situauons




The reasons for any such excepuonal awards will be
disciosed in the annual report for the year tn which
they are made

The value of awards at pay-aut s subject to the
extent to which performance and any other
conditions are met and the share price at the time
of vesting The proportion of the award that vests
at threshold level of performance may vary by
performance condition

Whulst 1t 1s not the commuttes’s ntention to grant
stock options i1 2014 or the foreseeabie future the
maximum value of stock opuion awards would be
the equivalent expected value of the maximum
restricted share awards set out above, based on an
independent assessment of their net present value
taking inta account all the condinons

For 2014, we will set the level of individual restnicted
share awards consistent with those seen in recent
years and wathin the pohicy maximum taking into
account the factors set out above

No adustment has been made to long-term
incentive opportunities for the cessauon of the
annual bonus share matching plan under which the
{ast condinonal awards were made in 2013 1n respect
of 2012 annual incentive.

PERFORMAMNCE CONDITIONS

The committee will determine the performance
measures, weightings and targets governing an
award of restricted shares prior to grant to ensure
continuing ahignment with strategy and to ensure
that targets are sufficiently stretching

The commuttee establishes a threshold below which
no pay-out is achieved and a maximum at or above
which the award pays out in full

For 2014 and onwards, awards will normally be
subject to the achievement of targets for growth n
earnings per share, return on invested capital and
refanve zotal shareholder return. For 2014, to
emphasise the importance of earnings growth and to
reward the delivery of the desired outcomes from
the strategic effort, the weighting of the performance
metrtcs within the Pearson long-term incenuve plan
wifi be changed from one-third on each measure 1o
half on earnings per shat e growth one-third on
return on invested capital (no change) and one-sixth
on relative total shareholder return
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We will set targets for the 2014 awards that are
consistent with the company’s strategic objectives
over the periad to 2016 Full details of the
performance measures, weightings and targets for
2014 and the proporuon of the award payable at
threshold will be set out in the annual remuneration
report for 2014

As with restricted shares, the committee will
determine the performance conditions that apply
to any awards of stock options prior to grant

The intention would be that these condiions would
be the same as apply to restricted shares

Total shareholder return (TSR} s the return to
shareholders from any growth in Pearson's share
price and reinvested dividends over the performance
period Foriong-term incentive awards, TSR s
measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE
World Media Index over a three-year period
Compantes that drop out of the index are normally
excluded 1 e only comparnies in the index for the
enttre pertod are counted Share price I1s averaged
over three months at the start and end of the
performance pertod Dividends are treated as
renvested on the ex-dividend date, in ine with the
Datastrearn methodology The vesting of shares
based on relative TSR 15 subject to the committee
satisfying wself that the recorded TSR s a genuine
reflection of the underlying financial performance
of the business

Return on invested capital (ROIC) is adjusted
operating profit less cash tax expressed as a
percentage of gross invested caprtal (net operaung
assets plus gross goodwill)

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) s caiculated by
dividing the adjusted earnings attributable to equity
shareholders of the company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the
year, excluding any ordinary shares purchased by the
company and held in trust (see note 8 of the financial
statements for a detailed description of adjusted
earnings per share) EPS growth is caleulated using
the point-to-point method This method compares
the adjusted EPS in the company's accounts for the
financial year ended prior to the grant date with the
adjusted EPS for the financial year ending three years
later and cafculates the implicit compound annual
growth rate over the period

PERFOEMANCE PERIDD
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Selection of performance measures and target setting

tn the selection and weighting of performance measures
for the annual and long-term incentive awards the
committee takes nto account Pearson's strategic
objectives and short- and long-term business priorities

In the case of annual incentives, the committee chose
sales earnings per share or operaung profit, and
operating cash fiow as being relevant measures of
Pearson’s performance agamst its short-term strategic
objectives and business prionues

In the case of long-term mcentives, the committee
chose earrings per share growth in order to reward
the delivery of the desired outcomes from the
strategic effort and because strong bottom-fine
growth s imperative if we are to improve our total
shareholder return and our return on invested capital
We chose return on mvested capital because, over the
past few vears, the transformation of Pearson has
sigruficantly mcreased the capital invested in the
business (mostly i the form of goodwill associated
with acquisitions) and required substantial cash
investrment to integrate those acquisitions We chose
total sharehoider return relative to the constituents
of the FTSE World Media index because, in ine with
many of our shareholders, we felt that part of
executive directors’ rewards should be linked to
performance relative to the company's peers

The performance ranges chosen set a careful balance
between upside opportwnity and downstde mslc and
are normally based on targets in accordance with the
company's operating and strategic plans

Legacy arrangements under the annuat bonus share
matching plan

Up to and mcluding 2013 in respect of annual incentives
{or 2012, awards were made under the annual bonus
share matrching plan This plan encouraged executive
directors and other senior managers to acquire and
hold Pearson shares and aligned the interests of
executives and shareholders Senior managers across
the company were invited to invest up to 507 of thewr
after-tax annual mcentive in Pearson shares purchased
in the market and hold these shares for three years,

n rewurn for the opportunity to earn addivonal free
matching shares and dividend shares, depending on
performance aganst a real growth m earmings per
share performance condiion Where matching shares
vest, participants also receive addittonal shares

repr esenting the gross value of dividends that wouid
have been paid on the matching shares during the
performance perod and resnvested The maximum
matchmg award s equal to the rumber of shares that

could have been acquired with the amount of pre-tax
annual bonus mvested in Pearson shares (1e one
matching share for every one invested share, grossed
up for tax)

Remuneration policy for other employees

The approach to remuneration for the broader
employee populatton varies by level and geography,
but is broadly consistent with that of directors

> The approach to setung base salary increases
elsewhere in the company takes mito account
economic factors, compettive market rates, roles,
skills, experience and individual performance

Allowances and benefits for employees reflect the
local labour market in which they are based

As part of thew overall retirement arrangements,
executive directors participate in the same
underlying pension arrangements that have been
set up for Pearson employees in the US and the UK

Many employees participate n some form of cash-
based annual mcentive, bonus, profit-share or sales
commisston plan Annual incentive plans for the
Pearson Executive form the basts of the annual
ncentive plans befow the leve! of the principal
operating companies and establish performance
measures and standards and set the cedling for
ndividual incentive opportunities

~

A

r

~

Approxsmately 5% of the company's employees
below the Pearson Executive - selected on the basis
of their role, performance and potential — currently
hold time-vesung shares under the long-term
incentive plan

N

All emplayees (including executive directors) are
also eligible to parucipate in savings-related share
acqussttion programmes in the UK, US and the
rest of the world, which are not subject to any
performance conditions

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Conststent with its policy, the commutiee places
considerable emphasis an the performance-linked
elementsie annual and long-term mcentives

The chart overleaf shows what each director
could expect to receive in 2014 under different
performance scenarios, based on the foltowing
defimitons of performance




ELLMENTS OF REMUNERATION
AND ASSUMPTIONS

PERFORMANCE
SCENARIC
2014 base salary, allowances
benefits and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base safary
as in 2013, maximum mdividuat
annual incentrve as per policy
maximum value of 2013 fong-term
incentive awai d

Maximum

Target 2014 base salary allowances
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as 1n 2013, target individual annual
incentive as per policy, target value
of 2013 long-ter m incentive award
{Towers Watson's independent
assessment of the expected value of
the award t e the net present value
taking into account all the condirons)

2014 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and reurement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
asn 2013, no annual or long-

term incentives

Mintimum

Noie The value of fong term incentve, docs not take into account ividend
awards that are payable on the release of restrected shares nor any changes
inshate price

On this basss, the relative weighung of fixed and
performance-related remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneration packages for the chief
executive and the chief finanaal officer are as follows

Graph removed

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-hnked remuneration on an annual basts,
consistent with our overall policy

Section 4 Governance 89

Recrumement

The committee expects any new executive directors
to be engaged on terms that are consistent with the
general remuneraton principles outhned in this policy
in partcular the cormpany’s policy is that regular
variable remuneration would normally be awarded
within the same parameters and subject to the same
performance conditions as for the current executive
directors outlined in the policy, save that the
committee may provide that in exceptional
arcumstances an annual or long-term incentive award
may be subject to a requirement of continued service
over a specified period or some other specified
reguirement, rather than a corporate performance
condition The terms of any such exceptional award
will be disclosed in the relevant subsequent anniual
remuneration report

The committee recogrses that it cannot always
predict accurately the circumstances in which any
new directors may be recruited The committee may
determine that itis in the interests of the company
and shareholders to secure the services of a
particular mdividual which may require the committee
to take account of the terms of that individual's existing
employment and/or their personal circumstances
Examples of crrcumstances i which the commuttee
expects it might need to do this are

» where an existing employee of the company is
promoted to the board, 1n which case the company
will honour all existing contractual commitments
incfuding any outstanding share awards, benefit and
pension entitlernents,

» where an individual 15 refocating in order to take up
the role in which case the company may provide
certain benefits such as reasonzble relocation
expenses. accommodation for a short period
following appointment and assistance with visa
applications or other immugraton 1ssues and ongoing
arrangements such as tax equalisation, annuaf flights
home and housing allowance,

where an indwvidual would be forfeinng valuable
variable remuneration in order to jom the campany,
1wy which case the commuttee may award appropriate
compensation The committee would require
reasonable evidence of the nature and vaitue of any
forfeired award and would, to the extent practicable,
ensure any compensation was provided on a hike-
for-itke basis and was no more valuable than the
forfeited award

In ight of the vartous fegacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the incumbent executive directors n
determining the pension arrangements for any new
recrurt, the commuttee expects to offer a defined
contribution arrangement with company contnibutions
not exceeding those set out on page 84 but would

r
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have regard to the recruit’s existing arrangements, the
market norms in the home country and the existing
pension vefucles avalable within the company

In making any decision on any aspect of the
rermuneration package for a new recruit, the comnuttee
would batance shareholder expectatuons, current best
practice and the requirements of any new recrutt and
would strive not to pay more than 1s necessary to
achieve the recruitment The committee would give full
details of the terms of the package of any new recruit in
the next annual remuneration report

Pearson expects any new chairman or non-executive
director to be engaged on terms that are consistent witls
the general remuneration principles outhned in the
relevant sections of this policy However, inthe case of
the chairman, the committee may consider 1t
appropriate to offer a remuneraton package that differs
from that of the exasting mcumbent if that s necessary to
attract the most capable candidate or to reflect the
indvidual's expected duties

Service contracts and termination provisions

In accordance with jong established policy, atl
executive directors have service agreements under
which, ather than by termunation i accordance with
the terms of these agreements, employment
contnues indefinitely

There are no special provisions for notice or
compensation w1 the event of a change of control
of Pearson

It ts the company's policy that the compary may
termunate the chairman's and executive directors’ service
agreerments by giving no more than 12 months’ notice

As an zlternatve, for executive directors the company
may at its discretson pay i heu of that notice.
Payment-in-heu of notice may be made tn equal
monthly instalments from the date of terminaton 1o
the end of any unexpired notice perniod In the case of
the CEO, payment-in-lieu of nonice in instalments may
also be subject to mutigation and reduced taking nro
account earrings from alternauve employment

For executive directors, pay n lieu of notice comprises
{00% of the annual salary at the date of termination
and the annual cost to the company of providing
pension and all other benefits For the chairman,

pay in lrew of notice comprises [00% of the annual

fees at the date of termunation in bmited
circumstances, in additton to making a fult payment

in heu of rotice, the company may permit an executive
director to stay employed after the announcement of
his or her departure for a limited period to ensure an
effective hand-over and/or allow time for a successor
to be appointed

The company may, depending on the crrcumstances
of the termunation determine that it will not pay the
director in lleu of notice and may instead termunate
a director’s contract i breach and make a damages
payment, takeng nto account as appropriate the
dwector’s ability to mitigate his or her loss.

On cessation of employment, save as otherwise
provided for under the rules of Pearson’s discretionary
share plans, executive directors’ entitlements to any
unvested awards lapse automatically In the case of wjury.
disability, il-health or redundancy (as determined by
the committee), where a participant s emplaying
company ceases to be part of Pearson or any other
reason If the commuttee so decides in its absolute
descretion

» awards that are subject to performance conditions
will stay in force as if the participant had not ceased
employment and shall vest on the original
vesting date,

» awards that are not subject to a performance
condition will be released as soon as practicable
following cessation of employment;

s the number of shares that are released shall be
prorated for the period of the participant’s service in
the restricted period (although the commuttee may
i its absolute discretton watve or vary the prorating)

In determining whether and how to exercise its
discretion under Pearson s discretonary share plans,
the committee will have regard to all relevant
arcumstances disunguishing between different types
of leaver the aircumstances at the time the award was
originally made, the director’s performance and the
crcumstances i which the director left employment

On cessanon of employment, executive directors,
having been notfied of participation in an annual
wcentive plan for the relevant financial year, may at
the committee’s discretion, retain entitlement 1o a
pro rata annual ncentive for thewr period of service in
the financial year prior to thewr leaving date Such pay-
cut will normally be calculated in good fath on the
same rerms and pad at the same time as for
CONUINWNE executive directors

Eigibdicy for affowances and benefits including
retirement benefits normally ceases on retirement
or on the termunation of employment for any
other reason

Derails of each indivdual’s service agreement are
outlned i1 the table overleaf Employment agreements
for other employees are determined according to
local labourlaw and market practice



Indtvidual service agreements

DATE OF AGREEMENT

29 July 2005

FOSITION

Chairman

WOTICE PERIODS

12 months from
the director,

Section 4 Governance A

COMPENSATION ON TERMINATION
OF EMPLOYMENT BY THE COMPANY
YWITHOUT NOTICE OR CAUSE

Payment-in-heu of notice of [00% of
annual fees at the date of terminauon

£2 months from
the company

3t December 2012
{John Fallor)

17 December 2012
{Robin Freestone)

Executive directors

S months from
the director,
12 months from
the company

Payment-in-liet of nouce of 100%
of annual salary at the date of
termination and the annual cost
of pension and all other benefits

Note Under pay-in-tieu of notice the annual cost of pens:on for exc cutive directors s normally caiculated 45 tha sum where appheable, of an amount equal 10
the company s costof providing the executive s pension under the pension plan based on the Future Service Company Contribution Rt for the relevant secuon
of the pension plan a5 stated oy the mostrccent acivarial veluaron (1s ot the date of termminzion of employment) as imied by the ezrmogs cap and any cash
altowance n hiev of pension or 1o take sccount of fact that pension benefits ind life acsurance cover are restricied by the carmings cap

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

The committee'’s policy 15 that executive directors
may, by agreement with the board, serve as non-
executives of other comparies and retain any fees
payable for their services

Employment conditions

In accordance with the committee s charter and terms
of reference, the committee’s remit does not include
remuneration matters below that of the chief
executive, the other executive directors and other
members of the Pearson Executve However, before
the remuneratuon packages for the Pearson Executive
are set for the year ahead, the commuttee considers

a report from the chief executive and chief human
resources officer on general pay trends in the market
and the level of pay increases across the company

as awhole This helps to ensure that executive
remuneration packages are reviewed in the context
of the wider organisation

The company consults with various employee
representative bodtes — including trade unions and
worlks councils in some jurisdictions — about the
company's strategy competittveness and perfermance
of the business and other maiters affecting employees
The company also conducts an employee engagement
survey to find out how people feef about worlung for
Pearson, what they think about the work they do,

the opporiunities they have and the rewards they get
{(including a section on pay and benefits) The company
uses ali of ths feedback to inform decssions on people-
related actwvities, resources and mvestment, focal
management action plans and wider business unit and
organisational strategies

It ts the company's intention to continue to engage
with employees and employee representatives i this
way in the future

The committee has not consulted directly with
employees on the setting of the directors’
remuneration polcy

Shareholder views

Thie company consults regularly with shareholders
on alt marters affecung its strategy and business
operattons As part of that process, we also engage
with sharehalders on matters relating to executive
remuneration

The commuttee continues to be aware of and respond
to best practice gutdelines of shareholders and thesr
representative bodies

The committee acuvely consulted with the company's
major shareholders and their representative bodres
on the directors’ remuneraton policy set out in this
report The consultaton provided some valuable
feedback relating to remunerauon policy, company
performance and business strategy Specifically,
shareholders commented on the operauon of the
long-term incentive plan, the use of fiexibiity and
discretion, and the policy on recrurtment They
supporied the committee’s proposals on deferral/
holding periods for vested shares and shareholding
guidelines And, on incenuve pay-outs, they requested
clartfication of our arrangements for adjustments for
malus and the strengthening of our clawback
prowvsions

These matters have been addressed in thus policy report
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Future policy table for chairman’s and non-execuuve directors' remuneration

The tzble below summarises policy with respect to the remuneraucn of the chairman and non-executive directors

PURPOSE AND HINK TO STRATEGY

To atrract and retain high cabbre mdviduals, with
appropriate experience or industry refevant skills,
by offering market competitive fee levels

QPERATION

The chairman is paid a single fee for al of his
responsibilities

The chairman’s fee 15 set at a level that 1s competitive
with those of chairmen in similar positions in
comparable compantes The charrman is not entitled
to any annual or fong-term incentive, retirement or
other employee benefits

The non-executive directors are paid a basic fee
The chairmen and members of the main board
committees and the senior independent director
are paid an additional fee to reflect ther extra
responsibihities

The chairman and the non-executive directors are
coverad by the company’s normal arrangements for
directors’ and officers liabdity msurance and an
indemnity in respect of certain third-party habdities

The company reunburses the chairman’s and non-
executive directors' travel and other business
expenses and any tax ncurred thereon, if applicable

A munaenum of 25% of the basic non-executive
directors' fee 1s paid in Pearson shares that the non-
executive directors have committed to retan for the
perod of their directorships Shares are acquired
quarterly at the prevaling market price with the
individual after-tax fee payments

Fees for non-execuuve directors are determined

by the fudl board having regard to market practice
and within the restrictions contained in the
company's Artcles of Assotiation Non-executive
directors receive no other pay or benefits (other
than reimbursement for expenses incurred in
connection with therr divectorship of the company)
and do not parucipate in the company's equity-based
incentive plans

Non-executive directors serve Pearson under
letters of appomtment which are renewed annually
and do not have service contracts For non-
executive directors, there (s no notice period or
entrtlernent to compensation on the termmation of
their directorships

OPRORTUNITY

The chairman’s fees were last reviewed in 2010
and ncreased with effect from | Aprit 2001 with a
commitment to review zgain in 20i4 Fees for the
non-executive directors wece last increased with
effect from | July 2010

The structure of non-executive directors’ fees with
effect from | May 2044 s as foliows

DIRECTOR 213
Non-executive director £70.000
C-ZTw:w manship gfaudst committee £27.500
'(-thawmanshlgﬁg‘r'_ remuneraton committee £22.000
Charrmanship of reputauon and

responstbility commitiee £10,000
Memberstup of audit committee £15 000
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000
Membership of reputation and

responsbility committee £5 000
Seniorindependent diractar £22 Q00

The maximum oppartunity per director depends
onindividual duties or combinaton of duties in
accordance with this structure The total fees
payable to the non-executive directors are subject
to the imit set out in the Articles of Associanon of
the company (currently £750,000) and as increased
by ardinary resolution from tume to ume.

The fees for the chairman remarns unchanged at
£500,000 per year

PERFCTMANCE CONDITIONS
None
PERFORMANCE PERIOD

None



Annual remuneratton report

The remuneration committee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to shareholders
as an advisory (non-binding} vote at the Annual
General Meeung to be held on 25 April 2014

This report comprises of a number of sections

> The remuneraton committee and Its activities
» Vouing outcome at 2003 AGM

» Single figure of total remuneration and prior
year comparison

» Detail of executive remuneration for 2043

» Detail of long-term share interests including awards
made in 2013

» Payments to former directors

» Payments for loss of office

» Interests of directors and value of shareholdings
» Executive directors’ non-exegutive directorships
» Historical performance and remuneration

» Comparauve information

» Information on changes to remuneration for 2014

Secuon 4 Governance
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The remuneration committae and I1ts activities

Compasition

Dawvid Arculus chaired the remuneration commuttee for
the year 2013, the other members were Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hydon, joshua Lewis and Glen Moreno Dawvid
Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon and Joshua Lews
are independent non-executive directors Glen
Moreno, chairman of the board, 1s a member of the
committee as permitted under the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Internal advisers to the committee

John Fallon, chief executive, Robin Freestone, chief
financial officer, Robin Baliszewska, formerly director
for people, Melinda Wolfe, chief human resources
officer from October 2013, Robert Head, director for
executive reward, and Stephen fones, SVP company
secretaral, provided material assistance to the
commuttee duning the year They attended meetngs of
the comimittee, although none of them was mvolved in
any decisions relating to his or her own remuneration

External advisers to the commuttee

To ensure that the comnttee receives independent
acvice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and
adwises on market trends, long-term incentives and
other general remuneration matters Towers Watson
was selected and appointed by the commuttee through
a formal tendening process Towers Watson also
adwised the company on health and welfare benefits in
the US and provided consulting advice directly to
certain Pearson operating companies Towers Watson
15 a member of the Remuneraton Consultants’ Group,
the body which oversees the code of conduct in
refation to executive remuneration consulung in the
UK During the year, Towers Watson was paid fees for
adwvice to the commuzee, which were charged ona
time spent basis, of £89.129 As partt of izs annual
review of its performance and effectiveness, the
commitiee remans satished tnat Towers Watson s
advice was objective and independent and that Towers
Watson's provision of other services in no way
compromuses 1ts independence

Responsibility
The committee’s principal duves are 1o

determine and regularly review the remuneraton
policy for the executive directors, the presidents of the
princtpal geographic markets and ines of business and
other members of the Pearson Executive who report
drrectly to the CEQ (Executive Management)

—

“r

~
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-

w

e

This policy includes base salary, annual and long-term
ncentives, pension arrangaments, any other benefits
and termination of employment

regularly review the implementation and operation of
the remuneration policy for Executve Management
and approve the indwvidual remuneraton and benefits
packages of the executive directors

The commuttee’s duties are also to

approve the design of, and determine targets for,

any performance-related pay plans operated by the
company and approve the total payments to be made
under such plans

review the design of the company's long-term incentive
and other share plans for approval by the board and
shareholders

advise and decide on general and specific arrangements
in connecton with the termination of employment of
executive directors

review and approve corporate goals and objectives
refevant to CEO remunerauon and evaluate the CEO's
parformance m light of those goals and objectives

have delegated responsibility for determining the
remunetrabon and benefits package of the chairman

of the board

appomt and set the terms of engagement for any
remuneration consultants who adwvise the commmuttee
and monitor the cost of such advice

The commutiee’s full charter and terms of reference
are avadable on the company's website.

Annually, the committee reviews 1ts own performance,
constitution and charter and terms of reference to
ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessary to the
board for approval

The commitiee participated in a survey tO review its
performance and effectiveness in July 2013, lookung at
areas such as the daray of roles and responsibrlittes,
the composition of the committee the use of tme,
the quality and tmeliness of meeting materals, the
apportunity for discussion and debate, diatogue with
management and access to ndependent advice

The committee concluded that itis operating
effectively and noted the challenges for the year ahead




Meetings in 2013
The committee met five ttmes during 2013 The
matters discussed and actions taken were as follows

20 FEBRUARY 2013

Confirmed the leaving arrangements for Rona Fairhead

N

Noted the acuvity of the standing committee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

~

Noted company's use of equity for employee share
plans

-

Noted Towers Watson's overview of the current
remuneration environment

(¥

Reviewed and approved 2012 annual incentive plan
pay-outs

Reviewed and approved provisional 2010 long-term
thcentive plan pay-outs

~

~

Approved vesting of 2010 annual bonus share matching
awards and release of shares

~

Reviewed and approved increases n base salaries for
2013 for the Pearson management committee (now
called the Pearson Executive)

Reviewed 2013 Pearson and operating company annual
mncentive plan targets

~

~

-

Reviewed and approved 201 2 individual annual
incentive opportuniues for the Pearson management
committee

Reviewed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
assoctated performance condiwons for the Pearson
management committee

~

Reviewed and noted total remuneration for members
of the Pearson management commuitiee for 2012

and 2013

Reviewed and approved the 2012 report on directors’
remuneration

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incentive
pay-cut for Marjorte Scardino

~

~

» Reviewed and approved the 2012 annual incentive
pay-out and 2013 remuneration package for
John Fallon

w

~

~

e

w

w

W

~

e

-

r

~
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24 APRIL 2013

Noted the actvity of the standing commuttee of the
board in refation to the operauon of the company's
equity-based reward programimes

Confirmed 2010 long-term incentive plan pay-outs
including elerment relating to refative shareholder
return performance and release of shares

Confirmed 2013 Pearson and operating company
annual incentive plan targets

Confirmed 2013 long-term incentive awards and
assoctated performance conditions for the Pearson
rRanagement commities

Noted feedbacl on the 2012 report on directors’
remuneration

Discussed new executive remuneration reporting
requirements

24 JULY 2043

Reviewed the commuttee’s charter and terms of
reference

Discussed 2013 AGM season and shareholder voung

Noted remuneration packages for a number of internal
appomtments and one new hie to the Pearson
Executive

MNoted John Makinson’s remuneration package and
contract on secondment to, and appomtment as
chairman of, Penguin Random House

MNoted Will Ethridge's intenuon 1o stand down from
the Pearson board and the arrangements for his 2014
employment and retiremnent

Noted implications of new executive remuneration
reporting requirements and commenced review of
executive remuneration polcy
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7 QCTOBER 2013 S DECEMBER 2013

» Notead the acuvity of the standing commuttee of the Noted the acuivity of the standing commuttee of the
board in relation to the operation of the company’s board in relatton to the operation of the company's
equity-based reward programmes equity-based reward programmes

~

-

> Reviewed the committee s charter and terms of Rewviewed and approved the comnuetze's charter and
reference terms of reference

» Reviewed the commuttee’s performance and Discussed Towers Watson's overview of the current
effectiveness remuneration environment and approach to executive

» Reviewed the status of outstanding long-term incentive pay benchmariang for 2013/2014

~

awards > Reviewed the staws of outstanding fong-term incentive
» Ratified 2013 long-term incentive awards and awards
associated performance conditions for new appointees  » Considered the approach to annual incentives in the
to the Pearson Executive Iight of the company’s global educauon strategy and
» Considered the approach to 2013 annual incentives in hew crganisation
hght of company’s restructuring plans » Reviewed lang-term incentve plan design and
» Noted the company’s strategy for 204 3 long-term operatton
ncentive awards for executives and managers below » Reviewed the programmes and policies related to

the Pearson Executive equity participation of executives

> Considered the approach to annual incenuves n the Noted the draft format for the 2013 directors’
hght of the company's global education strategy and remuneraton report
new organisation

N

» Conunued the review of executive remuneraton policy

> Noted the remuneration packages for twa new hires
o the Pearson Executive

Voting outcome at 2013 AGM

The foliowing wable surnmarises the details of votes cast in respect of the resolution to approve the directors’
remuneration report at the 2013 AGM

Vores for Voles apamst Total voues cast Voues withheld {abstenuions)
523,204,046 35,545,800 558,749,846 14,082,005
93 64% of votes cast & 36% of votes cast 68 35% of issued share capital

While the commuttes was pleased with the level of support shown by shareholders m respect of thss resolunon
consideration was given to those shareholders that did not vote in favour of the directors’ remuneration report
Through consuftation, the commuttee receved feedback from three nstitupional shareholders who between them
accounted for one-third of the votes against to understand better why these shareholders vated agamst the
resotutton The commuitee subsequently discussed this at their july 2013 meeung In the higit of the feedback, the
comnutiee concluded at that ume that, notwithstanding any 1ssues anising out of its regular review of executive
remuneration poficy there was nothing fundamental or structural within our existing arrangements to cause
parocular concern to shareholders

As in previous years and required by law details of the voung on all resolutions at the 2014 AGM wilf be
announced viz the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the AGM

http //www pearson com/content/dam/ pearson-corporate/files/ press-
refeases/2013/20130426_AGM_Poll_Results pdf
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison

Executve directors
The remuneration receved by executive directors i respect of the financial years ending 31 December 2043 and

31 December 2012 was as follows

Executive Allowances
directot Base and Annzl Reurement Long-term
£000s salary benefis Incengive benefits Hieentives Tortal

Current directors

2013 750 43 463 330 141 1,727
John Fallon 2012 146 7 63 6l 221 498

2013 545 |4 341 163 gl 1,244
Robin Freestone 2012 500 27 252 | 44 L2 2,039
Former directors

2013 681 7 227 247 177 1,339
Will Ethndge 2012 658 2 293 300 (135 2388
Rona Farrhead 2013 176 14 - 1o 47 347
{stepped down
26 Apri 2013) 2012 529 50 192 242 769 1,782
fohn Malanson 2043 274 i22 301 298 69 i, 064
{stepped down
[ July 2013) 2012 549 244 238 - 741 1772
ou 2013 2.426 200 1.332 148 615 5721

2012 2,382 325 1,038 747 3987 8479

MNote | john Fajlon was appointed to the board on 3 Qctober 2012 For the full year for 2012, John Fallon’s rermuneration
reflected mne months o fus role as CEO, Pearson Internaucnal and three months as Pearson CEC designare and was
salary/fees - £506 allowances and benefits £29, annual imcenuve ~ £259, retrement benefits — £249, long-term incentives
— £909, totai -- £1,952 (all figures in £000s)

Note 7 In accordance with the regulations we shaow a single total figure of remuneration wiich includes retwrement benefits
and long-term incentives 1 addition to the other elements of remuneration that have been shown in previous reports

MNorte 3 Where necessary the figures for allowances and benefits, long-term ncentives and retirement benefits for 2012 have
been restated to reflect the revised requirements and valuaton methodology

Note 4 In 201 2, the accrued pension over the partod for john Makinson decreased because of a wransfer made as a result of
a pension sharing order

MNote 5 The single figure of remunerarion for 201 3 includes alf awards that were subject to 2 performance condition where
the performance period ended, or was substantially (but not fully) completed. at 31 December 2013 and awards where the

performance conditon has been satsfied but where the release of vhares 1s subject to a further holding period The same
methodslogy has been apphed for eat lier perods and the ungle figure for earlier resorting penods has been restated

where necessary

Further explanatory details/notes are included 1n the tables that follow

|
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration paid to the charman and non-execuiive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 was as follows

Dhrecror Salary/ Conmutted Conwnttee mdc.pj::;lr
s e bmcfee charmandup | memberstp  directorship Toul
2013 500 - - - 500
Glen Moreno 5012 500 _ ~ ~ <00
2013 65 20 0 - 95
David Arculus 2012 65 20 0 _ o5
Vivienne Cox 2013 65 - 15 20 100
20{2 65 - 15 - 80
20103 65 25 5 - S5
Ken Hydon 2012 €5 25 5 _ 95
2013 65 - i3 78
Josh Lews 2012 65 _ 0 ~ 75
Linda Lorimer 2013 33 - - 33
(appointed | july 2013) 2012 - - - — _
Harish Manwarg 2013 i6 - - - 6
(appointed | Ocrober 2013) 2012 - - - - _
Susan Fyhrman 2013 39 - & - 45
{stepped down 7 August 2013) 2012 65 - 10 - 75
Total 2013 848 45 49 20 962
2012 825 45 50 920

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £5 3m in 2013 These emoluments
are included wath total employee benefit expense 1n note 5 to the financial statements (page 142)
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Detail of executive remuneration for 2013

In this sub-section we summarise or provide detatls of each element of remunerauon set out in the single figure
table as required (page 97)

Base salaries

In accordance with policy. the committee considered a report from the chief executive and chief human resources
officer on general pay trends n the market and the fevel of pay increases across the company as a whole For 2013,
the company had reiterated 1ts starting principles that base compensation prowvides the appropriate rate of
remuneration for the job, taking inte account refevant recruttment markets, business sectors and geographic
regions and that total remuneration should reward both short- and leng-term results, delivering competitive
rewards for target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional company performance For the US and UK,
the budgert guideline 1ssued at the end of September 2012 for adjustments to base pay for 2013 was 2% afthough
busmess units were given the flextbility to take into account factors such as their own performance, where they are
in the business cycle, and speafic market factors As the year closed and pay budgets for 2013 were confirmed,
most busmesses remamed on an overall 2% salary increase pool Local inflation rates were taleen into account in
particular markets

The icreases for the executive directors who served during all or part of 2013 were as follows

Rona Joln

Faurhead Malanson

john Robin Wil {stepped down  (stepped down

L Failon Freestone Cthrdge 26 Apnl 2013) T july 2013}

Base salary at 31 December 2012 £600,000 £500,000 3$1.045500 £529.100 £548,900
| £150,000 £45,000 $20,900 - -
nerease 25% 9% 2% —_ -
Base salary at | fanuary 2013 {750,000 £545,000 $1.066400 £529,100 £548900

Note john Fallon was appointed to the hoard on 3 October 2012 and bis base salary was reviewed on his appointment to CEQ
on | january 2013

Ailowances and benefits
During the year the exacutive directors received a number of benefits as summarnised below

Rona joha

Fairhead Malkunson

Allowance/benefit jchn Robin Wil (scepped down  (stepped down
f Fatlon Freestone Ethrndge 26 April 2013) 1 July 20133
Locatron and market premium - - - — 105,469
Travei 15,387 12,037 - 5530 6.865
Health 2,405 1,988 5720 663 1,132
Rusk 24765 253 1,673 8,074 8,605
Total 42,557 14278 7393 14267 12247

Note | Travel benefits camprise company car, car allowance ana private use of a driver Health benefits comprise healtheare,
health assessment and gym subsidy Risk benefits comprise addiional tife cover and fong-term disability insurance

Note 2 Allowance and benefits for Will Ethridge include US health benefits Such benefits are self-insured and the value shown
here 1s the fully insured equavatent There 1s no employee tax on this value

Note 3 In additton to the above benefits and allowances that are includea 1n the single figure, the executive di ectors may also
paructpate In company beneft or pohcy airangements that have no taxable value

Note 4 Addiwonat e cover and long-term disability msurance not covered by the retirement plans were previously repor ted
as ‘other pension-relatad benefit costs' and included in retirement benefits in the 2012 directors remunerauon repor:
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Report on directors’ remuneration cantinued

Annual incentive

For 2013, annual incentive opportunities were based on the following performance measures and performance
agamst these measures {designated as ~ below threshold, < between threshold and targer, > between target

and maximum and + above maximum) was as follows

Maxarusn Wegtung of
AppUTTITID, performa e megurLs
ol eelary) (% of maxsmnem opportuney)

Undertpng
gowth m

adusted EPS  adjuered EPS copral o

Sales 1cstIutiunng) FestruCtaneg)

{pre~
Opt ratng T e
Nans Pearson  compary Posotial 1% 5%
john 1807 0% - 0% < >
Fallen
Robin 170%  80% - WE < >
Freesione
Wilt 175% 303 60°% 0% <« >
Ethndge Pearson
North
America
{ohn 160% 209 60% 0 = >
Mawinson Pengun
{siepped Group
down
1 Juty
2013

Piy-out for
Performarce in 2013 w013
% of
Cperatng company nifary} (£000)
Avoraze
We ghred workng We gheed
prty-ouc Operavng  Operaong  capaal pay-oue
(racd reofis (pre  profic {post- co sales Operating (% of
max mum)  Sakes restructemg) cestevcturbpl | g Qe ftw manmaml
0% 0% 20% 164
28 1% - - - - - 61 B 463
76 0% - - - - - 8257 341
60% < - - - f05% 334 227
260% > - = S4% [098% 301

Norte | For all plans Pearson's reported financal results for the relevant pertod were used to measure parformance In order
1o neentivise znd reward underying performance, aciuat results are adusted for the effect of foreign exchange and for
portfolio changes (aequisitons and disposals) and other factors that the commuttee considers relevant in the performance year
Mo discretion has been exercised to adjust the resuluing underlying pay-ours

Mote 2 Rona Farhead, who left the company on 30 Apni 2013 was not eligible for an annual incenuve in respect of her service

in 2013

Note 3 Detads of performance targets and performance agamst those targets are not disclosed as the committee geems them

to be commercially sensitive
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Retirement benefies
Details of the directors’ pension entitiements and penston-related benefits during the year are as follows

Value of  Other penston Orther
Accrued  defined benetic cpsts to the allewances Toral
Mormal  pension at PENsSIoONn O¥CI  COMpaRy over wmheuof  annual value
reurement 31 Dec (3 the penod the penod pension w2043
Directors pehsion. Plans age £000" £000 £000"° £0600% £000%
fohn Falion Pearson Group Pension Plan 62 740 1348 - 1947 330

Accrual rate of |/30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement
Robin Freestone Money Purchase 2003 secuon 62 - - 220 41 4 163
of the Pearson Group Pension
Pian Taxable and non-
pensionable cash supplement
Wil Ethndge  Pearson Inc Pension Plan and 65 2275 2152 316 - 247
the approved 401 {k} plan
Non-qualified Excess Plan
Rona Fairhead  Pearson Group Penston Plan 62 531 654 - 446 HIO
Accrual rate of 1/30th of
pensionable salary per annum
Taxable and non-pensionable
cash supplement
lohn Makinson  Pearson Group Pension Plan. 62 2411 298 - - 298
Unfunded Unapproved
Reurement Benefits Scheme

Note | The accrued pension &t 3| December 2013 s the deferred pension to which the member would be enuted on ceasing
pensionable service on 31 December 2013 For Will Ethridge thys ts tus pension from the US plan and the US SERP For John
Falion and Rona Farhead it relaies o the pension payable from the UK plan For john Makinson i relates to the pension from
the UK Plan and tis unapproved arrangements in aggregate Robin Freestone does not accrue aefined benefits

Note 2 This column compnises the increase in the directors’ accrued pension over the period (net of inflaton} muluphed by 20
and from which the directors’ contnbuttons are deducted

Note 3 This column compnses contributions to defined contribution arrangements for UK benefits For US benefits, it includes
company contnbutions to funded defined contnbunon plans

Note 4 This column represenis the cash alfowances paid in beu of the previous FURBS arrangements for john Falion,
Robin Freestone and Rona Fairhead John Malunson’s deferred FURBS enttdement is referred 1o in note | above

Noze 5 Total annual value 15 the sum of the prewious three columns

Note 6 Addinonal Ife cover and fong-term disability insurance not covered by the retrement plans were previously reported as
other pensicn-related benefit costs’ and mcluded i reurement benefits 1 the 2012 directors remuneration report and are now
inciuded as “aliowances and benefits’

Noie 7 There are no additonal benefits or special arrangements under the retirement plans for directors who retre before therr
normal rem ement date
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Details of long-term share interests including awards made in 2013

Long-term incentives
Detaids of awards made, outstanding, held or released under the annual bonus share matching plan are as follows

Real compound

Date of award  Share price on (lmf_o{ award  Yesung annual EPS growth  Status of ?_‘T_fd .

15/05/13 1.2060p 15/05/16 — Outstanding subject to 2012 to 2015 performance

i5/05/12 [,1520p I15/05/15 — Qutstanding subject to 2011 to 2014 performance

20/04/11 1129 0p 20/04/14 -6 6% Performance conditon not met Matching share
award lapsed

21704710 1024 |p 21/04/13 4 4% Target met for release of 84 5% of matching share

award as reported in report on directors’
remuneration for 2012 Shares released on
21 April 2013

The pay-out to performance vesting scale for all awards is as follows

Performance condition Pay-out (% of Mztch)
< 3% real compound annual EPS growth Nl
3% real compound annual EPS growth 50%
3% to 5% real compound annual EPS growth 50% to 100% shding scale
5% real compound annual EPS growth 100%
> real 5% compound annual EPS growth 100%

MNote Foi ail awaras Pearson’s reported financial resufts for the relevant pertod were used o measure performance ana no
discretion hias been exerased

The following directors invested part of they after-tax annual incentive in Pearson shares and recewed conditional
matching awards under the annual bonus share matching plan on 15 May 2013 which will vest, subject to
perfarmance, on |5 May 2016 as follows

Name Marching shares awarded Sha e price on date of award Face walue on date of award

John Fafton 6,083 1,206 Op £73,361

(
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Detalls of awards made, outstanding, vested and held or released under the long-term incentive plan are
as follows

Performance
Share easures
price on {award splic % of
Date date of Vesting equally across Perormance  Pay-out at Pay-out at Actual awwd  Status of
of award  award date three measures)  penod threshold MAKHTIM performance vested  award
01/05/13 1,183 0p 01 /05/16 Relauve TSR 2013 to  30% at median 100% at upper - - Outstanding
2016 quarule
RCIC 2015 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC - -
of 8 5% of [0 5%

|
t

EPS growth 2015 30%for EPS  100% for EPS
compared growth of growth of {20%
w2012 60%

0205121 161 Op02/05/15 Relauve TSR 201210 30% at median 100% at upper - - Qutstanding
2015 qQuarule
RCIC 2014 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC - -
of 85% of 10 5%

EPS growth 2014 30%forEPS  100%forEPS  — -
compared growth of growth of 12 0%

o 2011 60%
03/05/11 1,149 0p 03/05/ 14 Relatve TSR 2011 to  30% at median 100% atupper 44" Nt Estrmeted bur st
2014 quarule percentile outstanding
ROIC 2013 25% for ROIC 100% for ROIC 54% iNit Lapsed
of 9 0% of 105%

EPS growth 2013 30%forEPS  100% forEPS  -33% BN
compared growth of growth of {20%

wBl0 60%
03/03/109620p 03/03/13 Relauve TSR 20100 30% at medan 100% atupper 48" Nt 36.7% of shares vesied
2013 quartle percentile Three-quarters released
ROIC 2012 %for ROIC 100%forROIC 91%  475% on3March 2013 ifafrer
of 85% of 10 5% wax number of shares are
EPSgrowth 2012 30%forEPS  100%forEPS 88%  625% o=ned fo‘;: further
compared growth of growth of 12 0% twoyears the remaining
©2009 60% quarter wilt be released
on 3 March 2015

Note For all awards, Pearson's reported financial results for the relevant period were used to measure performance and no
discretion has been exercised

The following directors received conditional restricted share awards under the long-term incentwve plan on
I May 2013 which will vest, subject to performarnce, on | May 2016 as follows

Face valuc on dare of awarg

Restricced  Share pnee on ¥ ef 2003
Mame shares awarded  date of award £ hase salary
John Fallon 250,000 1,183 0p £2,957.500 394%
Robin Freestone 150,000 1.1830p £1 774,500 326%
Wili Ethridge 150,000 1,1830p £i,774,500 260%

Summary of share plan interests

The following tables summarise vested, released, lapsed, held, and outstanding share interests under the share-based
incentive plans for executive directors who served throughout 2013 Awards are designated as ABSMP annual bonus
share matching plan, subject to performance condions LTIP long-term incentive plan, subject to performance
conatwens, Dividends where dividend-equivalent shares are added without performance condittons to vested shares
under the ABSMP and LTIP and released immediately on award
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Plan Award date Vestng date Status john Fzlion Freeii:b;: Will Ethnicge
ABSMP 2170472010 21/704/2013  Released 6,991 26.2'57— 6.658
ABSMP 2070472011 20/04/2014  Vested 0 0 0
Value £000 £0 £0 0
iapsed 4,539 29,049 4517
Held 0 Q 0
ARSHMP [5/05/2012 {5/05/2015 Outstanding 8917 17,833 4485
ABSMP 15/05/2013  15/05/20t6 Outstanding 6.083 - -
LTIP 04/03/2008 04/03/20t1 Released 24,375 30468 36,562
LTIP 03/03/200% 03/C3/2012 Held 25,887 25617 29,887
LTIP 03/03/2010 03/03/2013 Released 41,257 34,381 41,257
tapsed 50,000 41,667 50,000
Held 13,752 i 1,460 13752
LTIP 0370572011 03/05/2014 Vested 0 0 0
Value £000 £0 £0 £0
Lapsed 150,600 125000 150000
Held 0 0 0
LTiP 02/05/2012  Q2/05/2015  CQutstanding 100,000 100,000  10C.000
LTiP 01/05/2013  01/05/2016 Qutstanding 250000 150,000 150,000
Dividends 0470372013 0470372013 Released (price 1,168 Op) 6,094 7617 9,144
(LTIP) Value £000 £71 £89 £1a7
Divrdends 03/04/2013  03/04/2013  Released {price 1,143 Op) 5.199 4,333 5,199
(LTIP) Value £000 £59 £50 £59
Dundends 21/05/2013  21/05/2013 Released (price 1,262 Op) 895 3,366 853
{(ABSMP) Value £000 £ £42 £1t
Total Released 84.8i1 106,452 99,670
Vested 0 ] "
Held 43 639 37,077 43,639
QOutstanding 365,000 267,833 254485
2013 single figure of remuneration Value £000 £141 £181 £i77

Note | Vested means where awards are no longer subject to performance conditions Released means where shares have neen
wransferred to parnapants Meld means where awards have vested but are held pending release on the rclevant anniversary of
the award date Cutstanding means awatds that have been pranted but are sbif subect to the achievement of performance

condiuons

MNote 2 Mo vanatens to terms and condiaons of plan interests were made duning the year

Note 3 Performance condirons «nd vesting for awards under the bonus share matching and fong-term incentive plans are
described on pages 102 and 103
MNote 4 The single figure of remuneration for 2013 includes all awards that were subject 1o a performance candiuion where
the performance period ended, or was substantally (but not fully} completed, at 31 December 2013 and awards where the
performance condivon has been satsfied but where the release of shares 1s subject ro a further holding petiod The same

methodology has been apphed for earlier peiiods ana the single figur e for eariier reporung periods has been 1 estated
where necessary

Note 5 The value of shares inciuded in the single figure of remuneration 1s the number of shares muluplied by the share price
on release {or. f the shares have not yet been released, the averzge share price over the final quarter of the year which for
2013 was t 210 45p)




Movements i directors’ interests in share opuons
John Fallon and Robin Freestone also hold options under the worldwide save for shares plan as follows
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Value n 2013

Qprons held as Earlest exercise single figure

i\_l‘amc Diate of grant at 31 Dec i3 Option price date Exp_:_ry_fate fgo_(l
fohn Falfon 7/5/10 1,930 BOS 6p t/8/15 1/2/16 0
Robin Freestone 4/5/12 990 9090p  1/8/15 1/2/16 0

Note 1 No share option awards were made, vested or exercised in the year

Note 2 All share options that become excrasable duting a year are included in the single figure of total remuneranon for that
year The value included m the single figure of total remuneration 1s the number of epttons mulupled by the difference between

the value on grant and the market value on the earkest exercise date

Note 3 No varations to terms angd condinions of share opuons were made during the year

Note 4 Acquisiion of shares under the worlowide save for shares plar, 1s not subject to 2 performance condivon

Note 5 The market price on 3| December 2013 was 1,341 Op per share and the range during the year was {,1190pto 1,365 Cp

Payments to former directors

It 1s the committee's tention to disclose any payments to past directors, mcluding the release of share-based

awards post departure

The number of shares retained from the number of shares onginally awarded rakes mto account fapses due to
performance, releases prior 10 ceasing to be a director and, where applicable, pro-rating for service i the

performance perred

Marjorie Scardino

Marjorie Scardino stepped down from the Pearson board on 31 December 2012

In accordance with her employment agreement, six months after reurement Marjone Scardino receved
the distribution of the account cash and share balances of her unfunded unapproved defined contnbution

retirement plan

Marjorie also retained certan enttlements on retirement and received the followng share releases during 2013

Number of Number of Number ef Nﬂl‘l\:‘z’r::
Plan Date of nvard shares revamed shares lapred shares released Date of refease cutstanding
ABSMP 21 Apnl 2010 63,497 0 63497 4 March 2013 0
20 Aprd 2011 47,630 47,630 0 - 0
LTIP 4 March 2008 97500 0 97506 4 March 2013 0
3 March 2009 76,852 0 76852 4 March 2013 0
3 March 2010 280,024 subject to 133,333 t46 691 3 March 2013 0
2012 performance
3 May 201t 1 266,666 subject to 266,466 0 - 0
2013 performance
2 May 2012 83,333 subject to 0 0 - 83,333
2014 performance
Dwwidends 4 March 2013 - - 6,160 4 March 2013 0
(ABSMP)
Dividends 4 March 2013 - — 38,593 4 March 2012 0
(LTP) 3 Apri 2013 ) - - 18484  3Apni2013 ¢

Note in the case of the 21 Aprid 2010 annual bonus share matching award the number of shares retained and released comprises
the total number of shares originally awarded

MEIAYIAO

ao

IONVYIB04Had ¥

F5ANISNY 318ISNOJSIY

FINVYNYIAOD

|

SINIWILYLS TVIONYNI



106 Pearson plc Annual report and account: 2043

Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Rona Fairhead

Rona Fairhead siepped down from the Pearson board on 26 Apni 2013 and left the company on 30 Apri 2013

Rana retained certan enutlements on leaving the company and recewved the following share releases during 2013

Number of Mumsear 2043 single figure Numbe of
(unber of shares of shares of reonuneration Number of shares
Plan hv#ﬁga":fawc“a-f_am?ﬂ . __siz_a:ci ta:::rfi_ _ _Iﬁe_d_ o f_lfa‘_"_f_ - _Datc of telease £E=’f‘0 shaves held our..finndmg
LTIP 4 March 2008 30.468 0 30468 4March 203 N 0 0
3 March 2009 25,617 g 25617 10 May 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2010 87,508 41,667 34381 3 March 2013 - t] 0
subject to 2012 11,460 10 May 2013 - 0 0
performance
3 May 201 | 97,222 97,222 0 - - 40,000 0
subject 10 2013
performance +
40,000 shares
2 May 2012 44,444 0 0 — - 0 44,444
subject to 2014
performance
Dwvidends 4 March 2013 - 0 7,617 4 March 2013 £30 - —
3 April 2013 - 0 4.333L£ April 2013 £17 - =

Note | In the case of the 3 May 2011 long-term incentive award, the comnmuttee agreed m December 2012 that, in recognion
of the circumstances at the ume the award was made, 40,000 of the 165,000 shares orignally awarded should vest in full at the
normal vesung date The remaming shiares would be retwned on her leaving pro raua for service and be released subject o

performance in the normal way

Note 2 The vatue of dividends included in the 2013 single figure of remunerapon 1s calculated pro ratz for service in the year

John Makinson

On stepping down from the board on | July 2013, John Makinsor’s then remuneranon package (base salary,
annual mcentive, allowances and benefits and retirement benefits) continued to 2pply for the remainder of 2013
He did not receive a Pearson fong-term incentive award for 2013

John's participation m Pearson share plans conunues and he recewed the following share releases during 2013

Nomber 2013 single figure Nurber of
Mumberof  MNumber of of shares of remuneratlon  Number of shares
Plan Date of award shares retained  shares lapsed released Date of release IDO_()__ shares hiela  outstanding
LTiP 4 March 2008 30,468 0 30468 4March 2013 - 0 0
3 March 2009% 25,617 0 - - - 25617 0
3 March 2010 87508 41667 34381 3March 2013 ~ 11460 0
subject vo 2012
performance
3 May 2011 125000 125000 0 - - 0 0
subject to 2013
performance
2 May 2012 100,000 0 0 - - G 100,000
subject to 2014
performance
Dwidends 4 March 2013 - 0 7647 4March 2003 44 - -
- 0 4333 3Apnf2013 25 - -

3 Apnl2013

MNote The value of dwidends included i the 2013 single figure of remuneration i calculated oro rata for service in the year




Payments for loss of office

Rona Fawrhead

As announced on 27 November 2012 and set out in
the repart on directors’ remuneration for 2012 Rona
Fairhead stepped down from the board at the Annual
General Meeting on 26 April 2013 and left the
company on 30 Apni 2013 Her service agreement
dated 24 January 2003 provided for notice penods of
stx months from the director and 12 months from the
company and compensation on termination of
ermployment by the company without notice or ¢ause
of 100% of annual salary at the date of termination, the
annual cost of pension and all other benefits and 50%
of potennal annual mcentive

The committee and the board determined that her
leaving employment was a consequence of the planned
incorporation of the professional education diviston
overseen by Rona nto other parts of Pearson's
education business, coupled with the smaller size

of the Financial Times Group owing to recent

major divestments The company therefore paid
compensaton amounting to £1,148,195 comprising
£529,100, an amount equal to her annual salary as of
her leaving date £195,815, an amount equal to the
annual cost to the company of penston and other
benefits (but excluding health care to which she
remamned enttled for |2 months from her leaving
date}, and £423 280. an amount equal to half of her
maximum arwnual incentive opportunity The company
alsc made a contribution toward the cost of
outplacement counselling {£50,000) and paid [egal
fees in connection with her leaving {(£6,150)

Section 4 Governance 167

John Makinson

As first announced on 29 October 2012 and confirmed
on | July 2013, John Malanson stepped down from the
Pearson board to assume his full-ume responsibiities
as chairman of Penguin Random House on | july 2013.
There was no payment for loss of office

john's employment continues under service
agreements with Pearson inc (for the US portion of his
duties) and with Pearson Management Services Limited
{for fus duties in the rest of the world outside the US)
These Pearson enpties are entering into secondment
agreements with Penguin Random House, pursuant to
which John s services as chatrman are provided to, and
paid for by, Penguin Random House john s paid an
annual base salary, but 1s no longer entitied to a
location and market premium or an annual incentive
He will be eligible to receive a one-off performance-
related cash long-term incentive award, the terms

of which are being agreed by the remuneration
commuttee of Penguin Random House He wall no
longer receive awards under the Pearson long-term
incentive plan Penguin Random House is also meeting
the cost of john's accrual of Pearsan pension benefics
while he 1s seconded to Penguin Random House

Will Ethndge

As announced on 23 May 2013, Will Ethridge stepped
down from the board on 31 December 2013 There
was no payment for loss of office Will's employiment
with Pearson Education Inc continues on the same
terms and conditions as previously pending his
retrement on 31 December 2014 Mo compensation
for loss of office or severance will be payable on his
reurement On rearement, he will retain entnlement to
s 2012 long-term incentive award m full and 1o two-
thirds and one-third respectively of tus 2013 and any
2014 long-term incentive awards with shares released
subject to performance n 2015, 2016 and 2017.
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Interests of directors and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share interests of the conumung directors and their connected persons are as follows

Tom! number of ardinary

Ordinary shares Conditonal shares  and conditional shares at Valse Guidefing
— ) o X3 Dectd o a3tDecld  31Decld  bxsday) | sy | Guidehnemec
Chasrman
Glen Moreno 150,000 - - - - _
Executive directors
John Fallon 262,569 43,639 306,208 45 200 v
Robin Freestone 478,507 37,077 585,584 Q5 | 25 v
Will Ethndge 397017 43,639 440,656 72 | 25 v
Non-executive directors
Dawvid Arculus 16,304 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox t.351 - - - - -
Ken Hydon 17,818 - - - - -
Josh Lewis 5,681 - - — - -
Linda Lorimer (appointed 637 - - - - -
| July 2013)
Harish Manwars (appomted 180 - - - —~ _
1 Ocrober 2013)

Note { Conditicnal shares means shares which: have vested but remain held subject to conunuing employment for a pre-defined
holding pencd
Note 2 The current value of the executve directors’ holdings of ordinary and condimonal shares 1s based on the nuddle market

value of Pearson shares of +.113 0p on 21 February 2014 aganst base sataries in 2013 All execunve directors comfortably
exceeded the shareholding guidelines The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the charman and non-executive directors

Note 3 Ordinary shares mclude both ordinary shares histed on the London Stock Exchange and Amerian Depositary Receipts
(ADRs) Iisted on the New York Stock Exchange The figures include both shares and ADRs acquired by imndiiduals invesung part
of their own after-tax annual bonus n Pearson shares under the annual bonus annual bonus share marching ptan

Note 4 The register of directors nierests (which 1s open to inspection dunng normal office howrs) contams full details of
directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe for shares The market price on 31 December 2013 was 1,341 Op per share
and the range dunng the year was [,119 Op to 1,365 0p

Note 5 There were no movements iy ordinary shares berween | January 2014 and a month prior 1o the sign-off of this report.

iNote 6 Ordinary shares do not mclude any shares vested but held pending release under a restricted share plan.

Graph removed




Shareholding gurdelines for executive directors
Execuiive directors are expected to buld up a
substantal shareholding in the company i ine with the
policy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the interests of executives and
shareholders With effect from 2014, target holding 15
300% of salary for the chief execunve and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these gurdelines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, therr
spouse and/or dependent chitdren pius any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted
share plan Execuuve directors have five years from the
date of appaintment to reach the guideline

There are currently no mandatory share ownership
guidelines below executive director level, afthough
employees are encouraged to become sharehoiders m
the company by retamng shares acquired through the
company's discretonary and ali-employee stock
programmes The shareholding guidelines do not apply
to the chairman and non-executive directors

Dilution and use of equity

We can use esusting shares bought m the market,
treasury shares or newly-issued shares to sausfy
awards under the company’s vatwous stock plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term
incentive plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expect to use existing shares

There are liruts on the amount of new-issue equity we
can use in any roling ten-year perod, no more than
i0% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable of
being 1ssued, under all Pearson’s share plans, and no
more than 5% of Pearson equity will be tssued, or be
capable of being ssued under executive or
discretionary plans

Secuon 4 Governance 109

At 3| December 2013 stock awards to be sausfied
by new-issue equity granted in the last ten years
under all Pearson share plans amounted to | 6%

of the company's issued share capital No stock
awards granted in the [ast ten yvears under executive
or discretionary share plans will be satsfied by
new-ISsue equity

In additton, for exisung shares no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust at any tme
Against this e, shares held m trust at 3| December
2013 amounted to | 1% of the company's 1ssued
share captal

The headroom avaiable for all Pearson plans,
executive or discrettonary plans and shares held i
trust is as follows

Headroom o203 2002 0

All Pearson plans B4% 83% 83%
Executive or discretionary plans 50% 50% 50%
Shares held in trust 39% 38% 32%

Executive directors' non-executive directorshps

In accordance with policy the following executve
directors served as non-executive directors elsewhere
and retained fees or other benefits for the penod
covered by this report as follows

Fees/benclits

£83,233

Wame Company

HSBC Holdings plc

Rona Fairhead

Other executive directors served as non-executive
directors elsewhere but etther waived or did not
receve fees

!
!

MIIAYIAD

FIDIRVIWEOIYIL YNQ

SEANISNTG ITFISNOJISINY

|
I

AINYMHYIACD

SANIWILYLS TYIDNVNIG !
i



110 Pearson pic Annuaf seport and accounts 2013

Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Historical performance and remuneraton

Total shareholder return performance

We set out below Pearson’s total shareholder return
(TSR) performance relatve to the FTSE All-Share
index on an annual basis over the five-year period
2008 to 201 3. This comparison has been chosen
because the FTSE Ali-Share represents the broad
market index within which Pearscen shares are traded
TSR is the measure of the returns that a company has
provided for its shareholders, reflecung share price
movements and assuming reinvestment of dividends
(source DataStream)

in accordance with the new regulations, this section
also presents Pearson's TSR performance alongside
the single figure of total remuneration for the CEO
over the fast five years and a summary of the variable
pay outcomes relative 1o the prevailing maxmuim at
the ume The table below summarises the total
remuneration for the CEQ over the last five years, and
the outcomes of annuat and fong-term mcentive plans
as a proporiton of maximum

Graph removed

Financial year ending

2009 20

2001

2012

2013

Totat remuneration — John Fafton
(single figure, 000s)

Total remuneration — Marjorte Scardino
{single figure, 000s)

Annual incentive — incumbent

(% of maximum)

Long-term incenave — incumbent

(% of maximum}

6,370 B4eé

913% 921%

BOOG% 975%

8340

757%

68 3%

t

5330

24 2%

367%

t.727

343%

Nt

Note | Marjone Scardino stepped down from the board on 31 December 2012 and John Fallon was appainted CEQ with effect

from ¢ January 2013

Note 2 The annual incentive 15 the actual annual incentive 1 ecewved by the incumbent as a percentage of maximum opportunity

MNote 3 The long-term inceruve 15 the pay-our of performance-refated restncted shares under the fong-term weentive plan where
the year shown s the final yeat of the performance penod for the purposes of calculanng the single total figure of remuneration




Comparative information

The following mformauon s intended to provide
addmional context regarding the total remuneration
for executive directors

Relative percentage change mn remunerauon for CEQ
The following table sets out the change between 2012
and 2013 in three elements of remunerauon for the
CEQ, in companson to the average for all employees

However, while the committee considers the increase
in base pay for the CEQ refatve to the broader
employee population benefits are driven by local
practices and ehigibiiity s determined by level and
indvidual circumstances which do not lend itself to
comparison Stmilarly, annual incentives are driven by
different factors throughout the organisation and so are
typically not compared

Altowances
Base and Annuzi
salary benefits  1ncentive Total
CEO -24%  -T7% 7% -22%
All employees 5% (% 3% 8%

Note | The figures for the CEQ are based on the
rernuneratron of Majone Scardine for 201 2 and of John Falion
for 2013

Note 2 The figures for all ernployees reflect average salanes
and average employee numbers each year Annual mcentves
include aff plans, mcluding sales incentives

Refative importance of pay spend

The committee consider directors’ remuneration i the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operating profit because this 15
a measure of our ability to remnvest in the company.
We include dividends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on-year chanpe

(m 013 2002 &%
Operating profic 36 932 -196 -21%
Dividends 372 346 26 +8%
Total wages and

salaries 1,836 1,610 226 +i4%

MNote Wages and salaries include conunuing operations only
and include directois 2012 15 restated on the same basis
Average employee numbers for conttnuing operations for
2013 were 42,115 (2012 42 135) Further detads are set out
i note 5 to the financial staternents on page 142

Section 4 Governance 11

Information on changes to remuneratton for 2014

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salares for 2014 taking into account general econonic
and market conditions, the level of ncreases made
across the company as a whole, the remuneration

of executives in similar posiuons i comparable
compantes and indvidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2014 base salaries for the
CEQ and CFOQO are as follows

John Robin
Fallon Freescone

Base salary at

31 December 2013 £750,000 £545,000
£15,000 £11,000

Increas
€ 20% 20%

Base salary at

| April 2014 £765,000 £556,000

Full detasts will be set out i the annual remuneration
report and mcluded in the single figure of total
remuneration for 2014

Annual incentive
The key design prninaiples underlying the company’s
approach to annual incentives for 2014 are

» full alignment of annual incentives with the global
education strategy to remforce 2 ‘one Pearson’ focus,

» a clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incenuve framework for
Lines of Business, Geographies and Enabling functions

> the size of the overall annual incentive pay-out will be
inked to overall Pearson performance.
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Report on directors’ remuneratuon continued

The principles that underhie the ‘one Pearson’
approach to funding are that

there will be 2 single annual mcentive pool for Pearson
which will vary according to the performance of the
whole company;

for 2014 the overall Pearson performance measures
and weightungs will be adjusted earnings per share
(60% weighting), sales {20%). cash flow {209},

there will be a theoretical "'on target’ size for the annual
incentive pool which ts the sum of all employees
annual Incentive opportunities,

there will be scope to fiex the size of the pool upwards
if performance exceeds target (up to a cap) and
downwards if performance falis short of target (down
to a threshoid below which no annual incentive would
be paid) This flex will be sufficiently sensitive to
demonstrate a clear hnlk between overall performance
and the annual incentive pay-out, but not so sensitive
that there 1s signsficant uncertainty i the total pay-out
The committee will set a range around which the
annual incentive pay-out can flex,

the Pearson financial targets will be set each year as
part of the normal operating plan process The CEO
and CFO will recommend the overail Pearson mncentive
funding metrics (including performance measures,
targets and weightings) to the committee for approval
in the normal way,

the Pearson-derived pay-out may be informed and
modified (up or down) reflecting the arcumstances

at the ume consistent with the committee s normal
adjustment powers

in relation to the operaton of the annual Incentive
framework for the executive directors and the
Pearson Executive

there will be no change m indmvidual annual incentve
opportuntties,

for 2014, there would be one mechamsm for
determiming annual mcentve for an indmidual, namely
a combination of Pearson-wide performance and
ndividual goals,

» the sum of the CEQ's and the Pearson Executives' ‘on
target’ annual incenuve constitutes the mncentive pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on
overall Pearson performance,

» individual performance 1s assessed against goals set at
the start of the year,

» indvidual pay-outs up to mdividual maximum
opportunities and within the total pool are
recommended by the CEQ (or by the chairman in the
case of the CEQ himself} for review and, in the case of
the executive directors, approval by the committee

The commuttee considers the performance targets
for 2014 1o be commercially sensitive Dertails of
performance measures, weightings and targets will be
disclosed in the annual remunerauon report for 2014
if and 1o the extent that the commitiee deems them
to be no longer commercally sensitive




~

'

L ong-term mcentives

The commnee reviewed the design and operation

of the long-term mncentives plan with the foliowing
changes for performance-related awards to be granted
to members of the Pearson Executive wy 2014

the weighting of the performance metrics will be
50% on earnings per share growth, 33 3% on return
on invested capital and 16 7% on refative total
shareholder return

performance will continue to be tested over three
years and 75% of the vested shares will continue to

be released at that point However, there will be a
mandatory restriction on participants ability to dispose
of the 75% of the vested shares {other than 1o meet
personal tax liabiiwes) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants nghts to the release of

the 25% of the vested shares will be subject to
continued employment over the same period

We have set targets for the 2014 awards that are
congistent with the company's strategic objectives
over the period to 2016

Subject to approval of the company’s rermuneration
policy, the performance measures and targets for the
2014 long-term incenuve awards to the executive
directors and other members of the Pearson Executve
that will be made as soon as practicable after the AGM
will be as follows

Secuon 4 Governance 13

Pay-cut Pay-out

Performance Per{formance an Pay-qut at
measure Wughung period  threshold progression  maximum
100%

30% for EPS

2016 for EPS growth

EPS compared growth Straghe- of
growth 50% to 2013 of 60% hne 120%
30% 100%

for 50% for for
ROIC ROIC ROIC

ROIC  333% 2016 of 65% of 70% of 75%
100%

at

Relative 2014 to 30% at Straight-  upper
TSR 167% 2017 median hine quarcile

We will set the level of individual awards consistent
with those seen in recent years and below the policy
maximum taking into account

» the face value of indvidual awards at the ume of grant,
assurming that performance targets are met in full,

> market practice for comparable companies and markert
assessments of total remuneration from our
mdependent adwisers,

1 ndvdual rales and responsibilities; and
» company and individual performance

At the time of writng, the commuttee has yet to
approve the 2014 long-term incentive awards for
the executive directors and other members of
the Pearson Executve
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Report on directors’ remuneraton continued

Full details of individual awards and of the performance
measures, weightings and targets for 20{4 will be set
out In the annual remuneration report for 2014,

For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calculation of relauve totat shareholder return will be
moved to the period running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months more n line with insttugonal investors’
preferences

Annual bonus share matching

The previous annual bonus share matching plan will
cease to operate with the last awards made m 2013
i respect of annual incenuve for 2012 We have
not made any compensatory adjustments to annual
or long-term incentive opportunities to take this
INTO account

Fees for the chairman and non-executive directors
The chairman’s and non-executive directors’ fees were
reviewed for 2014

As a consequence of that review, the basic non-
executive directors’ fee, and the fees for comnurtee
chairmanship and committee membership were
ncreased Fees for the charmanship and membership
of the reputatton and responsibiity commitiee were
also introduced {or the first ume The salary for the
chairman remains unchanged

The pohcy and future arrangements are set out
on page 92 in the directors remuneration policy
report

Approved by the board and signed on 1ts behalf by

David Arculus Director
10 March 2014
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc

Repart on the financial statements

Qur opinion
In our opinion

The financial statements, defined befow, give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and company’s
affars as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s
profit and of the Group’s and company’s cash flows
for the year then ended,

The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union,

The company financial statements have been properly
prepared i accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

The financiat statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Compaiues
Act 2006 and, as regards the conschdated financial
starerments, Article 4 of the |AS Regutaton

This opinton 1s to be read in the context of what we
say i1 the remainder of this report

Separate opinion i relation to FRSs as 1ssued by

the IASE

As explained in note | to the financial statements, the
Group, i addison to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also apphed IFRSs as ssued by
the Internatonal Accounting Standards Board ({ASB)

in our opmion the consohdated financal statements
comply with [FRSs as issued by the IASB

WWhat we have audited

The consolidated financial statements and company
financial statements (the financal statements’), which
are prepared by Pearson plc, comprise

the consohdated and company balance sheet as at

31 December 2013,

the consolidated income statermnent and statement of
comprehensive income for the year then ended,

the consolidated and company statemnents of changes
1 equity and cash flow staternents for the year then
ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting pohicies and other
explanatory mformation.

The financral reporting framework that has been
apphed i their preparaton comprises applicable law
and [FRSs as adopted by the European Union and as
regards the company, as apphed i accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Certain disclosures required by the financial repeorting
framewark have been presented elsewhere in the
annual report and accounts (the ‘annual report’),
rather than i the notes to the financial statements
These are cross-referenced from the financial
statements and are dentfied as audired

What an audic of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
(15As (UK & treland)) An audit involves obtainmg
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financiat statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financtal statements are free from
material misstatement. whether caused by fraud or
error This mcludes an assessment of

~

whether the accountng polictes are approprate to the
Group's and company's arcumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,

w

the reasonableness of significant accounting esumates
made by the directors, and

the overall presentation of the financial statements

~

in additron, we read all the financiat and non-financial
information in the annual report to 1dentsfy matersal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to denufy any mformatton that s apparenty
materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us m the course of
perforrming the audit If we become aware of any
apparent matera misstaternents or mconsistencies

we consider the implicauons for our report




Cwerview of our audit approach

Matenality

We set certain thresholds for materality These helped
us to determune the nature urmng and extent of our
audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
musstatements, both mdividually and on the financeal
statemnents as a whole

Using our professional judgement, we derermined
materiality for the consolidated financial statements as
a whole to be £32m This s based on 5% of profit
before tax, after adjusting for non-recurring tems such
as gain on disposal of subsidiaries, this bemg an
appropnate measure of the group’s underying
performance

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them misstatements idenufied during our
audit above £2m as well as misstatements below that
amount that, n our view, warranted reporting for
quabtative reasens

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group 1s organised into four businass segments,
being North Amencan Education, International
Education, Professional and FE Group, plus the
investment in assocrate Penguin Random House Each
segment comprises a number of reporung units The
consolidated financial statements comprise these
reporting units plus the Group's centralised functions

I estabhishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporting umis by us, as the Group
engagement teant. or component auditors within PwC
UK and from other PwC network firms operaung
under our mstruction. Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
mvalvement we needed to have i the audit work at
those reporung units to be able 1o conclude whether
sufficient approprate audit evidence had been obtamed
as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole

Secuion 5 Finanoal statements {7

Across these segments, we dentified two reporung
units in the US and UK that required an audit of therr
complete financial information due to size alone, plusa
further nine reporung units m the US, UK, Brazil, China
and South Afirica that required specified procedures
on certan transacuons and balances We also obtained
an audnt opinton on the financial information of the
assoctate Penguin Random House Our audit work

at these reporting units and at head office gave us
coverage of approximately 80% of the Group’s profit
before tax Thus, together with procedures at the
consolidated Group level and at the Group's shared
service centres, provided the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the consohdated financial statements
taken as a whole.

Areas of partyicular audit focus

In preparing the financial statements, the directors
made a number of subjective judgements, for example
n respect of significant accounting estimates that
wvolved malang assumptions and considerng future
events that are inherently uncertain We primariy
facused our worl n these areas by assessing the
directors’ judgements agamst avatlable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures m the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined mformation,
using samphng and other auditing techrigues, to
the extent we considered necessary to provide

a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions

We obtamed audit evidence through testing the
effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures
or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that
required particular focus m the current year This s not
a complete hst of all nsks or areas of focus identfied by
our audit We discussed these areas of focus with the
audtt commuttee Then report on those matters that
they considered to be significant issyes in relation to
the financral statements 15 set out on pages 68 and 6%
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Independent auditors' report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of fotus

How the scope of our audic addressed the arez of focus

Ruslc of fraud in revenue recognition

Auditing standards require us to consider the nisk of
fraud in revenue recogmton

We focused on material products and seirvices where
revenue recognition practces are particularly complex
and subject to estmates, being

» muiuple element arrangements, such as the provision

of supplementary (print or digizal} materials or

traning with textbooks, where revenue 1s recognised

for each element as if it were an individual

contractual arrangement requiring the estimanon of

its farr value, and

y  certan long-term contracts in the Education
segments, where revenue is recognised using

estimated percentage of completion based on costs

Risk of management overnide of internal controls

Auditng standards require us to consider the risk of
management averride of internal controls

Woe evaluated the relevant systems and tested the
internal controls over the accurate and complete
reccrding of revenue

We assessed the accounang treatment of new
CORntracts at inceptron, ncluding exarmmauon of
evidence supporting key assumptions and estimates
We assessed the profitability and percentage of
completion estimates made for material long-term
revenue contracts and assessed muluple-element
arrangements and the related fair value allocauons
We performed substantive testing of revenue
recorded during the year and evaluated any changes
in estimates to determine f they were indicators of
management bras

We also tested manual journals posted to revenue to
determine thetr approprateness and comphance with
Group revenue recogmuon policies

We assessed the overall control environment of

the Group, inctuding the arrangements for staff to
‘whistleblow” inapproprate acuons, and interviewed
senior management and the Group’s nternal audit
functon We examined the significant accounting
estimates and judgements refevant to the financial
statements for evidence of bias by the directors that
may represent a risk of matenal misstatement due to
fraud We also tested manual journal entries, including
consolidation entries, and mncorporated elements of
unptredictabibty in the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures

Penguin Random House transaction

On | july 2013, management announced the completion

of the Penguin Random House combinauon wiich
resulted in a number of complex accounting and
business model changes as follows

y disposal accounting, ncluding the gan on the sale,

> valuation of the new business and intangible
assets, and

»  assocate accounting, ncluding aignment of
accounting policies and presentation of results
i the consehidated financial statements
We focused on thus area because it was a complex
transaction which required the directors to exercise
a significant level of judgement

We evaluated the directors’ assessment of this
wransacuon as a disposal of 2 business segment, and

an acqguistuen

We evaluated the valuation of the business and
assoctated gam on disposal We also assessed the
resulting associate accounting including the farr vaiue
acquistison adjustments such as recognition of intangible
assets and alignment of accounting policies and thew
application For the valuation exercises we assessed the

directors’ cash flow forecasts, comparing them to board

approved plans and challenged the underlying
assumpuions
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Area of focus
Prowvision for uncertain tax kabihues

The Group 1s subject to several tax regimes due to the
geographical diversity of its businesses

The directors are required to exeraise significant
judgement in determining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potenuial tax exposures and
uncertain tax provisions The most significant of these
relate to US tax

We focused on this area because of the inherent
judgements required in estimating the amount of any
proviston required Changes m assumptions can
materially impact the level of provisions recorded in the
financial statements

Returns provisions

We focused on this area because there are materal
judgemental provisions for anticipated book returns
within the Education segments parucularly as the
Group transitions from print to digital

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

We obtained an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to identify tax risks relating o business and
legislative developments We recalculated the directors’
valuation of tax provisions and determined whether the
caleulanons were m line with the Group's tax policies
and had been appled consistently

We evaluated key underlying assumptions particularly
i the US and n termitories with new cross border

tax structures, having due regard to ongomng
correspondence between the Group and focal

tax authorives

We tested the calculavion of the provisions, assessing
judgements for reasonableness against fustorical
experience and the wnpact on returns of the

ongoing business transition from print to digital

Ve also tested controls in the shipment and returns
provisioning processes

Valuaton of pre-publicauon assets and inventories

We focused on this area because there are matenial pre-
publication assets and inventones within the Education
segments Judgement 15 required to evaluate the vaiuation
of these assets whrch may be more complex durng the
transtuon from print to digital

Goodwill impairment reviews

We focused on this area because the Group carres
significant goodwill and acquired intangible asset balances
There s judgement in the tdentfication and aggregation
of cash generatng units (CGUs) and 1n the assumptions
used in the annual goodwill impairment review

We evaluated the recoverabihiy of the pre-publication
assets and inventories held, by assessing actal
expertence aganst historical estimates and in light

of bustness transstion from print to digital

We also tested controls in the pre-publication assets
and mventortes processes

We tested management's imparment analysss by
examining thesr identification and aggregation of

CGUs and by evaluatng the underlying assumptions
through assessment of forecasts market condinons

and sensiivity analysis and through assessing the
histoncal accuracy of forecasts and budgets

We assessed management s calculaton of discaunt rates
and perpetuity growth rates and we rested the integricy
of the valuauon model
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic continued

Gomng concern

Under the Listng Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement, set out on page 72, in relation to
going concern We have nothing to report having
performed our revrew

As noted in the directors’ staterent, the directors
have concluded that it 1s appropnate to prepare the
consolidated and company financial statements using
the going concern basis of accounting The gomng
concern basis presumes that the Group and company
have adequate resources to remain i operation, and
that the directors intend them to do so, for at least
one year from the date the financial statements were
signed As part of our audit we have concluded that the
directors’ use of the going concern basis 1s appropriate

However, because not all future events or condions
can be predicted these statements dre not a guarantee
as to the Group's and the company's ability to
conuinue as a going concern

Optmions on ather matters prescribed by the
Comparues Act 2006

In our opiion

the information given in the strategic report and the
directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with

the financial statements, and

the part of the directors’ remunerauon report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Comparves Act 2006

Other matters on which we are required to report by
excepuon

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

to report ta you (f, 1n our opinion

» we have not received all the mformaton and
explanations we require for our audit. or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneranion report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns

VWe have no excepuons to report ansing from this
responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required

to report to you i, in our opiion, certamn disclosures
of directors’ remuneration specified by law have not
been made We have no exceptions to report ansmg
from this responsibity




~~

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the Company’s compliance with nine provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code} We
have nothing to report having performed our review

On page 74 of the annual report, as required by the
Code Proviston C [ |, the directors state that they
consider the annual report taken as a whole to be
farr, palanced and understandable and provides the
nformation necessary for members to assess the
Group's perfermance, business model and strategy
On pages 68 and 69, as required by C 3 8 of the
Code, the audit committee has set out the significant
issues that it considered in relation to the financial
staternents, and how they were addressed Under ISAs
{UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you ff, i
our opinion

» the statement given by the directors is matenally
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group
acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

» the section of the annual report describing the work
of the audit committee does not appropnately address
matters communicated by us to the audit committee

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responsibility.
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Other information in the annual report

Under ISAs (UK & Irefand)}, we are required to report
to you If, in our optnion, information in the annuat
report is

» materally inconsistent with the information in the
audized financial statements, or

> apparently materially incorrect based on or materally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group and
company acquired in the course of performing cur
audit, or

» 1s atherwise nusleading

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responstbility
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and
the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explamed more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilives set out on page 74, the directors are
responsible for the preparatton of the consolidated and
company financial staterments and for being sausfied
that they give a true and fair view

Cur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinicn on
the consolidated and company financial statements
accordance with applicable law and 15As (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Pracuces Board's Ethecal Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as a body

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part |6 of the
Cormpanies Act 2006 and for no other purpose

We do not, in giving these opiiions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or 1o any other
person Lo whom this report i1s shown or inte whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by

QUL.DIOF CONSENT N WIHNE
P LEPAGA,
Stuart Newman (Sentor Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

10 March 2014

Notes

(a) The mamntenance and integnity of the Pearson
plc website is the responsibiity of the directors,
the work carred out by the auditors does not
nvolvae consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibiity
for any changes that may have occurved to the
financial statements since they were imtally
presented on the website

(b} Legislation in the United Kingdom governing

the preparavon and dissemination of financial

statements may differ from tegislation in other

jurisdicuons

S




Section 5 Finanoial <tatemeants 123
Consolidated income statement
Year ended 3} December 2013

Motes 013 012

Al figures 1 £ mullions Festuced
Sales 2 5,065 4959
Cost of goods sold 4 (2312)  (2,187)
Gross profic 2,757 172
Operating expenses 4 (2353  (2.181)
Loss on closure of subsidiary - (113}
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 54 9
Operating profit 2 458 487
Finance costs 6 {n {115)
Finance income 6 35 19
Profit before tax 382 391
income tax 7 (87) (138)
Profit for the year from conunuing operations 295 253
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 244 61
Profit for the year 539 34
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the company 538 31
Non-controlling interest ! 3
Earntngs per share for profit frem continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the company during the year
(expressed in pence per share)
— basic ] 66 6p 387p
- diluted 8 66 5p 38 6p
Earnings per share for profit from contruing operations actributable
to equity holders of the company during the year
(expressed in pence per share)
—basic 8 36 4p 3t lp
— diluted 8 36 3p 3t 0p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 3t December 2013

Notes 2013 012
All Fgures i £ muthons o Resated
Profit for the year 539 314
{tems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translauon of foreign operatons ~ Group {206) (238)
Met exchange differences on translatior of foreign operatuons - assocites (H) -
Currency translaton adjustment disposed - Group (18) -
Artributable tax 7 6 I
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligattons — Group 25 79 (100)
Remeasurement of renrement benefit obligations - associates - (3)
Atnbutable tax _ 7 (23) 50
Other comprehensive expense for the year (173) {(290)
Total comprehensive income for the year 366 24
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 369 23
Non-controlling interast {3) i
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013
Afl figures ws £ muflions Notes 2013 2012
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 342 327
Intangtble assets 1" 5,801( 6.218
Investments in joint ventures and associates iz 092 15
Deferred income tax assets 13 250 229
Financial assets — Dervauve financial instruments 13 Hi 174
Retirement benefit assets P13 86 -
Other financial assets 15 94 EY
Trade and other recewvables 2 70 79
7.846 7.073
Current asserts
intangible assets - Pre-publicatron Pl 717 666
Inventores 21 224 261
Trade and other receivables 2 1,173 1104
Financtal assets — Dervative financial instruments 16 i3 4
Financial assets — Marketable secuniues 14 6 6
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) L (7 729 1,062
2,862 3.103
Assets classified as held for sale 32 223 V172
Total assets 10931 11,348
Liabilities
Non-current habilities
Financial habiliues — Borrowings T (1,693) (2,010)
Financiaf hiabiliwes — Dervative financial instruments 16 {48) -
Deferred income tax habilites 13 (612) {(601)
Retirernent benefit obligatons 25 (142) (172)
Prowvisions for other habilities and charges 23 77 {19
Other habiliues 24 (257) (282)
(2829  (3,175)
Current liabilities
Trade and other habilivres 21 (1,505}  (i.,558)
Financial labiliwes - Borrowings e (833} (262)
Current income tax liabthues (i64) (291)
Provisions for other habilines and charges 23 (1i2) (38)
{2,314) (2.147)
Labiliwes directly associated with assets classified as held for sale ) (82) (316)
Total habilities (5.225)__”*(5: _6"335
Net assets 5,706 5710
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2013

Al figures n £ milhons Notes 2013 202
Equity -
Share capital 27 205 204
Share premium 7 1568 2.555
Treasury shares b1 (98} (1G3)
Transtaton reserve (103) t28
Retamed earmungs L B 3,128 2,902
Tortal equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5,700 5.686
Non-controlling nterest é 24
5.706 5,710

Total equity

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on [0 March 2014 and signed

on s behalf by

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer

/;—w
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2013

127

Equity artribuinzble to equity holders of the company

Non-

Share Share  Treasury Transfation Rewuned controling Total
All figures in £ mullons _ capical premium shares reserve carnngs Total Interesy equity
At | fanuary 2013 204 2,555 {103} 128 2902 5686 24 570
Profit for the year - - - - 538 538 i 539
Other comprehensive expense - - - {23 62 (169} 4y  (173)
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 37 37 ~ 37
Tax on equity-settied transactrons - - - - - - - -
Jssue of ordinary shares under share
opuion schemes | 13 - - - |4 - 4
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47) - - (47} - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - {52) - - -
Put options over nen-controliing
interest - - - - - - - -
Changes in non-controlkng interest - - ~ - i3 13 (15) (2)
Dividends - - - - (372) (372 - {372}
At 3| December 2013 205 2568 (98) (103) 3,128 5700 6 5706

Lquity aurnbuseble to equity holders of the company Restated
o S o Pon

Share Share Trewury  Translaucn Rewaned congrolling Toul
Al figures i £ mll ons capnal prenusm shares _ reserve eamings Yotal IntEvest equay
At | lanuary 2012 204 2544 (149) 364 2980 5943 19 5962
Profit for the year - - - - 31 31 3 34
COrther comprehensive expense - - - (236) (52) (288 ) (290
Equity-settled transacuions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - (&) {6) -~ (6)
Issue of ordinary shares under share
option schemes - b - - - I - It
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - ~ - - -
Release of treasury shares - -~ 46 - (46} — - -
Put eptions over nan-controlling
nterest - - - - 39 39 - 39
Changes in non-controlling mterest - - - - 1] (10) é (4)
Dradends 3 - - - ~  (346) (348 (2) (348
At 31 December 2012 204 2,555 (103) 28 2902 5686 24 5710

The translation teserve includes exchange differences ansing from the transiauon of the net investment in foregn
operations and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2013

All figures i £ milhians Notes 2013 012
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash generated from operattons 3 684 916
Interest pad {82) {75}
Taxpad (246} (65)
Net cash generated from operating activities 356 776
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisiion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 {48) {716)
Acqursition of joint ventures and associates {10} (39)
Purchase of investments (64) (10y
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (H18) (78)
Purchase of intangible assets (64} (73)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed E]] (132) {n
Proceeds from sale of associates 2 -
Proceeds from sale of investments 2 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 28 |
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 3
Proceeds from sale of iquid resources I3 23
fnvestment in hquid resources (14) (19)
interest received 9 9
Diwvidends receved from joint ventures and associates 64 27
Net cash used in investing activities {330 (883)
Cash fiows from financing acuvities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 7 4 il
Purchase of treasury shares 5 47 -
Proceeds from borrowings 319 327
Loans to related parues (44) -
Loans advanced {5) -
Ligund resources acquired - {H
Repayment of borrowings {225) -
Finance lease pnnaipal payments (8) {8)
Cwidends paid to company's shareholders 5 (372} (346)
Dividends paid to non-contr ofling interest - (2)
Transactcns with non-controlfing interest 13 (76} 4
Net cash used in financing activities (444) (23}
Effects of cxchange rate changes an cash and cash equivalents 21 24)
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (397 {154)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year B ) 137 1,291
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 740 I.137

The consolidated cash flow statement includes discontiiiued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

Pearson plc (the company) its subsidiaries and
associates (together the Group) are nternauonal
medta businesses covering education, business
informavion and consumer publishing

The company is a public iimited company incorporated
and domiciled in England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has its primary ksung on the London
Stock Exchange and is also histed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors
on 10 March 2014

I Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies apphed i the
preparatuon of these conschdated financial staternents
are set out below

a Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and i accordance
with [nternatonal Financal Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS Interpretauons Committee interpretations as
adopted by the European Union (EU} and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applcable to compantes
reportng under IFRS In respect of the accounting
standards applicable o the Group there 1s no difference
between Elj-adopted and 1ASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
habikuies (including dervauve financial instruments)
o fair value through profic or loss

I Interpretations and amendments to publshed standords
effective 2013

The following amendments and interpretations were
adoptedn 2013

Amendments to [AS |9 ‘Employee Benefits (201 1),
effecuve for annual reporung penods beginning on
or afeer { January 2013 The amendments include the
elimnavon of the corndor approach, changes to the
calcutauon of the net interest and service cost
components and changes to disclosure The 2012
results have been restated for 1AS (9 (201 1) with
the results as follows

Operating profit reduced by £4m
Net finance costs increased by £15m
Income tax charge reduced by £4m

The remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations
charge in the statement of other comprehensive
income reduced by £15m

If the results for 2013 had been prepared under {AS 19
(rev 2008) the service cost would have been £4m
lower and the net interest income would have been
£28m higher

Amendments 1o IAS | Presentauon of Finanaal
Statements — Presentauon of items and Cther
Comprehensive Income, effective for annual
reporting periods beginring on or after | july 2012
The amendmaents require the grouping of items in
other comprehensive income into those that may

be reclassified to the mcome statement in subsequent
periods, and those that will not The statement of
other comprehensive income has been updated to
present this mformation

~

N~

The |ASB issued a ‘package of five' new and amended
standards together IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial
Statemnents’, IFRS 1| ‘Joint Arrangements’ and {FRS {2
‘Disclosures of Involverment with Other Enuties” have
been ssued |AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’
(Revised 201 1) has been amended foliowing the issuance
of IFRS 10 and retains the gudance for separate
finanaia! statements |AS 28 ‘Investments i Associates
and foint Ventures' (Revised 201 |) has been amended
following the issuance of IFRS 10 and {FRS {1 All three
new standards and two amended standards are not
mandatory for the Group until t January 2014
However, the Group has early adopted these
standards and amendrnents as of | January 2013

> IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement’, effective for annual
reporting periods beginiung on or after | January 2013
The standard defines fair value, provides guidance on
its determination, and ntroduces disclosure
requirements on fair value measurements

Amendments to IFRS 7, "Financial tnstruments —
Dnsclosures’ regarding asset and liability offsettng

~

Amendments to J1AS 36, ‘Imparment of assets’, on
the recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets This amendment removed certan disclosures
of the recoverable amount of CGls which had been
included in IAS 36 by the 1ssue of IFRS 13 The
amendment is not mandatory for the Group untit

t january 2014 However, the Group has early
adopted the amendments as of | January 2013
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Notes to the consohdated financtal statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

a. Basis of preparaticn continued

With the exception of IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits
(20117, the adopuion of these new pronouncements
from | January 2013, does not have a material impact
on the consohdated financial statements Disclosure
reguirements have been updated as required

2 Standaids, mterpretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

{FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | fanuary 2018
The new standard detaids the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recogniton of financial
assets and habilities The Group 1s yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9 and will do so once the remaining
sectons of the standard are completed

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’ detads the accounting for an
obligation to pay 2 levy that 1s not income tax As the
Group 1s not currently subjected to significant levies
the impact on the Group 1s not material

3 Critical accounting assumpuons ond judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certamn critical accounting
assumpuons {t also requires management to exercise
its judgement it the process of applying the Group's
accounting polices The areas requinng a higher degree
of judgement or complexty, or areas where assumpuons
and estimates are significant to the consoldated
financial statements, are discussed in the relevant
accountng polictes under the {ollowing headings

[ntangtble assets Goodwill

intangible assets: Pre-publication assets
Taxauon

Employee benefits Pension obhgations
Revenue recognition

b Consohdation

| Business combictions The acquisiion method of
accounting 1s used to account for business combinatons
The consideranon wansferred for the acquisiion

of a subsichary 1s the fair value of the assets transferred,
the habhittes incurred and the equity interest 1ssued by
the Group The consideranon transferred includes the
faur value of any asset or liability resutting from a
conungent consideration arrangement Acquisition
related costs are expensed as incurred in the operatng
expenses line of the mcome statement

Idenufiable assets and conungent assets acquired and
identifiable labiities and conungent liabilittes assumed
in a business combmation are measured migally at
thew fair values at the acquisition date For matenal
acquisitions, the far value of the acquired mntangble
assets 1s determined by an ndependent valuer. The
excess of the consideranon transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
iterest in the acquiree over the farr value of the
idenufiable net assets acquired i1s recorded as goodwill

See note le(l) for the accounung pohicy on goodwill

If this 15 less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsichary acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference 1s recogrised directly m the income statement

On an acquisibon-by-acquisiion basis, the Group
recogruses any non-controlling interest i the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proporucnate share of the acquiree’s net assets

2 Subsidianes Subsidiartes are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from s involvernent with the entity and has
the ability to affect those retums through 1ts power
over the entity Subsidianes are fully consolidated from
the date on which control s transferred to the Group
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases

3. Tiansactions with non-controlfing interests Transacuons
with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
that is as transactions with the owners in their capacty
as owners Any surplus or defiot ansing from disposals
to a non-controlling interest I1s recorded in equity

For purchases from a non-controlling interest, the
difference between consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of the subsidiary 15
tecorded in eqguity

4 fomt ventures and assocates JOINT ventures are entges in
wilich the Group holds an interest on a fong-term basis
and has rights to the net assets through contractually
agreed sharing of control Associates are eniities over
which the Group has significant influence but not the
power to controt the financal and operating polcies
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting nghts investments in joint ventures
and assocates are accounted for by the equity method
and are initially recogrused at the far value of
consideration transferred




I Accounting policies continued

b Consolidation continued

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses 1s recognised in the
income statement and 1ts share of post-acquisition
movements I reserves 15 recognised 1n reserves

The Group's share of s joint ventures’ and associates’
results 1s recognised as a component of operating profit
as these operations form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
exasting wholly-owned businesses The cumulatve
post-acquisiuon movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment When the Group's
share of losses in a [oint venture or associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the jont venture or associate the
Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture or associate

¢ Foreign currency transfation

{ Functional and presentatron cuntency ltems included in
the financral statements of each of the Group's entiues
are meastred using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the enuty operates
{the ‘funcuonal currency’) The consolidated financral
statements are presented n sterling, which is the
company's functional and presentation currency

2 Tronsactions and balances Foreign currency
transacuons are translated inta the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange gans and losses
resulung from the setdement of such transacnons and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and habiliies denominated in forergn
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying nat
investiment hedges

3 Group compantes The resudes and financial position
of all Group compamnies that have a funcuonal currency
different from the presentation currency are wanslated
nto the presentatton currency as folfows

1} assets and habifities are translated at the closing rate
at the date of the balance sheet,

) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates

w) all resulung exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity
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On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency mstruments
designated as hedges of such mvestments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specific
mter-company loan balances which are not intended
to be repaid n the foreseeable future, as part of s net
mnvestment When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $1 57 (2012 $1 59) and the year end rate was
$166 (2012 $163)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable
1o bringing the asset 1o s working condmon for
mtended use Land is not depreciated Depreciation
on other assets 15 calculated using the straight-ine
method to allocate thewr cost less thew residual values
over ther esumated useful lives as follows

Burddings (freehold) 20-50 years
Buldings {leasehold) over the period of the lease
Plant and equipment:  3—{Q years

The assets’ residual values and useful hves are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date

The carrying value of an asset 1s written down 1o 115
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
is greater than (ts esnmated recoverable amount.

e Intangible assets

I Goodwill Far the acquistuon of subsidianes made

on or after | January 2010 goodwill represents the
excess of the consideranon wansferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and

the acquistron date fair value of any previous equity
interast in the acquiree over the faw valse of the
identifiable net assets acquired For the acquisition of
substcdharies made from the date of transition to IFRS
to 31 December 2009 goodwill represents the excess
of the cost of an acquisiton over the far value of the
Group's share of the net identfiable assets acquired
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included m
intangible assets, Goodwil on acquisiion of assocrates
and joint ventures represents the excess of the cost of
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accountng polictes continued

e intangbie assets continued

an acquisiion over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the netidenufiable assets acquired Goodwil on
acquisiions of assocrates and joint ventures 1s included
in investments in associates and joint ventures

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and

carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses
Animpairment loss s recognised to the extent

that the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the
hugher of fair value less costs to selt and value 1n use
These calculations require the use of estimates and
signtficant management judgement A description of the
key assumptions and sensitivitries 15 included 1 note
Goodwill 1s allocated to aggregated cash-generatng
units for the purpose of imparment testing The
allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combinavan in which the goodwill arose

Gamns and losses on the disposal of an entity nclude
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ has not been applied
retrospectively to business combmauons before the
date of transtuon to IFRS

2 Acqutred software Software separately acquired for
internal use 15 capitalised at cost Software acquired in
matental business combinations (s capitahsed at s fair
value as determined by an independent valuer
Acquired software s amortised on a straight-ine basis
over s estmated useful life of between three and
eight years

3 internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred dunng the preliminary stage of
developing computer software for miternal use are
expensed as incurred Internal and external costs
mcurred to develop computer software for internal
use during the applicauon development stage are
capitatised if the Group expects econormic benefits
from the development Capitaksation in the applicaton
development stage begins once the Group can rehiably
measure the expenditure attrtbutable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software [nternally developed
software ts amorused on a straight-fine basis over its
estimated useful Iife of between three and eight years

4 Acquired intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer lists and relavonships, wrademarks
and brands, publishing rights, content and technelogy
These assets are capitalised on acquisiton at cost and
included mintangible assets Intangible assets acquired
in materal business combinations are caprtalised at
theur fair value as deternuined by an mdependent valuer
Intangible assets are amortused over their estimated
useful lives of between two and 20 years, using an
amortisatton methed that reflects the pattern of

their consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and tides pnor to their
publicatton These costs are recognised as current
intangible assets where the utle will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
reliably Pre-pubhcation assets are amortised upon
publicauon of the utle over estimated economic lives
of five years or less, being an esumate of the expected
operatung life cycle of the tide, with a hugher proporuon
of the amorusation taken i the earher years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operauons
in the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverabidity of pre-publicauon
assets and the deternunaton of the amortisanon
profile involve a significant degree of judgement based
on histonical trends and management estmatton of
future potenual sales An sncorrect amortisation profile
could result in excess amounts being carred forward as
intangble assets that would otherwise have been written
off to the mcome statement in an earher period

Reviews are performed regularly to esumate
recoverabifity of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets 1s set aut in note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for
sale investments, are non-dervative financial assets
measured at esumated far value Changes m the
far value are recorded i equity 1n the far value
reserve On the subsequent disposal of the asset,
the net fair value gains or losses are taken to the
tncome statement




4 A}

| Accounting pohcies continued

g Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
raabsable value Cost 1s deterimuned using the first in
first out (FIFO) method The cost of finished goods
and worlc in progress comprises raw matenals, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads Net realisable value is the estimated seffing
price i1 the ordinary course of business, less esumated
costs necessary to make the szle Prowvisions are made
for slow moving and obsolete stock

h Ravyalty advances

Advances of royalues to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance 1s paid
less any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in deterrmining the profitabibity of indmdual author
contracts | the esumarted realisable value of author
contracts s overstated, this will have an adverse effect
on operatng profits as these excess amounts will be
wrigren off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based upon
an annual detailed management review of the age of
the advance, the future sales projecuons for new
authors and prior sales history of repeat authors
The royalty advance s expensed at the contracted
or effecuve royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Royalty advances which will be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royalty
advances which will be consumed after one year are
held in non-current assets

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents m the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banis,
other short-term highly bquid investments with

original matuntes of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are included in borrowings
in curvent habiltties in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunties with
matunpes of greater than three months do not qualfy
as cash and cash equivalents Movements on these
financial nstruments are classified as cash flows

from financing activities in the cash flow statement
where these amounts are used to offset the
borrowings of the Group or as cash flows from
wnvesting actvities where these amounts are held

to generate an Invesument return

Section 5 Finzncial statements 133

| Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown th equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company's
equity share capstal (treasury shares} the consideration
paid, wnctuding any directly attributable incremental
costs, net of ncome taxes, 18 deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders unul the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

15 included in equity atenbutable to the company's
equity holders

k Borrowings

Barrowings are recognised mitially at fair value, which
1s proceeds recetved net of transacuon costs ncurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redempuon value being
recognised in the income statement over the pernod
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued nterest 1s included as part of borrowings
Where a debt instrument is in a fair value hedging
refattonship, an adjustment s made to 1ts carrying value
in the Income statement to reflect the hedged nislc
Interest on borrowings 1s expensed in the income
statement as ncurred

I Derivauive financial instruments

Derwatives are recognised at fair value and remeasured
at each baiance sheet date The fair value of denvauves
15 determined by using market data and the use of
established estnation techmgues such as discounted
cash flow and option valuaton models The Group
designates certain of the dervabve instruments within
1s portohio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{faw value hedges) or hedges of net mvestments tn
foreign operauons (net investment hedges)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

I Accounting policies continued

I. Denvative financial instruments continued

Changes in the fair value of derwatives that are
designated and qualfy as fawr value hedges are recorced
in the income statement, together with any changes n
the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are
attributable to the hedged nisk

The effecuve portion of changes in the fair value

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as net
investment hedges are recognised i other
comprehensive income Gans and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation 15 disposed of
Gans or losses relating to the meffective portion are
recognised immediately n finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

Certam dervatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments  Such denvatives are classified
at far value and any movementin their fair value is
recognised Immediately tn finance income or finance
costs in the ncome statement

m Taxation

Current tax 15 recogrised on the amounts expected o
be pad or recovered under the tax rates and faws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred mcome tax 1s provided, using the hability
method, on temporary differences arising berween the
tax bases of assets and habilires and their carmying
amounts. Deferred ncome tax 1s determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised
or the deferred income tax habity is sertded

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that itis probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised

Deferred ncome tax 15 provided in respect of the
updistributed earnings of subsidiaries other than where
s intended that those undistnbuted earmings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are s ecognised i the income
statement, except when the tax relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehensive income, n which case the tar is also
recognised in equity or other comprehensive income

The Group is subject to income taxes n nUMerous
unsdicuons Significant judgement 1s required in
determining the esumates in relauon 1o the worldwide
proviston for income taxes There are many
transactiens and caleulations for which the ultimate tax
determmation I1s uncertain during the ordinary course
of business The Group recognises habilives for
anucpated tax audit 1ssues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes wili be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
arnounts that were inally recorded, such dfferences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period i which such determination 1s made

Deferred tax assets and habilittes require management,
judgement in deterrirung the amounts to be
recognised In parucular, significant judgement 1s used
when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets
should be recognised with considerauon given to the
umng and level of future taxable income together with
any future tax planning strategres

n Employee benefits

[ Pension obligations The retirement benefit asset and
obligation recogmised in the balance sheet represents
the net of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the
balance sheet date The defined benefit obligauon 15
calcufated annually by independent actuanes using the
projected unit ciedit method The present value of the
defined benefit obhgaton 1s determined by discounting
esumated future cash flows using yields on high quahty
corporate bonds which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related lability

The determinaton of the pension cost and defined
benefit obiigation of the Group’s defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selecuon of certam
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and longewity

Actuariai gains and losses anising from expenence
adjustments and changes i actuartal assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
tncome i the period in which they arse

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, is tncluded m the incomne statement as an
operating cost Net interest 15 calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and is presented as finance costs or finance ncome




| Accounting polictes continued

n Employee benefits continued

Obhgations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the income statement as INcurred

2 Cther post-retirernent obligations The expected costs
of post-retirement healthcare and life assurance
benefits are accrued over the penod of employment,
ustg a similar accounting methodology as for defined
benefit pension obligations The Labilines and costs
relaung to significant other post-rearement obligations
are assessed annually by independent qualified actuanes

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group's share and option
plans 1s recogrused as an employee expense after taking
into account the Group's best estimate of the number
of awards expected to vest Fair value is measured at
the date of grant and is spread over the vesting period
of the option or share The fair value of the options
granted 1s measured using an option modet that is most
appropnate to the award The fair value of shares
awarded 1s measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method is more appropriate
Any proceeds received are credited to share capital
and share premium when the opuons are exercised

o Provisions

Prowvisions are recogrused if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligaton as a result of past
events, it 1s more hikely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obhigation
and the amount can be rehably estimated Prowsions
are discounted to present value where the effect

Is materal

The Group recognises a prowvision for deferred
consideratton at far value

The Group recognises a prowvision for onerous lease
coniracts when the expected benefits to be denved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeung the obligations under the contract

The prowvision 15 based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operaung leases, net of esttmated sub-
leasing income
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p Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
recerved or recevable for the sale of goods and
services net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts,

and after eliminaung sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of boolks 1s recognised when
ntle passes A provision for anticipated returns 1s made
based primanly on historical return rates if these
esumates do not reflect actual returns n future periods
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
a particular pertod

Circulation and advertising revenue is recognised when
the newspaper or other publication is publshed
Subscripuion revenue s recogrnised on a straght-line
basis over the Iife of the subscripuon

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two

or more separate efements that can be provided

to customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementary
matenals with textbooks, revenue s recognised for
each element as if w were an mdividual contractual
arrangement,

Revenue from mulu-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualfying tests for
ndividual professions and government departments,

ts recognised as performance occurs The assumpuons,
risks, and uncertainues inherent in long-term contract
accounting can affect the amounts and tming of
revenue and related expenses reported Certam of
these arrangements, either as a result of a single service
spanning more than one reporung penod or where the
contract requires the provision of a number of services
that together consutute a single project, are treated as
long-term contracts with revenue recognised on a
percentage of completion basis Losses on contracts
are recognised in the period in which the loss first
becomes foreseeable Contract losses are determined
10 be the amount by which esumated total costs of the
contract exceed the estimated total revenues that will
be generated by the contract

QOn certain contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commissions and fees recervable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third-party
costs incurred on behalf of the principat thart are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement

are not included in revenue
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements contnued

| Accounting policies contnued

p Revenue recognition continued

Income from recharges of fretght and other actvities
which are inaidental to the normal revenue generating
activittes 1s included in other income

q lLeases

Leases of property. plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the nsles and rewards

of ownership are classified as finance leases

Finance leases are capitabsed at the commencement

of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the muinimum lease
payments Each lease payment s aflocated between the
liability and finance charges to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding The correspending
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in financial habilives — borrowings The interest element
of the finance cost 1s charged to the ncome statement
over the lease period to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaming balance of the hability
for each period The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset or the jease term

{eases where a significant porucn of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases {net of any incentives
recewved from the lessor) are charged to the mcome
statement on a straight-line basis over the penod of
the lease

r Dividends

Dwidends are recorded in the Group's financal
statements n the period in which they are approved
by the company's shareholders

s Assets and liabiliuies held for sale

Assets and habiities are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and farr value
less costs to sell if it 1s intended to recover thewr
carrying amount prinapally through a sale wansaction
rather than through continuing use No depreciation
1s charged in respect of non-current assets classified
as held for sale Amounts relating to non-current
assets and habiliies held for sale are classified as
discontnued operations i the mcorme statement
where appropnate.

t. Trade receivabies

Trade receivables are stated at far value after provision
for bad and doubtiul debts and anucipated future sales
returns (see also note {p)

2 Segment information

The Group is organised mto the following business
segments

Conunuing operations

North Amenican Education Educational publishing,
assessment and testing for the school and tugher
educatton market within the USA and Canada,

Imternotional Education Educational publishing,
assessment and tesung for the school and tugher
education mariket outside of North America,

Professional Business and technology publishing,
training, testing and certficaton for professional
bodjes,

FT Group Publisher of the financal Times, business
magazines and specialist information

In addiion the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) associate The
results of the Penguin segment to 30 june 2013 and the
Mergermarket business {previously mncluded as part of
the FT Group) are shown as discontinued i both 2012
and 2013



2 Segment mformation continued
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For more detad on the services and products mncluded in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2013
North
American  International FT Disconupued

All figures in £ mullions Moics Education Educaoron  Professional Group FRH Corporate  operauons Group
EOHtinumg operations
Sales (external) 2779 {.539 410 341 - - - 5,069
Sales (inter-segment) 3 | I5 - - - - i9
Adjusted operating profit 406 140 57 29 50 - - 682
Intangible charges {92y {60) 2y P (30) ~ - {19¢)
Acquisition costs (2) % - " - - - {12)
Other net gains and losses - (1é) - - - - - (16)
Operating profit 3 55 45 26 20 - - 458
Finance costs 6 (e
Finance income $ 35
Profit before tax 382
income tax 7 (87)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations _ 295
Segment assets 5544 2311 609 293 - 859 223 9,839
jJomnt ventures 1 - 3 - - - - - 3
Associates 12 ! 9 - g8 1070 | - 1,089
Total assets 5545 2,323 609 301 1,070 860 223 10,931
Other segment items
Share of results of joint
ventures and assoctates 12 i (4) 2 26 31 - - 54
Capital expenditure o 92 37 23 22 - - ! 175
Pre-publicaton mnvestment 20 288 &9 7 - - - - o4
Depreciation 1 43 24 8 9 -~ - | 82
Amortisation 116 355 i41 22 i5 - - 2 535

MIIAYINO

AINVIEOIHId IO

$SINISNG IT8ISNOJSTY

JINYNYIAOD

SANIWILYLS TYIDNYNIY }



138 Pearson plc Annuat report and accounts 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

2012
Resiated
Nerth - - T
Amnencan  Internanonal FT Dhzeontnved
Al fipures wn £ del_b_n‘S_ Notes Educancn Edvuuen_?rofessncn«! Greup  Corporale  cperabons Group
Continuing operations
Sales (external) 2,658 t.568 390 343 - — 4959
Sales (inter-segment) B) | {2 - - - 18
Adjusted operating profit 536 214 37 22 - - 809
Intangible charges (66) {73) 37) 3) - - {179)
Acquisiion costs {(7) (8) ) (4} - - {20)
Orher net gains and losses - - {123) - - - {123
Operating profit 463 133 (124) 15 - — 487
Finance costs '3 (s
Finance income 6 19
Profit before tax 391
income tax S L (138)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations B B 253
Segment assets 5449 2390 63! 45 1,246 L H45 11.306
ot ventures 12 - 7 - | - - 8
Associates _ o ! 4 - 2 - 7 34
Total assets 5450 2,401 634 448  1.246 1,172 11,348
Other segment wems
Share of results of joint ventures
and assoctates f2 - 3) (I 23 - - 9
Capital expenditure 10 11 66 33 6 26 - it 152
Pre-pubhcanion investment 10 250 76 7 - - 31 364
Depreciauon o 41 16 8 7 - 8 80
Amortsation i 31 142 45 13 - 42 553

In 2013, sales from the provision of goods were £2,867m (2012 £2,946m) and sales from the provision of
services were £2,202m (2012 £2,013m} Sgles from the Group's educauonal publishing, consumer publshing
and newspaper busmess are classfied as being from the provision of goods and sales fram its assessment and
testing and other service businesses are classified as being from the provision of services

Included in other net gains and losses in continuing operations 1 2013 s a loss on the disposal of the Japanese
schoof and focal publishing assets and 1in 21215 a loss on closure of Pearson in Pracace (£113m) and an
impairment loss on a jomt venture (£10m)




——

2 Segment information conunued
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Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued operations on an appropriate basis

depending on the nature of the cost and therefore the segment result is equal ta the Group operating profit
Inter-segment pricing s determined on an arm’s-length basis. Segment assets consist of property, plant and

equipment, intangsble assers, wventores, recevables, deferred txation and other financial assets and exclude
cash and cash equivalents and dervative assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securties and dervative financial instruments Capital expenditure comprises addimions to property, plant and

equipment and software (see notes {0 and 1)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combinauon were £202m
(2012 £296m) (see note 30) Capnal expenditure, depreciauon and amorusation mnclude amounts relatung
to discontinued operations

The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Sales Non-current assets
Al figures in £ mifiioss 2013 2012 2013 2012
Continuing operations
UK 649 678 1,068 803
Other Eutopean countries 366 377 200 234
USA 2913 2,756 5.026 4,496
Canada 128 }44 301 307
Asia Pacific 624 633 495 524
Other countries 389 37 215 275
Total continuing 5,069 4959 7.305 6,639
Discontinued operations
UK 97 t87 ~ -
Other European countries 49 92 - ~
USA 369 647 - ~
Canada 24 57 - -
Asia Pacfic 74 i53 - -
Other countries 8 |7 - -
Tozal discontinued 621 1,153 - -
Total 5,690 6,112 7.305 6,639

Sales are aliocated based on the country in which the customer is located Thes does not differ matenally from
the location where the order 1s receved The geographical spht of non-current assets 1s based on the subsidrary’s
country of domicde. This 1s not matenally different o the locanon of the assets Non-current assets comprise

property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments i jomnt ventures and associates and trade and

other recewvables
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations relate to Penguin and Mergermarket

An analysss of the resuits and cash flows of discontinued operations is as follows

2043 0612
All figures i £ miffons Pengum Mcrgerma:-l:; o Toual Pengin  Mergerrrirket Tutd
Sales 513 108 621 1,053 100 1,153
Operating profic 28 24 52 62 24 86
Finance income i - f - - -
Profit before tax 29 24 53 62 24 86
Attributable tax expense (9 {9 (18) (19 (6} (25)
Profit after tax 20 15 35 43 18 61
Profit on disposal of Penguin before tax 202 - 202 - - -
Autributable tax benefit {5 - IS - - -
Mergermarket wansacuon costs - {8) (8) - - -
Profit for the year from discontinued
operations 237 7 244 43 I8 6l
Operating cash flows 36 22 58 83 26 109
investing cash flows (6) (@) &) {81) (24) (105}
Financing cash flows {8) {29} {37} 10 {6) 4
Total cash flows 22 (%) 13 12 (4 8
4 Operatuing expenses

2013 2612
All figures »n £ midbons Restated
By funcuon
Cost of goods sold 2312 2,187
Operating expenses
Dustribution costs 20 82
Selling, markeung and product development costs 1,027 925
Admunistrative and other expenses {162 1,242
Restructuring costs i76 -
Cther net gains and losses 6 1o
Other income (118} (78)
Total net operating expenses 2,353 2181
Total 4665 4368

included in other income in 2013 s service fee income from Penguin Random House of £28m
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I
l

P
Nores 2013 2012 z
Alf figures in £ milbans ____ Rewawd z
By nature 2
Royalues expensed 256 245
Qther product costs 793 865
Employee benefit expense 5 2,100 1,866
Contract fabour i94 137
Employee related expense t77 168
Promouonal costs 167 £55 o
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment e 8l 72 5
Amorusation of software 59 49 %
Amorusatnon of intangible assets - Other 166 179 %
Amorosation of intangible assets — Pre-publication 20 308 283 %
Property and faciliues 229 188 "
Technotogy and communicattons 104 80
Professional and outsourced services 259 253
Other general and adrunistratve costs 61 38
Capitalised costs (199) (162) =
s
Acquisitron costs 12 20 :E
Other net gains and losses 16 10 m
Other ncome . (18) ) £
Total 4,665 4368 4
Duning the year the Group obtamed the following services from the Group’s auditors
Al figures 1n £ millions 2013 2012
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 4 4 o
The audit of the company s subsidiaries 2 2 g
Total audit fees 6 6 ;
Other assurance services L | { m
Total assurance services t f
Tax compliance services 2 |
Tax advisory services o 2 i
Total tax services 4 2
Total non-audit services o ] 5 3
Total i1 g g
Reconciliation between audit and non-audit service fees 15 shown below §
ﬂigures in £ millions o ~ _23!3 2012 ] %
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under sectton 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6 6 é‘
Non-auditfees 5 3 E
Total ) Ll 9

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are aliocated between fees payabie for the audis

of consohdated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services
related 10 the Pengun Random House transaction
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5 Employee informauon

Notes 2013 2012
Alt figures £ milfions L Resmted
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salaries (including termination benefits and restructuring costs}) {1,836 [.610
Secial secunty costs 136 129
Share-based payment costs 2 35 28
Reuwrement benefits — defined contribution plans 15 66 &9
Reurement benefits - defined benefit plans 25 27 26
Orther post-retirement benefits s - 4
Total 2,100 | 866

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson ple are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number employed . o 2013 012
Employee numbers

North American Education 19,670 18,552
internavnonal Educauen 16,113 16,751
Professional 3,357 3.706
FT Group 2.216 2,243
Other 759 883
Continuing operations 42,115 42,135

The employee benefit expense relating to discontnued operations was £168m (2012 £265m) and the average

number employed was 3,592 (2012 5.387)
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Mutcs 013 1012
Al figures in £ eullrons Restated
Interest payable (82) (75)
Net finance costs in respect of retirement benefits P33 (3) (3)
Finance cost of put opuons, deferred considerauon assccrated with acquisinons
and other interest charges related to transactions %) (27)
Net foreign exchange losses - {8)
Other losses on financal instruments in a hedging relatuonshp
- fair value hedges - (N
Other losses on financial instruments not in a hedging relationshup
— derivauves (17) (2)
Finance costs (i (115)
tnterest recevable 10 10
Net foreign exchange gams 20 9
Other gains on financial instruments m a hedging refatronship
~ far value hedges ! -
Other gains on financial instruments not in a hedging relavonship
-~ derivatives i 4 -
Finance income 35 19
Net finance costs {76} {96)
Analysed as
Net interest payahle reflected n adjusted earrungs (72) (65)
Other net finance costs (4) 31)
Total net finance costs (76) (36)

The net gain of £1m on farr value hedges in 2013 (2012 netloss of £1m) comprises a gain of £95m (2012 gan
of £7m) on the underlying bonds, offset by a loss of £94m (2012 loss of £8m) on the related derwvatve financial

mnsuruments
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7 Income tax

Nates 2083 2012
All figures m £ mdhons Resuted
Current tax
Charge in respect of current year {129} (147)
Adjustments in respect of prior years ({7 18
Total current tax charge i {136) (129)
Deferred tax
In respect of temporary differences |4 (45)
Other adjustments i respect of prior years 35 36
Total deferred tax credit/(charge} i3 49 {9)
Total tax charge (87) (£38)

The adjustments in respect of prior years in 2013 mainly relate to changes in estimates ansing from uncertain tax

positons following settlements with tax authorities in the year

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs fiom the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax rate

as follows

2013 202
Al figures i £ midbons Restated
Profit before tax 382 391
Tax calcufated at UK rate (2013 23 25% 2012 24 5%) (89) {96)
Effect of overseas tax rates (13) (51)
joint venture and assocate micome reported net of tax {3 2
Net expense not subject to tax {14) (15}
Loss on sale of businesses not subject to tax (6} (28)
Uuhsauon of previously unrecognised tax losses and credits | 2
Unutlised tax losses (7} (6)
Adjustiments n respect of prior years 28 54
Total tax charge (87) {(138)
UK (13) (14)
Overseas {74) (124)
Total tax charge a {87) (138)
Tax rate reflected in earnings 22 8% 353%
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7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 1s calculated as follows

45

2003 2012
All figures in £ millions . . Restaed
Profit before tax 382 391
Adjustments
Other net gams and osses 16 123
Acguisiion costs 12 20
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 196 179
Other net financecosts 4 31
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing aperations 610 744
Adjusted profit before tax — disconunued operations 54 123
Total adjusted profit before tax 664 867
Total tax charge (87) (138)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses 32 -
Tax benefit on acquisition costs 2) (5)
Tax benefit on amorusation of acquired mtangibles (50 {54)
Tax benefit on other net finance costs {1 {1}
Tax amorusaton benefit on goodwill and intangibles 30 36
Adjusted mcome tax charge — contiruing operations (% {{62)
Adjusted mcome tax charge - discontinued operations {18) (38)
Total adjusted income tax charge (57} (200
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings _ |4 6% 23 1%
The tax {charge}/benefit recognised i other comprehensive income 1s as follows

2013 12
Al figures in £ mithons Rostated
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations (23) 50
Net exchange differences on translaton of foreign operauons 6 !

(17) 51

A tax charge of £nil (2012 tax benefit £6m} refatng to share-based payments has been recognised directly

n equity
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8 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share s caiculated by dwiding the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordmary shares in 1ssue dunng the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by
the company and held as treasury shares

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjustng the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take
account of all dduuve potenuval ordinary shares and adusung the profit attnbutable. f applicable, 1o account for
any tax consequences that might arise from converston of those shares

Notes 20§13 2012
All figures i £ mithons Resiated
Profit for the year from continuing operations 295 253
Non-controlling interest (N {3)
Earmings from continuing operations 294 250
Profit for the year from disconunued operatons 3 244 61
Non-controlling mterest - -
Earnings 538 3
Weighted average number of shares {mifions) 807 8 804 3
Effect of dilutive share opuions {millions) I 13
Wesghted average number of shares (rulirons} for difuted earnings 808 9 8056
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic 66 6p 387
Diluzed 66 5p 38 6p
Earnings per share from contnuing operauons
Basic 364p 3hip
Difuted 36 3p 3i Op
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
Basic 302 7 6p
Diluted 302p 7 6p
Adjusted

In order to show results frorn operating activities on a consistent bass, an adjusted earnings per share is presented
The company’s definiton of adjusted earmings per share may not be comparable to other simidary titled measures
reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and ciscontinued operations
The following wems are excluded from adjusted eai rungs

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, jomt ventures,
assoctates and other financial assets that are mcluded within conunuing or discontinued operations but which
distort the performance of the Group

Amorusation of acquired intangibles, ocquisition costs and movements i contingent acquistion consideration are also
excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully reflecove of the underlying
performance of the Group
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8 Earmings per share continued

Other net finance income /costs include finance costs in respect of reurement benefits, finance costs of put opuons
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs refating to retirement
benefits are excluded as the Group's interpretation 15 that the new presentation under [AS [9 (revised) does not
reflect the economic substance of the undedying assets and liabtlities Finance costs of put apuions and deferred
consideration are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and similar payments on acquisitions and do not
reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other gains and {osses are excluded as they represent short-term
fluctuanons in market value and are subject to significant volanhty Other gains and losses may not be realised in
due course as it s normally the intention to hold the related instruments to maturity Other net finance costs of
Group companies are ncluded i finance costs or finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of
joint ventures and associates are included within the share of results of joint ventures and associates within
operating profit

Tax on the above items is excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit
from recognising previously unrecogrised pre-acquisiion and capital losses The Group meludes the benefit of tax
amoerusation of goodwill and mtangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Mon-controfting mterest for the above tems 15 exciuded from adjusted earnings

The following tables reconcile statutory earmings to adjusted earnings

- L i
Qther net
Stawytary Other net finance Tax Adyusted
mcome Disconunued  pains and Acquisinon intangibte income/ amorusation income
All figures w £ mithans saatement operalions losses costs charges costs beneflit  swatement
Operatng profit 458 54 16 2 196 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) - - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 12 196 4 - 664
Income tax (87) {18} 32 () 50 {hH 30 {97)
Profit for the year from
CONtINUING Operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profit for the year from
disconuinued operanons 244 (36) (209 - 2 (1)) - -
Profit for the year 539 - (e 10 147 2 30 567
Non-controlling nterest ) - - - - - - {4y
Earnings 538 - (isi) 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares {mihons) 80738 8078
Adjusted earnings per share 66 6p o 70 1p
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share continued

2012
Restated
Gther net
Svuvtory Oriherrot furnge Tax Adjusted
wrome  Dueeontnued  gans and Aoguintion Intangble incorie/  AMOrusauon neone
Al higaras in £ milbons stalLment OpTrIvons losses tusls charges costs bancin  statrment
Operatng profit 487 123 {23 20 179 - - 932
Net finance costs {96) - ~ - - 3l - (65)
Profit before tax 391 123 123 20 179 3t - 867
Income tax (138) (38) - (5) (54) {1 36 (200
Profit for the year from
continung operations 253 85 i23 I5 125 30 36 667
Profit for the year from
disconunued operations 61 {85) 20 I 3 - - -
Profit for the year 34 - 143 6 128 30 36 667
Non-controling interest (3) - - ~ - - - (3)
Earnings 3 - 143 6 128 30 36 664
Weighted average number
of shares (milkons) 804 3 8043
Adjusted earnings per shatre 387p 82 6p
9 Dividends
Al figures i £ mullions 013 w04
Final paid in respect of prior year 30 Op (2012 28 Op) 242 225
Interim pard 0 respect of current year 16 Op (2012 15 0p) 130 121
372 346

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of 32 Qp per
share which will absorb an esumated £25%m of sharehoiders’ funds 1t will be patd on 2 May 2614 to sharehoiders

who are on the register of members on 4 April 2014 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
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{0 Property, plant and equipment o
ABLClym 5
Land and Plant and course of P
Adl figures o £ mullions _ budangs BGUIPICHT CONSIFBLLOR L Tot =
Cost
At | January 2012 363 706 12 1,081
Exchange differences (9 23 - (32)
Additions {2 51 15 78
Disposals (2) (20) - (22)
Acquisiion through business combination 4 13 - 7 o
Disposal through bustness disposal (1) {4) - S .
Reclassfications 8 - {8) - E
Transfer from/{to) software 9 7) - (i8) 3
Transfer from pre-publication - 3 - 3 §
Transfer to assets held for sale (32) {102) (h (I35) E
At 31 December 2012 352 597 I8 967
Exchange differences {3) {14 - {(i%)
Additions 33 58 22 K
Disposals (13) (78) - (21)
Acquisiion through business combination - 3 - 3 m
Disposal through business disposal (" (2) ~ 3 §
Reclassifications 9 €)) (8) - s
Transfer from software - 3 - 3 é
Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 9 3
Transfer to assets held for sale = h - ) g
At 31 December 2013 375 568 32 975
8
3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10. Property, plant and equipment contmued

Assews in

Land and Flant and course of
All figures in £ mllions o bulongs equspmens construection Total
Depreciation
At | January 2012 {187} (51H - (698)
Exchange differences 6 17 - 23
Charge for the year {21) (59) - (80)
Disposals 2 19 - 24
Acquisiton through business combination {i} {6) - {7}
Disposal through business disposal - 2 - 2
Reclassificanons o o {8) g8 - --
Transfer {from)/to software (3) 7 - 4
Transfer 1o assets held for sale i7 78 - a5
At 31 December 2012 (195} {445) - {640}
Exchange differences 3 '3 - 16
Charge for the year (25) {57) - (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acquisition through business combination - (2) - {2)
Transfer from assets held for sale - (1 - {1}
Transfer ta assets held for sale - 5 ~ 5
At 31 December 2013 (210) {423 - (633)
Carrying amounts
At | January 2012 76 195 12 383
At 31 December 2012 |57 152 i8 327
At 3| December 2013 {65 145 32 342

Depreciaton expense of £24m (2612 £23m) has been included 1n the income statement in cost of goods sold and
\ £57m (2012 £49m)} in operating expenses In 2013 £im (2012 £8m) relates to discontnued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £1im (2012 £17m)
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15

Acquired
hsts cc:sr:ﬂ?; Acqured Acquired Grher
ang  trademarks publizhing ntangibles

All figurps i £ modbons ) Gnodwill Software  relivonshups and brands nghts acquired Touk
Cost
At { January 2012 5,199 428 681 253 213 356 7,130
Exchange differences (213) (13) (26) (1n (%) (18) (290)
Addiuons — internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additons — purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Disposals - (i) - - - - (i)
Acquisition through business combination 505 12 182 27 10 56 792
Disposal through business disposal (50 - (89) (2) - - (141)
Transfer from PPE - i8 - - - - 18
Transfer to assets held for sale (364) {42) (19) ) 7 - (441)
At 31 December 2012 5077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences {122) {6) (25) (8) (12) (tH {184)
Addivons — internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additicns - purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (50} - - - - (50
Acquisition through business combinaton (133 - 130 - 3 7 67
Disposal through business disposal &) - - - - O] 7
Reclassifications - - {10 (t) - Li -
Transfer to PPE - (3) ~ - - - (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale {150) - (29) {12) - (2) (193}
At 31 December 2013 4666 469 855 237 198 398 6823
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 I. Intangible assets continued

Acquired
customer
lists contracms Acquired Acqu red Orner
snd  vadananes sublshung ntangibles

All figures in £ milltons Goodvill Sof ware relztonchips  and b'a{\cﬂ . nghts _ iqu.rnd Jonal
Amorusation
At i January 2012 - {296) (168) (63) {128) {133) {788)
Exchange differences - 9 8 3 5 7 32
Charge for the year - {54) (%0) (27) 20) (46) (237}
Disposals - 8 - - - - 8
Acqusition through business combmaton - {7) - - - - (7)
Disposal through business disposal - - 45 t - - 46
Transfer from PPE - {4 - - - - (4)
Transfer 1o assets held for sale - 32 | - 4 - 37
At 31 December 2042 - (312) (204) (86) {139) (172) {913)
Exchange differences - 6 0 4 é 7 33
Charge for the year - {59) (78) (2h {15) {54) (227)
Disposals - 49 - - - - 49
Disposal through business disposal - - - - - ! !
Transfer to assets held for sale - - 23 10 - 2 35
At 31 December 2013 - {316) (249) (93) (148) (216)  (1.022)
Carrying amounts
At | January 20{2 5199 132 513 190 85 223 6,342
At 31 December 2012 5077 154 525 172 68 222 6218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 {53 606 44 50 182 5801
Goodwill

The goodwill carrying value of £4,666m relates to acquisitions completed after | january 1998 Prior to | January
1998 alf goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuon For acquisiions completed between

| fanuary 1998 and 31 December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwill
on each acquisittion was amortsed over a penod of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on 1 January 2003, the
Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (i e amortsation ceased).
If goodwill had been restated then a significant value would have been ascnbed to other ntangible asserts, which
would be subject to amornsanan, and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For acquisitions
completed after | January 2003 value has been ascnbed to other intangible assets which are amorused

Other intangible assets
Other intangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used 1s the
discounted cash flow method The majonty of acquired intangibles are amorused using the unit of production
method which 15 based on the pattern of benefits emboded in the asset,

Amortsation of £15m (2012 £10m}) 1s included 1n the income statement tn cost of goods sold and £210m
(2012 £218m including an impawment of £2Im relaung to Pearson in Practice) in operating expenses
In 2013 £2m (2012 £9m) of amortisation relates to disconunued operations
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i1 Intangible assets continued -
The range of useful economic lives for each major class of intangible asser (excluding goodwill and software) %
1s shown below B
2013
Class of intangible asset . Uscful ecanome fife
Acquired customer hists, contracts and relationships 3-20 ye;;
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing nghts 5-20 years
Other intangibles acquired _ 2-20 years —
o]
The expected amorusation profile of acquired intangible assets 15 shown below %
o
2013 g
One to five Six 1o ten More than »
All figures in £ ejllons years years ten years Totat z
Class of intangible asset "
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 357 166 83 606
Acquired trademarks and brands 78 41 15 144
Acqguired publishing nights 46 4 - 50
Other intangibles acquired |48 33 ! 182 ?—
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill g
tmpairment tests have been carried out where appropnate as descnibed below The recoverable amount for each §
unit tested exceeds its carrying value ®
Goodwill s allocated to, and monitared at the level of, nine aggregated cash-generatng units (CGUSs) wittun the %
business segments as {oltows o
Alt figures o £ millions 2013 1012
US Educatron Publishing 2,225 2.384
tJS School Assessment and Information 750 773 a
Canada 173 188 2
Internatonal — Emerging Markets 423 463 g
international — UK 444 450 A
International — Rest of World 253 267
Professional Publishing 14 £5
Professional Assessment and Training L 334 334
Pearson Education total 4616 4,874
Financial Times - . 50 51
Continuing operauons 4,666 4925 z
Mergermarket B - 152 z
Discontinued operations - 152 3
Total 4666 5077 3
rl;
Z
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|| intangible assets continued
Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill continued

The recoverable amount of each CGU 15 based on value in use calculatons. Goodwill 1s tested for imparrment
annually Other than goodwill there are no mtangible assets with indefinite hves. The goodwill 1s generally
denomunated in the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review is not matenaily
sensiive to exchange rate fluctuauons

Key assumptions
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year pertod The key assumptions used by management in the value 1n use calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate 1s based on the nisk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a nisk premium
to reflect the increased nsloin investing in equities The risk premium adjustment 15 assessed for each specific CGU.
The average pre-tax discount rates used are in the range of [0 7% to |3 8% for the Pearson Education businesses
(2012 9 8% to 12 7%) and | | 3% for the Financral Times (2012 1 5%)

Petpetunty growth rates A perpetutty growth rate of 2 0% was used for cash flows subsequent to the approved
budget pertod for alf CGUs in 2013 (2012 2 0%) Thus perpetuity growth rate 1s a conservative rate and Is
considered to be lower than the lang-term historic growth rates of the undertying territones in which the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates

Cash flow growth rates The cash flow growth rates are derived from management's fatest forecast of sales taking
into consideration experience of operating margms achieved in the CGU Historrcally, such forecasts have been
reasonably accurate

Sensitvities

The Group's mpairment review (s sensiive to a change i assumpuons used, most notably the discount rates, the
perpetuity growth rates and expected future cash flows Based on the Group's sensitvity analysis a reasonably
possible change i any of these assumpuons is unlikely to cause an impairment i any of the CGUs.

12 Investments in joint ventures and associates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Afl figures In £ millions 2013 2012
Associates 1,089 7
Joint ventures 3 8
Total | 092 15

The amounts recognised i the mcome statement are as follows

All ngures i £ m lhons 2043 az
Associates 56 23
Joint ventures L 2 (14)

Total 54 9
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12 Investments mn joint ventures and associates continued

investment in associates
The Group has the followtng materzal associates.

155

Principal place % Cranarshp Matire of  Measuremnng

of tus ness RSt refationshp method

Penguin Random House Global 47 Note | Equiry’
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50  Note? Equity’

*Nerther assoaate has a quoted market price

Note | - On | july 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upan the completion of an agreement berween
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respecnvely The shareholder agreement

includes protection rights for Pearson as the munornty sharehoider including nights to dividends

Note 2 - The Group has a 50% interest in The Economist Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world's leading

weekly business and current affairs magazines

The summanrtsed financial information of the material associates 1s detaled below

2013 2012
Pangumn

All figures n £ rmillons Random House Economist Econgrmist
Assets
Current assets 1,210 103 120
Non-current assets i.361 163 i60
Lizbilities
Current irabihties {905) (190) {202)
MNon-current habtlities {455) (60) {78)
Net assets 1,211 i6 -
Sales 1,315 340 348
Profit from conunuing operations 66 52 46
Other comprehensive (expense}/income {34) 9 (6
Total comprehensive tncome 32 &1 40
Dwidends received from associate 43 21 21

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for fair

value and similar adjustments
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12 Investments In joint ventures and associates continued

Invesement 1n associates continued

A reconciliation of the summarsed financial infformation to the carrying value of the materal associates 15

shown below

o 013 2002
All figures m ¢ mithons Randompf';‘f:s‘: Economist Ecanomist
Opening net assets o - - -
Exchange differences (68) - (1)
Profit for the period 66 52 16
Other comprehensive income (34) 9 (6)
Dividends ohH (41) (41
Addwions £,338 - -
Distrbution from associate in excess of carrying value - -- P
Reversal of distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - {4 -
Closing net assets 1,211 16 -
Share of net assets 569 8 -
Goodwill 501 - -
Carrying value of associate ) 1,070 g8 =
Information on other individually immatenal associates is detaded below
All figures an £ millions e N 2013 piz b
Loss from continuing operatons (1) -
Other comprehensive income _ - -
Total comprehensive expense (" -

Transactions with material associates

The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest 15 calculated based on market

rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2013 was £44m

The Group also has a current asset receivable of £{4m from Penguin Random House arsing from the provision of

services included in othet incorme (note 4) 15 £28m of service fees

[nvestment in joind ventures
Information on joint ventures, all of which are indwvidually immatenial, 1s detalled below:

Adl figures m £ nulbions i 2013 2
Loss from continung operations (2) (14}
Other comprehensive ncome ~ o - -
Total comprehensive expense (2) {14)




Section 5 Finanoal statements 157

13 Deferred income tax

All hgures m £ mithons 2013 piip:
Deferred income tax assets 250 229
Deferred income tax habiliues o {612) (601)
Net deferred income tax (362} (372)

Substanually ali of the deferred tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and habiliies may be offset when there 15 a legally enforceable night to offset current
inCome tax assets aganst current ncome tax habilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At 31 December 2013 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2012 £13m) in
respect of UK losses, £11m (2012 £14m) in respect of US losses and approximately £36m (2012 £30m) n
respect of losses in other territories None of the unrecogmised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them
The US losses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between 5 and 20 years

The recognition of the deferred income tax assets is supported by management’s forecasts of the future
profitability of the relevant busmess units

The movemnent on the net deferred income tax account is as follows

112
Al figures in £ milhons _ Notes 2013 Restated
At beginring of year (372) (333)
Exchange differences 9 4
Income statement benefit/{charge) 7 47 {13)
Acquisition through business combination 30 (37) (67)
Disposat through business dispasal 3 - i
Tax charge to other comprehensive income aor equity (35) 34
Transfer to current tax 25 -
Transfer to assets held for sale | {18)
At end of year {362) (372)

included in the ncome statement above for 2013 1s a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge) relaung to discontunued
operauons
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

13 Deferred income tax continued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and habhties during the year 15 as follows

Revremen?

Tradng  Goodwill and Fowns benefic Towl
Al figures s £ muliions joses wntangibies ProviGns ouhgauons Culhwr Restared
Daferred income tax assets
At | January 2012 4 - 89 19 165 287
Exchange differences ~ - 3) " (5) {%
Acquisition through business combination 19 - - - - 19
income statement charge (13) - (16) H (33) (63)
Tax benefit/(charge) to other
comprehensive iIncome or equity - - - 39 (6) 33
Transfer to assets held for sale (2) - (25) (%) (2) (38)
At 3| December 2012 18 - 45 47 19 229
Exchange differences - - (n (h (4) {6)
Acquisiton through business combination 21 - - - - 21
Income statement (charge)/benefit (24) - (5) 25 22 i8
Tax charge to other comprehensive
NCOME OF equity - - - {36} - {36}
Transfer to current tax - - - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - - - 7 7 -
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - - 3 (1)
At 3! December 2013 15 - 39 42 154 250

Other deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, inventory and
other provisions

Good il and

All figures m £ mithons tntangiles Ciher Tord
Deferred income tax habihties

At [ January 2012 (464) (1586) (620)
Exchange differences 18 5 23
Acquisiion through business combinaton (65} (21) (86)
Disposal through business disposal H - |
Income statement benefit 15 35 50
Tax benefit to other comprehensive income or eguity - { |
Transfer 1o assets held for sale e 10 10 20
At 31 December 2012 (475) (126) {601}
Exchange differences {3 2 15
Acguisition through business combmation (-3} 3 (58)
Income statement (charge}/benefit (61} 90 29
Tax benefit 1o other comprehensive micome or equity - I |
Transfer to assets held for sale L - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 (584) (28) (612)

Other deferred income tax habihtes nclude temporary differences m respect of depreciation and royalty advances




14 Classification of financial instruments

Section 5 Financial statements 159

The accounting classificavon of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial habilities together with their

fair values, is as follows

2043
Far value _ Amorused cost )
Derwauver  Derwatives Total Toral
Available  deemed held n hedping Other  Loans and Qcher  carryng market
ﬂl.! figures in £ mulhons Notes for sale  for trading  rolationships liabites  recewvables  hizbifruies value valf_
Investments in unhsted securities
~ CORUNUING OPEratons 15 24 - - - - - 94 94
Cash and cash equivalents ~
continuing operations 7 - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
for sale 32 - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable securities 6 - - - - - 6 6
Denrwative financial instruments t6 - 4 120 - - - 124 124
Trade recewvables — continuing
operauons EH - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade recewables classified within
assets held for sale - - - - 25 - 25 25
Total financial assets 100 4 120 - 1,672 - 1896 1,8%
Dervauve financial mstruments 73 - (16} {32) - - - (48} (48}
Trade payables - conunuing
operations 4 - - - - - (316} (Ble) (316)
Trade payables classified within
lrabidlities held for sale - - - - - () (B ()
Bank loans and overdrafts ~
contnuing operattons te - - - - - 47) (47) (47)
Borrawings due within one year 8 - - - - ~-  (508) (508) (514)
Borrowings due after more than
one year I8 - - = - = (1671} (1.,671) (1,683)
Total financial habilities — (16} (32) — - (2.543) (2,591) (2.609)
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14 Classification of financtal instruments contmued

L . L 202
_ Fair value Aunorpsed cost
Derwvawwes Denwvapves - Toual Towal
Avadable  deericd helo m hedzing Othe-  Loars and Qther carryng marl £3
/:Ef_gures 0 Camlbons Nosas forsale  formadmg  rletionstips f_ahmues receivibles  habMuies valye vilue
Investments i unfisted securines — T
conunuing operations 15 31 - - - - - 31 31
Investments in unhsted securities
classified withan assets held for sale  n | - - - - - I |
Cash and cash equivalents —
continuing operations {7 - - - - 1,062 - 1,062 1062
Cash and cash equivalents classified
within assets held for sale 32 - - - - HIS - fI5 15
Marketable securities 6 - - -~ - - 6 6
Derivative financial mstruments 16 - } 177 - - - 178 |78
Trade receivables — continuing
operatons b5 - - - - 883 - 883 883
Trade recewvables classified within
assets held for sale - - - - 249 -~ 249 249
Total financial assets 38 [ 177 -~ 2309 - 2,525 2535
Trade payables — conunting
operatons 24 - - - - - {337) (337 (337)
Trade payables classified within
liabiities held for sale - - - - - {148} (148) (l48)
Other financial habihiues — put
options aver non-controlling
mniergst 2% - - - {(68) ~ - (68) (68)
Bank loans and overdrafis —
CONQNNG operations te - - - - - (55) (55) (5%)
Bank loans and overdrafts classdied
within habihitnes held for sale 1 - - - - - (7} {7 {7)
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - ~- (229  (229) (228)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 12 - - - - ~_(1.988) (1,988) (2.043)
Total financial labilities - - ~ (68) - (2764) (2.832) (2.886)
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14 Classification of financial mstruments continued

)
-
m
Certain of the Group's derivauve financial mstruments are classified as held for trading ether as they do not meet %
the hedge accounung criteria specified in IAS 39 “Financial instruments Recognitton and Measurement’ or the b3
Group has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these instruments None of these denvatives are held for
speculative trading purposes Transacuons in denvative financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks
arising from underlying business actvity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described n note |9
The Group designates certain qualifying derivauve financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of us bonds
(far value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these denvative financial instrurnents are recorded in the income
statement, together with any change n the fair value of the hedged fiability attributable to the hedged nsk
The Group also designates certam of its borrowings and derivauve financial instruments as hedges of its o
investments In foreign operations (net investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financal g
instruments (to the extent they are effective) are recogrused i other comprehensive income =
‘n
None of the Group's financial assets or habilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon g
imtial recognition %
More detait on the Group’s accounung for financial instruments 1s included 1n the Group's accounting policies "
The Group’s approach 1o managing risks in relation to financial mstruments 1s described in note 19
[5 Other financial assets
Al higures in £ mihong 2013 2012
At beginning of year 31 26 =
Exchange differences - (2} o
r4
Acquisition of investments 63 10 z
®
Disposal of nvestments - ¥4 >
[
Transfer to assets held for sale ~ (1) g
m
At end of year 94 31 s
Other financal assets comprise non-current unlisted securities
16 Derwvative financial instruments
The Group's approach to the management of financial risks 1s set out in note 19 The Group's outstanding a
dervative financial instruments are as follows 5
z
2013 2012 z
[a]
Gross notronal Gross nougaal m
All Tigures w £ milhons aMOUMs Assets Labihues amounts Asgers Dabiues
interest rate denvatives —
in a fair value hedge refauonstup 1439 81 {(32) 1465 143 -
Interest rate dervatives -
notin a hedge relatonship 634 4 (16} 61 i -
Cross-currency rate derivatives — —
in a net investment hedge refationship 220 39 - 220 34 — z
Total 2,293 (24 (48) 1,746 178 - a
I z
Analysed as expiring =
In fess than one year 312 i3 - 215 4 - z
z
Later than one year and not later @
than five years 1,377 il - 701 &9 -
Later than five years L 604 - (48) _§30 105 _

Total 2,293 (24 (48) |, 746 178 _
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}& Dervatve financial instruments continued

The carrnng value of the above derivative financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of established esumation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

At the end of 2013, the currency sphit of the mark-to-market values of rate denvatives, including the exchange of
principal on cross-currency rate derivatives, was US dollar £(151)m, sterling £243m and South African rand £(16)m
(2012 WS dolfar £(59)m, sterling £257m and South African rand £(20)m)

The fixed mterest rates on outstanding rate derivauve contracts at the end of 2013 range from { 10% to 9 28%
(2012 3 65% to 9 28%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR n US dollar and sterling

The Group's portfolio of rate derivatves 1s diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certan derwatives as hedges significantly reduce the nisk
of income statement volatlity The sensitvity of the portfolio to changes in market rates 1s set out in note |9

Derwative financial assets and habilites subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2013 2012

Gross Gross  Mer derwvanve Gross Gross  MNetdervauve

dervative dervauve assets! deraatve deriznve assars/

asyets linbshries {abihtes assets fafxlines lailitscs

Alt figures in £ millions £m £m £m im £m £m
Counterparties in an asset posiuon 122 (12) 110 178 - 178
Counterparties i a rability position 2 (36) (34) - - -
Total as presented m the balance sheet 124 (48) 76 178 — 178

All of the Group's denvative financial instruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangements with mdividual
counterparties, allowing net settlernent m the event of default of either party. Offset arrangements In respect of
cash balances are shown in note 17

Counterparty exposure from all derivatves is managed, together with that from depaosits and bank account
balances, within credit kmits that reflect published credit raungs and by reference to other market measures

{e g market prices for credit default swaps} to ensure that there 1s no significant nisk to any one counterparty

No single denvauve transaction had a market value (posttive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded
3% of the Group's consolidated total equity

In accordance with IAS 39 *Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed ali of its
matenal contracts for embedded denivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certan requirements, and has concluded that there are no matenal embedded dervatves
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I7 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

Al figures i € millions 1003 2012
Cash at banic and in hand 521 372
Short-term bank depostts o L 208 690
C.:.;;'l;numg operations 729 {.062
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale 36 i 15
765 1,177

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interast at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2013 the currency spht of cash and cash equivalents was US doltar 28% (2012 47%). sterling 18%
{2012 25%), euro 5% (2012 3%) and other 49% (2012 25%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

All fizures m £ milions 2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents - continuing operauons 729 ¥ 062
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale 36 b8
Bank overdrafts — continuing operations {25) (33)
Bank overdrafts classified within liabilities held for sale _ - {7)

740 1,137

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling and euro, where both the company
and the bank have a legal nght of offset

2013 042
Nert offser o Net offsm_
All figures 15 £ mibons Offser asset Offset labilley  asset/bability Offsctasset  Oflset babibty  ssset/lubity
US dollars 298 (299) ( 39 37 2
Steriing 1,018 (.027) )] 982 (1 G57) (75)
Euro 6 (5) z I (1) -
Total for cantinuing operations as
presented in the balance sheet {(9) (73)

In addition to the above, the Group had offser US dollar, sterling and euro asset balances of £im, £16m and £nil
respectively in respect of discontinued operanons at the end of 2013 At the end of 2012, the Group had a sterling
offset asset of £74m in respect of discontnued operations

Offset arrangements in respect of dervatives are shown i note 16
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18 Financial habilities — Borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

All figures n € mdlrans 2013 2012
Non-current
5 7% US Doliar Bonds 2014 (nommal amount $400m) - 264
7 0% Sterhing Bonds 2014 (nominal amount £250m}) - 256
6 0% Sterling Bonds 2015 (nomunal amount £300m) 299 298
4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 {(nommnal amount $350m) 221 229
6 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 {nomnal amount $550m) 375 402
4 625% US Dollar Notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 202 217
3 75% US Dollar Notes 2022 (nominal amount $500m) 283 315
3 25% US Dollar Notes 2023 {(nominal amount $500m) 286 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 22
France lease habilies L o 5 7
f,693 2010
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2043 {nomnal amount $350m) o 219
5 7% US Dollar Bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) 248 -
7 Q% Sterling Bonds 2014 {(norminal amount £250m) 254 -
Banlk [oans and overdrafts 25 33
Finance lease frabilwes ) 18
533 262
Total borrowings — conunuing operations 2226 2,272
Bank averdrafts classified wathin liabilities held for sale - 7
Total borrowings 2,126 2279

Included in the non-current borrowings above s £9m of accrued interest (2012 £1 Im). included in the current
borrowings above 15 £4m of accrued mnterest (2012 £2m)

The maturity of the Group s non-current borrowing is as follows

All figures i £ mihons . N R 2003 i)
Between one and two years 303 524
Between two and five years 821 552
Over five years 569 934

1,693 2,010
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I8 Financial habihnies — Borrowings continued

The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

2013 2012
Effecuve interesc Carrying Market Carrng Market
Al figures v { mdlions rate value wvalue value valtue
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 47 47 55 55
5 5% Global Dollar Bonds 2013 576% - - 219 218
5 7% US Dotllar Bonds 2014 588% 248 246 264 260
7 0% Sterling Bonds 2014 720% 254 262 256 274
6 0% Sterling Bonds 2015 627% 299 325 298 337
4 0% US Dollar Notes 2016 4 26% 221 223 229 233
6 25% Global Dollar Bonds 2018 6 46% 375 376 402 410
4 625% US Dollar Notes 2018 4 69% 202 i95 217 209
3 75% US Dollar Notes 2022 3 94% 283 286 315 313
3 25% US Dollar Notes 2023 3 36% 286 273 - -
Finance lease habilities n/a | il 17 17
Continuing operations 2,226 2,244 1,272 2.326
Bank overdrafts classified within habilines held
for sale N n/a - - 7 7
2,226 2244 2,279 2,333

The market values stated above are based on ¢lean market prces at the year end or, where these are not available,
on the quoted market prices of comparable debtissued by other companies The effecave interest rates above
relate to the underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

All figures wn £ milbons 2043 W12
US dallar 1,645 1,684
Sterling 559 573
Other 22 po]

2,226 2,279

The Group has the foliowing undrawn capacity on s committed borrowing facilives as at 31 December-

At figures wn £ mullions W13 w2

Floating rate
— expiring within one year - -
- expirng beyond one year ) [,057 1,077

t.057 1,077

i addition to the above facikues there are a number of short-term facHittes that at e uulised in the normal course
of busmness

All of the Group s borrowings are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligavons, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default
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18 Fnancal liabilivies — Borrowings continued

The matunity of the Group's finance lease obligations 1s as follows

Adl figures in £ millons 2083 M2
Finance lease labilities — mimimum lease payments

Not {ater than one year 6 io
Later than one year and not later than two years 4

Later than two years and not fater than three years ! 3

Later than three years and not later than four years - -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Larer than five years - -
Future finance charges on finance leases - -

Present value of finance lease habilities {1 17

The present value of finance lease habiities 1s as follows

All figures in £ mulhons 2013 2012
Not later than one year 6 10
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 7

Later than five years - -

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate their fair value

19. Financial msk management

The Group's approach to the management of inancial rnsks together with sensitivity analyses of its financial
nstruments 15 set out below

Treasury policy

The Group holds financial instruments for two principal purposes to finance Its operations and to manage the
interest rate and currency risks ansing from its operations and its sources of finance The Group finances its
operations by a mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper
markets, and longer term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally in US dollars and
sterling, at both floating and fixed rates of interest using denwvative financial instruments (‘dervatives’), where
appropriate, to generate the desired effective currency profile and interest rate basys The denvauves used for
this purpose are princtpally rate swaps, rate caps and collars currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange
contracts The mam risks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate rnisk, hquidity and
refinancing rsk, counterparty risk and foreign currency risk These nisks are managed by the chief financial

officer under policies approved by the board, which are summarised overleaf All the treasury policies remained
unchanged throughout. except for revisions to the Group's bank counterparty nsk fimuts and refated approval
processes and a change to permutted investment instruments for some operating companies

The audit committee receives reports on the Group's treasury activities, pohicies and procedures The treasury
department is not a profit centre and 1ts activittes are subject to regular internal audit
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19 Financial sk management contnued

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to interest. rate fluctuations on its borrowings s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate
basts and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group's policy objective has
continued to be to set a target proportion of its forecast borrowings (taken at the year end, with cash netted
against floating rate debt and before certain adjustments for IAS 39 ‘Financtal Instruments Recognition and
Measurement’) to be hedged (i e fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum
of 65% and a mimimum that starts at 40% and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2013 the fixed to floating
hedging ratio, on the above basis, was approximately 45% 55% A simultaneous 1% change on [ January 2014 in
the Group's variable mterest rates in US dollar and sterling, taking into account forecast seasonal debt, would have
a £1m effect on profit before tax

Use of interest rate derivatives

The policy described in the section above creates a group of derivatves, under which the Group 15 a payer of fixed
rates and a receiver of floating rates The Group also aims to avord undue exposure to a single interest rate setuing
Reflecting this objective the Group has predomnantly swapped s fixed rate bond issues to floating rate at their
taunch This creates a second group of derwatives, under which the Group is a receiver of fixed rates and a payer
of floating rates The Group's accounting objective in 1ts use of mterest rate derivatives I1s to minimise the impact on
the income statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its derivative portfolio as a whole |t uses duration
calculations to esttmate the sensimvity of the derivaiives to movements in market rates The Group also identifies
which dervatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting {(which reduces sharply the income statement smpact
of changes In the market value of a denvative) The Group then balances the total portfolio between hedge-
accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment is mnimal

Liquidity and refinancing nisk management

The Group's objecuve 15 to secure contnuity of funding at 2 reasonable cost To do this it seeks to arrange
commutted funding for a variety of maturites from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objecuve has been
that the weighted average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final
matunty of the facilizes avallable to refinance them) should be between three and ten years At the end of 2013
the average maturity of gross borrowings was 4 2 years (2012 3 9 years) of which bonds represented 37%
(2012 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its liquidity risk, and that
published credit ratings and published financial policies improve such access Al of the Group's credit ratings
remarned unchanged dunng the year The long-term ratngs are Baal from Moody's and BBB+ from Standard &
Poor's, and the short-term raungs are P2 and A2 respectvely in january 2014 Moody's changed the outlook on
their short-term and long-term ratngs from 'Stable’ to 'Negauve’ The Group's policy is to strive to mantain a
rating of Baat /BBB+ over the long term The Group will also continue to use nternally a range of ratios to
monitor and manage its finances These include interest cover, net debt to operaung profit and cash flow to debt
measures The Group alse mamtains undrawn commutted borrowing facilives. At the end of 2013 the committed
facilities amounted to £1.057m and therr weighred average maturity was | 9 years
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19 Financial nsk management conunued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivatives

The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derwvatives on the Group's debt

instruments

The Group's ret debt posinon is set out below,

All figures i £ milhons bOIE] 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 729 1,062
Marketable securites 6 é
Derwvative financial instruments 76 178
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes {47) {55)
Bonds (2.168) {2,200
Finance lease habiliues {I1H (17)
Continuing operations (1,415 (1.026)
Cash and cash equivalents classified wrthin assets heid for sale 36 15
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes classified within habiliwes held for sale - (7
Net debt {(1.379) (218)
The spiit of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the impact of rate derivatives, 1s as follows
i figures n £ millions N ) 0 B
Fixed rate 612 499
Floating rate 3 767 419
Total {1,379 918
Gress borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives, analysed by currency are as follows
All figures m £ millions 2013 22
US doliar [.849 1,883
Sterling 339 353
Other N 38 43
Total 2,226 2,279
As ar 31 December 2013 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to mterest rate changes when the
borrowings re-price (s as follows.

Less than More than
ég_ﬁgures w £ milhons _ one ygar _ .-fn:ELears Torat
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 533 369 2.226
Effect of rate dervatives . _ I 17 S .2 7 N . V)
Total 1,559 (35) 2,226
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[9 Financial nsk management contnued o
The maturity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial kabilities are as foliows %
2003 E:
Al frgures in € miflions UsD Gap Ocher Totat
Not fater than one year 434 316 13 863
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,000 106 - i.106
Later than five years 648 - - 648
Total 2,082 422 f13 2,617
Analysed as -
Bands 1.918 604 - 2,522 e
Rate dervatves — inflows (350) (248 N
Rate derivanves — outflows 359 i 16 376 S
Trade payables 155 65 97 317 >
Total 2,082 422 i3 2,617 y
2012
All figures n £ mdl ony uso GBP Other Toml_
Not later than one year 489 126 142 757 5
Later than one year and not later than five years 726 357 21 1,104 %
Later than five years 863 — - 863 g-
Total 2,078 483 163 2,724 m
Analysed as %
Bonds 1,837 639 - 2,476 3
Rate denvatives — wiflows (326} (264) - {590)
Rate denvatives — outflows 328 3 22 353
Trade payables 239 105 141 485
Total 2,078 483 163 2,724 a
Al cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floaung rate are 2
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset. Where this 15 not possible, floaung rates are %

based on interest rates prevaiing at 3| December i the relevant year All derivative amounts are shown gross,
although the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilites and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity
date of the relevant facility with interest calculated as payable i each calendar year up to and mncluding the date of
matunity of the facihty

Financial countes party 11sk management

Counterparty credit limits, which take published credit raning and other factors into account, are set to cover our
total aggregate exposure to & single financial nstitution The imits applicable to pubhished credit ratings bands are
approved by the cheef financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and hmits applicable to
each financial institution are reviewed on a regular basts
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9 Financial sk management continued

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based i the UK, 1t has s most significant investment in overseas operations The most
signtficant currency for the Group s the US dollar The Group’s policy on routine transactional converstons
between currencies (for example the collection of recevables, and the setlement of payables or interest) rematns
that these should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group's operations are
domestic within their country of operation No unremitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts,

as the company judges it inappropriate to hedge non-cash flow translauonal exposure with cash flow instruments

However, the Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of afigning !
approximately the currency composiuon of tts core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate

derwvauves) with its forecast operating profit before depreciation and amorusation This policy aims to soften the ‘
impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on consolidated interest cover and earrings The policy above applies
only to currencies that account for more than 15% of Group operaung profit befere depreciation and amortisation,
which currently 1s only the US dollar The Group stil borrows small amounts in other currencies, typically for
seasonal working capial needs Our policy does not require exasting currency debt to be terminated to match
declines tn that currency’s share of Group operating profit before depreciation and amorusation In addition,
currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operating profit before depreciation and amorusation can be
inciuded i the above hedging process at the request of the chief financial officer

—

Included within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above (taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US doftar £1,63{m, sterling £202m and South African rand £(21)m

Use of currency debt and currency denvatives

The Group uses both currency denominated debt and dervative instruments to implement the above policy

Its intention is that gains/losses on the denvatives and debt offset the fosses/gams on the foreign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging instruments 1s monitored agamst the assets i the refevant currency
and, where pracucal, a decision 1s made whether to treat the debt or denivauve as a net investment hedge
{permuttung foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of IAS 39

Financial instruments — fair value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subsequent to inmial
recognition at fair value, grouped o levels | to 3. based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level | fair value measurements are those denved from unadjusted guoted prices in actve markets for identical (
assets or habiities,

Levef 2 fair value measurements are those denved from inputs, other than quoted prices included withmn level |,
that are observable for the asset or liability, esther directly (as prices) or mdirectly (derived from pnces), and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include nputs for the asset or
lrabdity that are not based on observable market data {unabservable inputs)
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19. Financial nsk management continued
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o
Financial instruments — fair value measurement continued %
2013 2062 3
Nif&rfs —iﬂf_ millicns Level | Level 2 Level3 Total Levcl | Level 7 Levei 3 Towl
Elnancral assets at fair value T
Derwanve financiat assets - 124 - 124 - {78 - i78
Marketable secunties - 6 - 6 - ) - 6
Available for sale financial assets
Investments 1n unlisted securiyies — _
CONUNUINE Operations - - 94 94 - - 30 30 2
Investments 1 unhsted securities classified E
within assets held for sale - - - - - - | ! =
Financial abshities at fair value g
Denvauve financial habilites - {48) - {48) - - ~ - ﬁ
Other financial habtlities — put oputons over
non-controfling interest - - - - - - (68}  (68)
Total - 82 94 176 - 184 37y 147
The following table analyses the movements o level 3 fair value measurements z
2013 w12 2
Investments in [nvestrnents iz %
unlsted  Orther finanaial unbsted  Other fnancial z
All figures in £ mitlions socuras firbilines securties Dbl nes ';
At beginrung of year 31 (68) 26 (86) g
Exchange differences - 9 v 5 &
Additons 63 - 10 -
Fair value movements - (8) - (25)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - (h _
Disposals - 67 {2) 38 _3_
At end of year 94 - 31 (68) ]
rd
The fair value of the investments in unlisted secunuies is determined by reference to the financial performance %
a

of the underlying asset and amounts reahsed on the sale of similar assets In 2012, the fair value of other financial

Irabilitzes represents the present vahee of the esumaied future liabilicy

|
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19. Financial sk management contnued

Financial instruments — sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2013 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financral instruments to fluctuations
In interest rates and exchange rates (s as follows

fmpact of 1% impactof 1% tmpaccof {0%  impacr of 0%

increase i decreasc in swengthening in weakening in
Adl figures sn £ millisns Carry ng volue  interestrates  nzerest rates sterfing sterling
Investments in unlisted secunties — conunuing
operations 94 - - (9 10
Cash and cash equivalents — continuing operations 729 - - {56) 68

i Cash and cash equivalents classiied within assets held

for sale 36 - - (2) 2
Marketable securinies 6 - - - -
Dervanve financial instruments 76 (54) 59 i5 (18)
Bonds (2 168) 58 {62) 147 {179
Other borrowings — conunuing operations (58} - - 5 (5)
Other net financial assets — continuing operations 566 - - (43) 53
Other net financral assets classified within assets and
habiliies held for sale 24 - — (1) !
Total financial instruments (695) 4 (3) 56 (68)

The table shows the sensitvities of the fair values of each class of financial Instruments to an isolated change in
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less
trade liabuliwes

The sensiuvities of denvauve instruments are calcuiated using established esumatien techmiques such as discounted
| cash flow and option valuauon models Where modeliing an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest
| rates, these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proporuon of the movements shown above
would impact equity rather than the income statement, due to the focation and functional currency of the entities
tn which they anse and the availability of net investment hedge treatment. The changes in valuations are esumates
of the impact of changes n market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gans or losses
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20. Intangible assets — Pre-pubtication
Allfigures n £ milians 013 2012
Cost
At beginming of year 1.876 {1,965
Exchange differences (46) {74)
Additions 364 364
Disposal through business disposal (29 -
Disposals (234) (188)
Acquisiton through business combination 2 14
Transfer to property, plant and equipment - (3)
Transfer to assets classtfied as held for sale - (202
At end of year o L [,933 }.876
Amorusation
At beginning of year {1,210 (1,315)
Exchange differences 46 5%
Charge for the year {308) {316)
Disposal through business disposat 23 -
Disposais 234 188
Acquisteon through business combimation (H (8)
Transfer to assets classified as heid for sale L - 186
At end of year {1.216) (1,210)
Carrying amounts
At end of year 717 666

Included in the above are pre-publication assets amounung to £480m (2012 £43im) which will be realised in more

than one year

Amortisation is included mn the income statement in cost of goods sold n 2813 £mil (2012 £33m) relates w0

discontinued operations

2| Inventores

All figures i £ mufions . HM13 002
Raw matenals ) I3
Work in progress 13 i
Firushed goods 196 237

224 261

The cost of inventories relattng to continuing operations recognised as an expense and included in the income
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £472m (2012 £5{2m}) In 2013 £53m (2012 £71m) of nventory
provisions was charged in the mcome statement None of the inventory is pledged as secunty
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22 Trade and other recervables

Afl tgures m £ milions 013 012
Current
Trade receivables 863 868
Royaity advances 23 (6
Prepayments and accrued income |01 8l
Other recetvables 186 139
~ L (73 1,104
Non-current
Trade recervables 19 I5
Royalty advances 8 I3
Prepayments and accrued tncome 33 33
QOther recewvables 10 i8
70 79

Trade receivables are stated at fair value, net of provisions for bad and doubduf debts and anuapated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as foltows

Al figures i £ rnilll_o_n_s L o _ 013 2042
At beginning of year (55) {102)
Exchange differences 5 4
Income statement movements @7 20
Utlised I8 53
Acquisiton through business combination - (H
Transfer to assets classfied as held for sale ! 2
At end of year (58) (55)

Concentranons of credit risk with respect to trade recewvables are lrmited due to the Group's targe number of
customers, who are internationally dispersed

The ageing of the Group's trade receivables is as follows

All figures in £ miftions 2013 2012
Within due date 783 774
Up to three months past due date 194 231
Three to six months past due date 36 43
Six to nme months past due date 22 G
MNine to 12 months past due date 9 7
More than 12 months past due date o . I 5
Total trade recewvables 1,045 +,070
Lass prowvision for sales returns ) o (163} (1873

Net trade recevables B 882 883

The Group reviews 1ts bad debt provision at least twice a year foliowing a detailed review of recervable batances
and historic payment profiles Management beheve alt the remaining recevable balances are fully recoverable

N
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23 Provisions for other irabilities and charges

Defurred Dispasals Legd
Al hguﬂ_a_s n £ mﬂlmni_ . conskieration Propeny and ciasures and Olh:[' Towl
At | January 2013 64 26 [5 43 t48
Exchange differences 4 - - )] (2}
Charged to income statement - 6 67 55 128
Released ro income statement - (4) - (1) {5)
Deferred consideration on acquisition 2 - - - 2
Uuhised 4 {17) (15) (66) {102)
Transfer from Labdiues held for sale - - - 24 24
Transfer to habilities held for sale o ) - (h {4)
At 31 December 2013 58 bl 67 53 189
Analysis of provisions
2013
Deferred Disposals Legat
All figures in £ millions conudc_m—tloE _ Property  and closures and other Total
Current 5 0 67 30 112
Non-current 53 | - 23 77
58 1 67 53 89
2012
Current 6 12 5 5 38
Non-current 58 14 - 38 110
64 26 i5 43 148

Deferred consideranion pnmarily relates to the formauon of a venture in the US Professional business in 201 1
Disposals and closures include retirement benefit cbligatons and other habilities related to the disposal of Penguin
Legal and other includes ktigation in refation to ebooks which was setded n full during 2013, as well as other
provisions in relation to legal claims, contract disputes and potenual contract losses

24 Trade and other lhiabiities

All figures In £ millions 2013 1082
Trade payables 316 337
Socal security and other taxes 23 30
Accruals 478 440
Deferred mncome 698 714
interest payable 22 21
Put opuons over non-controliing nterest - 63
Other liabihimes L _ 225 228
1,762 1,838
Less non-current poruon
Accruals 25 18
Deferred mcome 155 147
Interest payable 21 13
Put options over non-controliing interest - 25
Other liabilities L o _ 5% 19
257 282

Current portion i i.505 1,556
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

24 Trade and orher habilities continued
The carrying value of the Group's trade and other Irabihities approximates its fair value

The deferred imcome balance comprises prncipally mulu year obligations to deliver workbooks to adopton
customers n school businesses, advance payments in assessment, testing and training businesses, subscription
mncome n schoot. college and newspaper businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content in future years

The put options over non-conuroliing interest n 2012 are the fair value of options held by the non-controlhing
mterests i the Group's Southern African and Indian businesses

25 Reurement benefit and other post-returement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefir and defined contribuvon retrement plans throughout the world

The fargest plan 15 the Pearson Group Pension Fian (UK Group plan) in the UK, which 1s sectionzlised to provide
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension benefits The defined benefit section was ciosed to new
members from | November 2006 The defined contribunions section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing
employees Finally, there 15 a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enralment The defined
benefit section of the UK Group plan is a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form
of a guaranteed level of pension payable forife The level of benefits depends on the length of service and finaf
pensionable pay The UK Graup plan is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK
Group plan 1s admimistered in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its benefictanes by
Pearson Group Pension Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2013 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 members, analysed i the following table

v oo _ Aguva Deferved Pensioners Towd
Defined benefit 3 25 32 60
Defined contnibution 17 23 - 40
Total B 20 48 32 160

The other major defined benefit plans are based tn the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependant on
tength of service and final pensionable pay The majority of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retwement medical benefit plans (PRMBs). principally in the US PRMBs are
unfunded but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal nsks such as hife expectancy, miffation nsks, and
investment risk ncluding asset volathity and changes m bond yields The Group is not exposed to any unusual,
enuty specific or plan speafic rnsks
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Assumpuons
The princrpal assumpuions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average
assumputons have been shown for the other plans, which primanily relate to US pension plans

2013 012
) UK Group Cher VK Group Other

3 plan plans PRMB plan plans PRMB
Inflatron 34 25 25 30 25 25
Rate used to discount plan habihues 4 4 44 44 44 36 36
Expected rate of increase in salaries 39 39 40 35 39 -
Expected rate of increase for pensions in
payment and deferred pensions 23to5 | - - 231w51 - -
Inial rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 75 - - 80
Ulumate rate of increase in healthcare rate - — 50 - - 50

The UK discount rate is based on corporate bond yelds adjusted to reflect the duravon of labilives The US
discount rate is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching model

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 4% reflects the RPI rate In hne with changes to legistation in 2010,
certain benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflanonary measure and m these mnstances a rate
of 2 6% has been used

The expected rate of increase in salaries has been set at 3 9% for 2013 with a short-term assumption of 3 0%
for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumpuons have been derived {rom the SAPS “all pensianers’ tables
for males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for femazles, adjusted to reflect the observed experience
of the plan, with CMI model improvement factors A | 5% long term rate improvement on the CM model s
applied for males, and | 25% for females

For the US plans, the RP2000 table projected o 2020 is used reflecting the mortality assumption most prevalent
in the US

Using the above tables, the remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the
balance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans 1s as follows

UK us

2013 i 2013 2002

Male 243 230 192 192
Female _ 244 242 20 2

The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet
date, for the UK and US Group plans s as follows

UK B

. _ 013 W 00 2012
Male 259 251 i92 192
Female 25% 26 | 21| 201
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Rerwrement benefit and other post-retrement obligations conunued

Financial statement information

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as folfows:

2013
Defined
UK Graup honehe Defined

All figures m £ millions plan other Sub-total  contrbunion PRME Toual

Current service cost 22 3 25 72 4 101
Curtalments . ~ - - S ) S .|
Adrministration expenses 4 - 4 - — 4

Total operating expense 26 3 29 72 - {0}
Interest on plan assets (35) {(6) {101) - - (1an
Interest on plan liabilities 94 7 101 - 3 {04

Net finance (income)/expense (0 | - - 3 3

Net income statement charge 25 4 29 72 3 104
T o o o 2

Resiated
- Defned o T

UK Graup banefit Defiswad

Al figuras i £ endhons plan other Sub-toes comnbunon PRIM2 Total
Current service cost 23 3 26 78 4 108

Admunistration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Toral operating expense 27 3 30 78 4 1z
Interest on plan assets {98) {6) (104) - - (104)
Interest on plan habiliues 26 7 103 ~ 3 __10é
Net finance (income)/expense {2) ! () - 3 2
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 78 7 I'14

Included within the 2013 results are discontinued operations consisung of a £2m charge (2012 £4m charge)
relating to defined benefit schemes and a £6m charge {2012- £9m charge) relaung to defined contribution schemes

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

2013 2012
Other Other Other Othry
LK Group funded  unfunded UK Group funced  unfundes
Al figeres s £ milhons o pl:m_ ) plany plans . Toral plan nlang pien Tewal
Fair value of plan assets 2353 156 - 2,509 2,162 165 - 2327
Present value of defined benefit
obligation o Rw7y (70 (20) (2.458) {(2.181)  (19¢) (24) {2,401)
Net pension asset/(liability) 86 {15) (20) 51 {19) 30 (24) {74)
Other post-retirement
medical benefit obligation (77) (89)
Other pension accruals (30) _ (35)
Net retivement benefit obligations (56) (198)
Analysed as
Retwrement benefit assets 86 -
Rewrement benefit obligations _ (142} . (198)
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Included within the 2012 retrement benefit obligauon s a habity of £26m which relates to Penguin and 1s classified
as held for sale Duning 2013 this was transferred back from held for sale to pension habilities

The followang gains/{losses} have been recognised in other comprehensive micome:

013 017
Al figures in £ mithons Reswied
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 70 {35)
Amounts recognised for post-reurement medical benefit plans 9 (5)
Total recognised in year 79 (100)
The fair value of plan assets comprises the followmng
013 2612
OCther Cther
UK Group fundad UK Group funded
% plan plans Total olan plans Tenl
Equities 28 2 30 32 2 34
Bonds 40 3 43 38 3 4
Property g - g 9 } U
Other 17 i 18 14 ! 15

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, or any property occupied by
the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into addintonal categores and those assets which
have a quoted market price in an active market and those that do not

2043 2012
Quoted ™o guoted Quoted Mo guated
% market pnice  market price markntprice  markes prce
UK equites 6 I 6 !
Non-UK equittes 20 3 25 3
Fixed-interest securities 19 - Pl -
Index-hnked securnies 24 - 9 -
Property - 2 - {a
Other - I8 i 14
Total 69 31 72 28
The hquiday profile of the UK Group plan assets is as follows
% _ 2013 012
Liquid ~ call <I month 71 73
Lags liquid — call 1-3 months 2 2
lhquid — call > 3 months L 26

MIIAYIAD

JINVWYQIYId ¥NG

ESIANISME 31BISNOJISIY

FONVNYIACS

SINIWILVYLS TVIDNYNI4




|

80 Pearson pic Annual report and accounts 2043
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Changes tn the values of plan assets and liabilities of the retirement benefit plans are as follows

2043 062
L Resuted
UK Group Other UK Gruen Orter
N_[_ﬁgxrcs w £ mlhons e plan phans Tcia!_ e pfarn pl.‘fns Total
Fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 2,162 165 2,327 2,008 149 2,157
Exchange differences - {2) (2) - (5) (5)
Interest on plan assets 25 6 0! 98 6 104
Return on plans assets excluding interest 03 6 {09 48 9 57
Contributions by employer 77 5 82 72 2 74
Contribunions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits pad (86) 24 (10 (78} (tn (89)
Acquistion through bustness combination - - - i2 I5 27
Closing fair value of plan assets 2.353 156 2509 2162 165 2,327
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation (2 181) (220) (24010) {1,983) (197} (2 180)
Exchange differences - 4 4 - 7 7
Current service cost (22) (3 (25) (23) 3) (26)
Admimistration expenses 4 - 4) (4) - (4
Interest cost (%4 7) (100) (96) )] (103)
Actuanal gains/ (losses) — expenence 5 | 6 44 2 46
Actuanal gains/(losses) - demographic - | ! (14) - {14)
Actuanal gans/ (fosses) — financial (55) 9 (46) (170} (i4) (184)
Contnbutions by employee (2} - {2 {2} - (2)
Benefits pad 86 24 11Q 78 iy 89
Acquisiion through business combinaton ~ - - (n (19} {30)
Closing defined benefit obligation (2,267) (194)  (2.458) (2.181) (220) (2404

The weighted average durauon of the defined benefit obligation 1s {5 8 years for the UK and 9 4 years for the US
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations contunued

Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

Al figuees n £ milfans _ L . 2043 012
Opening defined benefit obligation T (89) (85)
Exchange differences | 4
Current service cost {4) (4)
Curtailments 4 -
Interest cost 3) (3)
Actuaral gains/ (fosses) — experience - 2
Actuanal gains/(losses) — financial 2 (7
Benefits pad 5 4
Closing defined benefit obligation {77) {(89)
Funding

The UK Group plan is self-administered with the plan’s assets being held mdependently of the Group in trust The
wrustee of the plan is required to act in the best interest of the plan’s beneficiaries Assets of the plan are divided
into two elements, matching assets, which are assets that produce cashflows that can be expected to match the
cashflows for a proporton of the membership, and include UK and overseas bonds, inflation linked property and
nfrastructure, return seelang assets, which are assets invested with a longer term horizon to generate the returns
needed to provide the remaining expected cashflows for the beneficiaries, and include equities, property and
alternative asset classes The benchmark allocauon is 60% matching and 40% return seeking assets

The most recent tniennial actuanal valuavon for funding purposes was completed as at { January 2012 and this
valuation revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by June
2017 In 2013 the Group contributed £56m {2012 £48m) rowards the funding shortfall Following the complenon
of the tiennial funding valuatron the Group has agreed to contribute £41m per annum untd 2017 in excess of
regular contbutons In addwon, 2 mechanism has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments
up to a maxerum of £15m per annum «f certain conditions are met If such payments are made they are expected
to accelerate the end date for extinguishing the deficit Regular contributions to the plan m respect of the defined
benefit secuons are esumated to be £18m for 2014

The Group expects to contribute $12m n 2014 and $12m i 2015 to its US defined benefit pension plans
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Retwrement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Sensiuviues
The effect of 2 one percentage point Increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obhganon
and the total pension expense s as follows

2013
All figures n € millions H% merease % decrease
Effect
(Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligauon —~ UK Group plan (316 0) 3905
(Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligaton -- US plan (16 1) 200
The effect of members living one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obhgation is as follows
013

F year i year
All figures i £ muthans ncrease decrease
Effect o
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obhgation — UK Group plan 792 {76 2)
Increase/(decrease) n defined benefit obligation - US plan _ 42 {4 8)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease in the inflavion rate 15 as follows
o o T )
All figures in £ mithons 05% mcreas: —0- 5% decrease
Effect
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan 106 1 (99 5)
Increase/{decrease)} in defined benefit obligation — US plan 02 {03)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumpuon while holding all other assumptions constant,
although i practice this is uniikely to occun and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculating
these sensitivities the samie method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obliganton as has been applied
when calculating the hability recognised in the balance sheet. This methodology is the same as prior peniods
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26 Shasre-based payments
The Group recogrised the following charges in the mcome statement in respect of 1ts equity-setded share-based payment plans

Al figures i £ mitlions 2013 2012

Pearson plans 35 28

Share-based payment charges included i discontinued operauons amounted to £2m (2012 £4m)
The Group operates the following equity-settled employee option and share plans.

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees
in 1998 the Group intraduced a Worldwicde Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a
portion of their monthly salary over periods of three, five or seven years At the end of this penod, the employee
has the option to purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of

the market pnce prevailing at the ume of the cammencement of the employee's paruaipation in the plan

Options that are not exercised within $ix months of the end of the savings peniod lapse uncondimonally

Employee Stock Purchase Plan in 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows ali
employees n the US to save a portion of ther monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the period,
the employee has the option to purchase ADRs with therr accumulated funds at 2 purchase price equal to 85%
of the lower of the market price prevaiing at the beginning or end of the period

Leng-Temnt Incentve Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed i 2006 and again n 2011 The plan
consists of restricted shares

The vesting of restricted shares is normally dependent on contnuing service over a three to five-year pertod, and
in the case of senior management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance targets over a three-year period.
These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance cntena Restricted shares awarded

to sermor management in May and Octaber 2013, and May 2012 vest dependent, on relatve total shareholder
return, return on nvested capital and earnings per share growth The award was spht equally across all three
measures Other restricted shares awarded in 2013 and 2012 vest depending on continuing service over a three-
year peniod

Annual Bonus Share Matchung Plan This plan permnts executive directors and sentor executives around the Group to
invest up to 50% of any after tax annual bonus n Pearson shares If these shares are held and the Group meets an
earmings per share growth target, the company will mauch them on a gross basis of up to one magching share for
every invested share 1 e the maximum number of matching shares ts equal to the number of shares that could
have been acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken in invested shares.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

W3 202

Weighted Wesgnte d

Number of werage Mumb er of averag.

share gpUOTS  exertise poce share oppona  EAErcse prce

-_ 000s o £ s IS
Qutstanding at beginning of year 3.373 824 3.203 715
Granted during the year 763 914 1321 909
Exercised dunng the year (B20) 712 (840} 559
Forfeited during the year {5186) 875 (294) 7 84
Expired during the year 8 575 {17 560
Qurstanding at end of year 2,792 873 3,373 224

Options exeraisable at end of year 35 695 106 558
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments conunued

Qpuons were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was
£1242 (2012 £1201) Early exercises anising from redundancy retirement or death are treated as an acceleration
of vesting and the Group therefore recognises i the income statement the amount that otherwise would have
been recognised for services received over the remainder of the original vesung peniod

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual lives and exercise
prices as follows

2013 2042

Weighted Welghten

MNumbe: of averige INumber of aVerage

shwe contracrual share rontractusl

Range of exercise prices opuans ife sptons e
£ 000s Years 000 Years
0-5 ~ - - -
5-10 2,792 23 3.373 256
>10 ~ - - -
2,792 231 3,373 256

In 2013 and 2012 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average
estimated far value for the options granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing modet

The weighted average estmated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows

013 w11

Weighted Weightad

L average average
Farr value £227 £238
Waeghted average share price £11 71 £i151
Weighted average exercise price £9 14 £9 09
Expected volatlity 2205% 13 62%
Expecred kfe 38years 3 8years
Risk free rate 053% 074%
Expected dividend yield 3 84% 3 65%
Forfeiture rate 33% 33%

The expected volatlity s based on the historic volatility of the company's share price over the previous three to
seven years depending on the vesung term of the options

The foliowing shares were gramted under restricted share arrangements

2013 2012

Velghted Weighied

Nurmber of average Numbe: of avatage

shases fay value shares far value

000s £ 000« i

Long-Term Incentive Plan 3,482 i152 4,503 156
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan 99 1206 237 1152

The fair value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest uncondstionally is deterrined using
the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest 1s adjusted, based on historical
experience, 1o account for potental forfettures Resticted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are entitled to dividends
during the vesung period and therefore the shai e price 1s not discounted
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26 Share-based payments continued

)
<
Restricted shares with a market performance condinon were valued by an independent actuary using a Monte g
Carlo model Restricted shares with a2 non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share 3
price at the date of grant. Non-market performance conditions are taken into consideration by adjusting the
number of shares expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance critera
27 Share capital and share premium
- Number Ordinary Share
of shares shares Pt ermuum
3 0005 im im
At | January 2012 815,626 204 2,544 5
Issue of ordinary shares — share optton schemes b 417 - il =
At 31 December 2012 817,043 204 2555 %
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes {537 I I3 :3‘:3
At 31 December 2013 L 818,580 205 2,568 %
The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2012 25p per share) All issued shares are fully pad
All shares have the same rights
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entittes in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximusing the return o sharehotders through the optimisanon of the debt and equity balance. R
The capttal structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 8), cash and cash equivalents (see note |7) and g
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital reserves and retained earnings g
The Group reviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balanee its overall capital structure through £
payments of dvidends, new share issues as welf as the 1ssue of new debt or the redempuon of exisung debr <
in ke with the financal nisk polices outhned in note |9 2
28 Treasury shares 7
o Poarson plc
NuUmber
of shares —_
oDgs Im 8
At | January 2002 14,665 149 3
Purchase of wreasury shares - - g
Release of treasury shares (4.563) (46) -
At 31 December 2012 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4,14 47
Release of treasury shares L _(_{,93 ) (52)
At 31 December 2013 9,282 98

H

The Group holds Pearson plc shares in trust to sausfy its obligations under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, reprasenung | 1% (2012 | 2%} of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for
accounting purposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The nommal value of Pearson plc treasury shares amaounts to £2 3m (2062 £2 5m}

At 3| December 2013 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £124 4m (2012- £120 0m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

29 Other comprehensive mcome

2013
_hunbutaHe (o equty hotders of the company
o MNon-
Translation Retaincd contraliing
All fisures in £ milhons reserve QRMES Towad incerast Tom
ltems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translavon of foreign
operations — Group (202) - (202) (4) (206)
Net exchange differences on transiauon of foreign
operauons — associate (t1) - () - (1
Currency transtation adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (18) - (18) - (18)
Autnbutable tax - 6 6 - 6
{tems that are not reclassified to the mncome statement
Remeasurement of rearement benefit obligattons — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obiigattons ~ associate - - - - -
Atrrbutable tax - (23) (23) - 23
Other comprehensive expense for the year {(231) 62 {169) (4) ({i73
- 2012
Resqared
Atwnburable to equity holders of the company T
Non
~ Translauion Retained conrvoling
Al figw es i £ mdlions reseree exm g Toul Interest Totaf
ftems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operaucns ~ Group (236) - (236) (2) (238)
Artributable tax - ! | - |
ltems that are not reclassified to the mcome statement
Remeasurement of retirernent benefit obligations — Group - (100) (too - (i)
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations — associate - (3) (3) - 3
Artributable tax — 50 50 - 20
Other comprehensive expense for the year (236) (52 (288} (2} (290)

30 Business combinattons

There were no significant acquisiwons in 2013 Adjustments have been made in respect of ptior year acquisitions
2013 and mdclude the recogrition of intangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisition  The acquisiion was

made i late 2012 and was provisionally accounted for as at 3| December 2012
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30 Business combinations continued

Provisional values for the assets and habilities arising from acquisitions completed 1in the year together with

adjustments to prior year acquisizions are as follows

187

o 013 2017
Cuvenc  FPror  Towl  Tow
All figures in £ millrons Noetes year year  fut value farr vabue
Property, plant and equipment 10 ! - I 10
Intangible assets 1 7 193 200 280
Intangible assets — Pre-publicauon 20 } - | 6
Inventories - i ] |
Trade and other receivables 8 l 9 34
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 2 - 2 34
Net deferred ncome tax assets/(habilities) 13 2 (39) (37) (67)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - (2)
Prowvisions for other habilities and charges - - - (1
Trade and other habiwes {6) () 7y i
Current income tax liabdivies - - - (H
Net assets acquired at fair value i5 155 170 183
Goodwill I 19 {152y (133) 505
Fair value of previously held interest anising on stepped acquisition {7) - {7) -
Total L Y 3 30 688
Sausfied by.
Cash {25} {(6) (31} (681
Deferred considerauon (2} - () {6)
Net prior year adjustments ~ 3 3 -
Toral consideraton (27} {3) (30)  (688)

The goodwill ansing on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergies and from benefits that cannot be

separately recognised

A provisional value of £6m of goodwill ansing on 2013 acquisitions 1s expected to be deducuble for tax purposes

(2012 £nd)

Intangible assets acquired in 2012 and recognised in 2013 have the following useful economic hves:
EmbanetCompass customer kists, contraces and relastonships 3~17 years, trademarks and brands two years
intangible assets acquired in 204 3 are dassified as other intangible assets and have useful lives of 3—1 0 years
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30. Business combnations continued

Al figures w £ millions 2013 012
Cash flow on acquisttions

Cash - Current year acquisitions (25) (682)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisitons and other items (6) (30
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2 34
Acquisinon costs and other acquisiton habihuies pard (19 37)
Net cash outflow (48) (716)

In total, acquisitions of subsidiaries completed in the year contributed an additional £15m of sales but did not
contribute a material amount 1o operaung profit There would not have been a marterial difference to ewher sales

or profits had these acquisitions completed on { January 2013

31 Disposals including business closures

2083 212
All figures i £ midlons Penguin Othar Total
Bisposai of subsidiaries
Property. plant and equipment (39 (3) (42) (3)
Intangible assets (43) - {43) (45)
Investment in joint ventures and associates {22} - (22) -
Other financial assets {1} - {n -
Intangible assets — Pre-publication {20} (6) {26) -
inventories (71} 3 (34) -
Trade and other recewvables (447) {6) (453) -
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) (34 3) (37 -
Net deferred mcome tax {(assets)/habilities (22} - (22) il
Retirement benefit obligatons - 4 4 -
Prowvistons for other habihties and charges 7 - 7 -
Trade and other habiities 224 {0 234 -
Non-controfling interest 3 - 3 -
Aurbutable goodwilt (370) (6) (376) {(56)
Cumulauve translanion adjustment 18 - i8 -
Net assets disposed {837) {13) (850) (87)
Cash received - 3 3 -
Fair value of assocrate acquired L1160 - 1,160 -
Costs e (20 (4 (35 (28
Gaimn/{loss) on disposal 202 (24) 178 UE)

The gain on disposal of Pengun arises from the measurement at fair value of the associate iwestment acquired m

Penguin Random House
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31 Duisposals including business closures continued

Al figures i £ milhons 2013 2002
Cash flow from disposals

Cash - current year disposals 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (37) _
Costs and other disposal habthties paid {98) (in
Net cash outflow {(132) {i1)

The disposal tn 2012 includes the write down of assets resulting from the closure of Pearson i Practice

32 Held for sale

Assets classtfied as held for sale in 2012 relate to Penguin and in 2013 to Mergermarket

Al figures in € rlkons Notes 2013 2052
Property, plant and equipment 10 2 40
Intangible assets H 158 404
investments in JoINt ventures and associates - 27
Deferred income tax assets 3 { 38
Other financial assets is - |

Trade and other receivables 26 45]

Intangible assets — Pre-publication 0 - 6
Inventones - 80

Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 7 36 E)

Assets classified as held for sale 223 [.172
Financral iabiliies — Borrowings E: - {7)
Deferred income tax labiiiies 13 (2) {20)
Retirement benefit abligations 5 - (26)
Provisions for other liabliwes and charges 3 {4 29
Trade and other habihives (71) (234)
Current income tax labilities {5) -
Liabihnres directly associated with assets classified as held for saie (82) 316}
Net assets classified as held for sale 14l 856

33 Transactions with non-controlling interest

in 2013 the Group purchased non-controlling mterests i1 the Southern Afncan business for £65m, and i the Indian
business for £1fm In 2012 the Group increased its investmnents in 1ts subsidiaries in China at a cost of £4m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34 Cash generated from operations

Allfrgures i £ midlions Hotes 2013 0142
Profit 53% 314
Adjustments for

income tax 90 163
Depreciation (0 82 80
Intangible charges ¥ 168 183
Amorusation of other intangible assets i 59 54
Net finance costs 75 96
Share of results of jomnt ventures and associates 12 (54) )]
(Profit)/loss on disposals (187} F13
Acquisition costs 12 2i
Costs on formation of Penguin Random House - 32
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transacuons (40) (21}
Share-based payment costs 2% 37 32
Pre-publication @7 (55)
inventories 18 49
Trade and other receivables (50) (94)
Trade and other labifinies 72 -
Retrement benefit obligations (57) (37
Provisions for other habihuies and charges (3) {5)
Net cash generated from operations 684 916
Dwidends from joint ventures and associates 64 27
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (118) (78)
Purchase of ntangible assets {64) (73)
Proceeads from sale of property, plant and equipment 24 |
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 3
Finance lease principal payments (8) (8)
QOperating cash flow 588 788
Operaung tax paid (e (65}
Net operating finance costs paid {73) (66)
Operating free cash flow 324 657
Non-operating tax pad {55} -
Free cash flow 269 657
Dividends paid (including te non-controlling interests) . 372y (348)
Net movement of funds from operations (103) 309
Acquisiions and disposals {net of tax) (326) (780)
Loans advanced (incduding to refated parues) {49) -
Purchase of treasury shares 47 -
Neow equity 14 L1
QOther movements on financial instruments & =
Net movement of funds (5209 {460)
Exchange movements on netdebt 59 41

Total movement in net debt

(461)  {419)




Sectson § Finanaial statements 91

34 Cash generared from operations continued

Net cash generated from operations 1s translated at an exchange rate approximating to the rate at the date of
cash flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives nise to a currency
adjustment i the reconctiation between net profit and net cash generated from operanons This adjustment
reflects the uming difference between recognition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Operaung cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operating measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

Al figures w £ miliions L 2063 2012
MNet book amount 19 P
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 9 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment _ 28 [

35 Conungencies

There are contingent Group habilives that arise in the normal course of business in respect of indernities,
warranties and guarantees in relatton to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in refation to subsidiares
joint ventures and associates In addmwon there are contingent habilinies of the Group in respect of legal claims,
contract disputes, royalties, copynight fees permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to
result in a2 materal gain or ioss to the Group

36 Commitments
There were no comimitments for capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred

The Group leases various coffices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases have
varying terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases vanous plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the income statement was £183m (2012 £169m)

The future aggregate rummum lease payments i respect of operating leases are as follows

Al figures w £ vllions Wi w12
MNot later than one year 161 186
Later than one year and not later than two years 149 174
Later than two years and not later than three years {33 (58
Later than three years and not later than four years 118 137
Later than four years and not later than five years 05 124
Later than five years 737 899

1,403 I 678

|
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

37 Related party transactions

Jount ventures and associates

Amounts advanced 1o jomnt ventures and assoctates duning the year and at the balance sheet date are set out

in note §2 Apart from transactions with the Group’s joint ventures and associates, there were no other material
related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of directors of Pearson plc itis this
board which had responsibility for planning, directing and controlhing the activities of the Group in 2013 Key
management personnel compensation s disclosed i the directors’ remuneration report

There were no other matenial related party transacuons
MNo guarantees have been provided to relared parties
38 Events after the balance sheec date

On 4 February 2014, the Group completed the sale of Mergermarket for £382m On || February 2014, the Group
acquired !00% of Grupo Mulu, the leading Enghish Language Traimng company in Brazil, for approximately £435m
i cash plus the assumpuon of £57m of debt
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193

The Pearson plc subsidiary compantes listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006
relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A

L Company numboer Company number
Aldwych Finance bid 04720439 Pearson Education Ltd 00872828
ASET Lid 04231636 Pearson Funding Four plc 07970304
ASET Group Lid 03964551 Pearson Funding One plc 02911143
ASET Management Ltd 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
ASET Soclutions Ltd 03849880 Pearson Heinemann Ltd 03099304
Blue Wharf Ltd 04344573 Pearson in Practice ATA Lid 07679091
Burmedia lnvestments Ltd 03060487 Pearson n Practice Holdings Ltd 06337129
tdexcet Led 04496750 Pearson m Pracuice Skills Based Learring Lid 03755464
Educatnon Development Internattonal plc 03914767 Pearson in Pracuce Technology Lid 03786989
Embankment Finance Lvd (4460625 Pearson lnternationat Finance Lid 02496206
eNVQ Ltd 03985948 Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unitd 05632021
EQL Assessment Ltd 05224778 Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Lrd 05052661
Escape Studios Ltd 04399042 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Ltd 02635107
Financial Times (ASC}) Lid 00519261 Pearson Loan Finance Unld 05144467
Financial Times Group Lid 00879531 Pearson Management Services Lud 00096263
Fronter UK Lid 057375%1 Pearson Overseas Holdings Ltd 00145205
F1 Business Informanon Lid 00758738 Pearson PRH Holdings Ltd 08561316
FT Labs Ltd 04701650 Pearson Professional Moldings Ltd 00149375
FT Personal Finance Lrd 03855520 Pearson Serwvices Ltd 01341060
Goal Ltd 03566588 Pearson Shared Services Ltd 04623186
Green Wharf Lid 07009228 Peter Honey Publications Ltd 03754757
[codeon Ltd 05068195 Sector Traming Ltd 05342448
joint Examining Board Ltd 03278422 St Clements Press (1988) Ltd 02174119
Longman Group (Overseas Holdings) Ltd 00690236 Testchange Ltd 02496240
Midlands Educauonal Technology Ltd 01448842 The Coaching Space Ltd 05333023
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Ltd 08038068 The Financial Times (Benelux) Lid 01613899
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Ld 03041245 The Financial Times (France) Ltd 00867316
Pearson Australka Finance Unltd 05578463 The Financial Times {Japan) Ltd 01613900
Pearson Books Lid 02512075 The Financial Times (M-M UK) Ltd (1398449
Pearson Canada Finance Unlid 05578421 The Financiat Times (Spain) Ltd 0121441
Pearson Coltege Ltd 07967446 The Financial Times Led 00227590
Pearson Dollar Finance plc Q5111013 TQ Catals Lid 07307943
Pearson Dollar Finance Two pic 06507766 TQ Ciapham Ltd 07307925
Pearson Education Holdings Led 00210859 TQ Global L.td 07802458
Pearson Education Investments Lid 08444933 TQ Holdings Lid 06294307
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

39 Accounts and audit exemptions continued

The Pearson pic subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
to prepare individual accounts by virtue of section 394A

Curngrazty number _ Company nu nber
Exec-Appomntments tid 04010964 Medley Global Advisors Ltd 00931507
FDl Inteliigence Ltd N1040129 The Financial News Ltd 00607228
Financial Tirmes Business Ltd 00202281 The Financial Times {Switzerand) Ltd 01613%01
Financiat Times Electromic Publishing Ltd - 02749250 The Financral Times (Zhongwen) Ltd 01900030
Finanaial Times investor Ltd 04005565 Throgmorton Publications Lid 00305696

Mandatewire Ltd 03855296
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013
All figures in £ mdhons Notes 2083 012
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 8 537 9.108
Amounts due from substdiaries 2,009 2.021
Financial assets — Derwauve finanaal nstruments 6 (B 174
10,657 1303
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 380 578
Amounts due from related parties 44 -
Prepayrments - 4
Current income tax assets 24 -
Financial assets - Denvauve financal instruments 6 i3 4
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 4 394 643
~ L 855 1,229
Toztal assets HH,512 12,532
Liabiites
Non-current habilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (3.553) (4227)
Financial hatitives — Borrowings 5 {202) (473)
Financial labilites — Dertvative financial nstruments 6 (48) -
(3.803)  (4.700)
Current liabiiues
Armounts due to subsidiares (1,256}  {1,953)
Current income tax habihes - (i3)
Financial habilities — Borrowings 5 {766) (618)
Prowisions for other liabdines and charges 7 (42) -
(2064  (2.584)
Total liabihities (5,867 (7 284)
Net assets 5,645 5248
Equity
Share capital 8 205 204
Share premium a 2,568 2,555
Treasury shares g {22) (27)
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings N 2447 2,069
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5.645 5,248

These financral statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 10 March 2014 and signed

on its behalf by

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer
10 March 2014

_
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 3| December 2013

Equity atenburable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Specal Rezined

Al figures m £ millions capiral prCIim sharey reserve earnings Yol
A | January 2013 204 2,555 (27) 447 2.069 5,248
Profit for the year - - - - 802 802
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes™ [ 13 - - - 4
Purchase of treasury shares - - {47) - - (47}
Release of ireasury shares - - 52 - {52) -
Dividends — - - - (372) {372)
At 31 December 2013 205 2568  {22) 447 2,447 5,645

Ecunty atmbutable 1o equity holdery of the company

Shme Share Treasury Special Retainec

Al fipuies in £ milkons capual premium ey reseme garnings Total
At} january 2082 204 1,544 (94) 447 1.450 4551
Profit for the year - - - - 1,011 1LO11
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes® - I - - _ I
Contnibutions from subsidiaries
for treasury shares - - 21 _ _ 21
Release of treasury shares - - 46 _ (46) _
Dividends - - ~ - (346) (346)
At 31 December 2012 204 2,555 (27) 447 2,069 5.248

The special reserve represents the cumulatve effect of cancellauon of the company's share premium account

Inciuded within retained earrungs 1s an amount of £131m (2012 £13{m) relatng to profit on intra-group disposals

that 1s not distributable

“Fyll detads of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2013

197

All figures m £ mallions Notes Flk] 2002
Cash flows from operating activittes

Net profit 802 1.0t
Adjustments for.

income tax {51) (3%}
Net finance costs 67 103
Amounts due to subsidiaries {1.053) {427)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations {135) 648
Interest pad (82) (93)
Tax recewed _ b4 43
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (203) 598
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of subsidianies, net of cash disposed 482 -
interess recetved i0 !
Net cash received from investung activities 492 |
Cash flows from financing actvities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 14 11
Net purchase of treasury shares (48) -
Loans to related parties (44) -
Repayment of borrowings - H
Dividends paid to company's shareholders i {372) {346)
Net cash used (n financing acuvities (4506) {3386)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivatents i8 (4
Net (decrease)/mcrease in cash and cash equivatents (143) 259
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 25 (234)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 (118) 25
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Notes to the company financial statements

| Accounting pohicies

The financial statements on pages 195 to 203 comprise the separate financial statements of Pearson pic
As permutted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, only the censolidated income statement and statement
of comprehensive income has been presented

The company has no employees

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these company financial statements are the same as those
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements with the addition of the following

investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less prowvision for impairment, with the exception of certain hedged
investments that are held i a foreign currency and revalued ai each balance sheet date

2 Investments in subsidiares

Al figures 1 £ miklions 2013 012
At beginnung of year 2,108 9,056
Subscription for share caprtal in subsidiaries 424 1o
Disposals/iquidatons (985) -
Currency revaluations (10} (58)
At end of year 8,537 9.108

3 Furancial sk management

The company’s financial instruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertalangs, cash and cash
equivalents, dervanive financial instruments and current and non-current borrowings Denvauve financial
instruments are held at fair valae, with all other financial nstruments held at amortised cost The company's
approach 1o the management of financial nsks 15 consistent with the Group’s treasury policy, as discussed
i note |9 to the consolidated financial statements The company believes the value of its finanaial assets

to be fully recoverable

The company designates certan of its qualifying derivatve financial instruments as hedges of the far value of
its bonds (far value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are recorded

in the iIncome statement, together with any change i the fair value of the hedged hability atmbutable to the

hedged sk

The carrying value of the company's financial iInstruments 1s exposed to movements i interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates {pnmardy US dollars) The company esumates that a {% mcrease in interest rates would
result i a £47m decrease in the carrying value of its financial insouments, with a | % decrease in interest rates
resulting in a £50m increase in ther carrying value The company also esumates that a 10% strengtherung in steriing
would decrease the carrying value of its financial instrumenis by £126m, while a 10% decrease i the value of
sterling would increase the carryng value by £129m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be
recorded through the income statement Sensitvities are calculated using esumanion techniques such as discounted
cash flow and opuion valuation models Where modelling an nterest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest
rates, these ponts on the yield curve were adjusted 1o 0%
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)
The maturity of contracted cash flows on the company’s borrowings and afl of its derivative financial instruments é
are as follows P
_ 2013
Al figures i £ milhons L UsD GEP  Other N Totad
Not later than one year (20) 233 6 229
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 (212) - 75
Later than five years (39) - - {39)
Total 228 24 i6 265
Analysed as g
Bonds 219 268 - 487 =
Rate denvatives — inflows (350) (248) - (598) ¢
Rate derivatives — outflows L 359 i 6 376 %
Total 228 20 16 25
T B - T - 2012
Al figures € milins L st GBP Other Toral
Not later than one year {26) 3 I (22} _;_
Later than one year and not later than five years 05 2i 21 147 3
Later than five years _ 155 - - 155 é
Total o . 234 24 22 0 &
Analysed as %
Bonds 232 285 - 517 g
Rate dervatives —~ inflows (326) (264) - (590)
Rate derwvauves — outflows 328 3 22 353
Total 234 24 2 280
All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basts Any cash flows based on a floaung rate are §
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this s not possible, floating rates are §
based on interest rates prevaiing at 31 December in the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross, %

although the company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilates and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the matunty
date of the relevant facility, with mterest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date

of maturiy of the faciity

!
L

SINIWILVAS TYIONY NS



200 Pearson ple Annud report and accounts 213

Notes to the company financial statements continued

4 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

All figures n £ mithons ] L 2013 12
Cash at bank and in hand 269 i
Short-term bank deposits . (25 642
o 394 643

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2013 the currency spht of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 7635 (2012 63%) and sterling 24%

(2012 37%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying amounts due to thew
short-term nature

Cash and cash equivalents include the followmng for the purpose of the cash flow statement

All figures v £ mitlions ) _ _ . 2013 2012

Cash and cash equu\;alents 394 643

Bank overdrafts L (51 (618)

B ) L . (118} 25

5 Fwancial tabthimies — Borrowings

AN figures m £ milions o ) “_ o 013 012

Non-curr;nt

7 0% Sterhng Bonds 2014 (nomunal amount £250m} - 256

4 625% US Dollar Notes 2018 {nomnal amount $300m) 202 2t7

202 473

Current

Due within one year or on-demand

7 0% Sterling Bonds 201 4 (nonmunal amount £250m) 254 _

Bank loans and overdrafts 512 618
) 766 618

Total borrowings 968 1,091

{nciuded 1n non-current borrowings above 1s £nif of accrued interest (2012 £3m) Inciuded in current borrowings

above 1s £3m of accrued mnterest (2012 £mil)

N
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The maturity of the company 5 non-current borrowings 1s as follows

201

Al figures i £ rulltons FULE] 2012
Bevween one and two years - 256
Between two and five years 202 -
Over five years - 2i7

202 473

As at 31 December 2013 the exposure to interest rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due 1o subsidiaries

when the borrowings re-price 1s as follows

Less chan One o Mote than

All figures m £ millions ane year five years five years Toral
Re-pricing profite of borrowings 766 202 - 968
Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,256 2731 822 4,809
Effect of rate derwauves 1.026 (422) {(604) -
3,048 2511 218 5,777

The cartying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows
o 013 2012
Effecuve Carrying Market Cart yiry; PAarher
Alt figures n £ miiflons nterest rate amaount value amount vafue
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 512 512 618 618
7 0% Steriing Bonds 2014 7 20% 254 262 156 274
4 625% US dollar Notes 2018 4 69% 202 195 217 209
968 969 {,091 [,101

The market values are based on ciean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, on the
quoted market prices of comparable debt issued by other companes The effective interest rates above relate

to the underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the company's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

All figures . £ millions 2012 043
tJS doltar 202 255
Sterling 762 826
Euro 4 10

968 f 091
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

6 Derivative financial mstruments

The company's outstanding derwvatve financial instruments are as follows

2013 042
Gross notional Gross noponzd

All _fg_u_r_cs n g |mﬂlo:|_s_ . amcunts Assuts Liabilities __ dmoums o E‘,“.‘s_..____fb‘_mﬁ,
Interest rate derwvatives
in a fair value hedge relationship 231 22 - 234 35 -
Interest rate dervatives —
not in a hedge relationshup 1,842 63 {48) 1,292 Q9 -
Cross-currency derivatives 220 39 — 220 34 -
Total 2,293 124 (48) 1,746 i78 -
Analysed as expiring
In less than one year 312 13 - 215 4 -
Later than one year and not later
than five years 1,377 1 - 701 69 —
Later than five years . 604 ~ {48) 830 105 -
Total 2,293 124 (48) 1746 {78 -

The carrying value of the above dervative financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of estabhshed esumation techmiques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

7 Prowvisions for other liabikieies and charges

Provisions i the year comprise llabihties assumed on the closure of the business of a group subsidiary
It 15 antcpated that the provision will be utlised i less than one year

8 Share caputal and share premium

Nurnber of Ordinary Share

shares shares DrEnVUT™

L 0R0s im fins

At | January 2012 815,626 204 2,544
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1417 - i
At 31 December 2012 BI7043 204 2,555
Issue of ordmary shares - share option schemes 1 537 | i3
At 3| December 2013 818,580 205 2,568

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2012 25p per share} All issued shares are fully paid
All shares have the same nghts
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9 Treasury shares

Number of
shares
1005 im
At | January 2012 14.665 94
Purchase of treasury shares ~ -
Contribution from subsidianies - @n
Release of ueasury shares (4.563) (46)
At 31 December 2012 10,102 27
Purchase of treasury shares 4111 47
Release of treasury shares (4.931) (52)
At 31 December 2013 _ 9,282 22

The company holds tts own shares In trust to satisfy its obligations under its restricted share plans These shares
are treated as treasury shares for accounting purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The nomunal value
of the company’s treasury shares amounts to £2 3m (2012 £2 5m) At 3| December 201 3 the market value of
the company's treasury shares was £124 4m (2012 £120 0m)

10 Contingencies

There are contingent habilities that arise m the normal course of business in respect of indemnittes, warranties

and guarantees in refation to former subsidaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries In addition
there are conungent liabilities in respect of fegal clams None of these claims are expected to rasult in a material
gan or loss to the comparny

{1 Audit fees
Statutory audic fees relating to the company were £35000 (2012 £35,000)
{2 Related party uwansactions

Subsidiaries
The company tansacts and has outstanding balances with rs subsidianes Amounts due from subsidianes
and amounts due to subsidiaries are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generally unsecured and interest 1s cafculated based on market rates The company has interest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £144m {2012 £171m) and interest receivable from subsidianes for the
year of £59m (2012 £64m). Management fees payable to subsidianes in respect of centrally provided services
amounted to £55m {2012 £47m) Dmdends receved from subsidiares were £1,363m (2012 £1,124m)

Associates
Amounts due from related parues, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate to foans to Penguin
Random House, an associate of the Group These foans are unsecured and interest s calcufated based on market

rates

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the board of directors of the company
lt1s this board which has tesponsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed in the report on directors' remuneration in the
consolidated financial statements

There were no other matenal related party transacuons
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Principal subsidiaries

The principat operating subsiciaries at 3|1 December 2013 are listed below They operate mamly in the countries
of incorporaton or registration. The mvestrnents are in equity share capiial and they are all 100% owned

Covntry of icorprration or regstrauon

Pearson Educaton

Pearson Educauon Inc us
Pearson Education Ltd England
NCS Pearson Inc . o Us
FT Group

The Financiat Times Ltd England

The company has taken advaritage of the exemption under Secuon 410{2) of the Compantes Act 2006 by
providing information only 1n relation to subsidiary undertalangs whose results or financial position, in the opinion
of the director s, principally affected the financral statements A complete hst of subsidiary and associated
undertakings will be included i the next Pearson plc annual return filed with the Registrar of Compantes
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Five-year summary
20t 01

Afl Gigures w £ ondlons 00 040 Restated Festated 2043
Sales
North Amencan Education 2470 2,640 2,584 2.658 2779
internationat Education 1,035 1,234 {424 1,568 1,539
Professional 275 333 382 330 410
Education 3,780 4207 4,390 4616 4728
FT Group 288 325 338 343 341
Continuing 4,068 4,532 4,728 4,959 5,069
Discontinued 1,556 1,427 {134 1,153 621
Total sales 5624 5,959 5862 6.112 5,650
Adjusted operating profit
North American Education 403 469 493 536 406
internattonal Education 4] 171 194 2t4 140
Professtonal 43 51 66 37 57
Educauon 587 691 753 787 603
FT Group I9 41 53 22 29
Penguin Random House - - - — 50
Continuing 606 732 806 809 682
Discontinued 252 206 132 123 54
Toral adjusted operating profit 858 938 938 932 736
Qperating margin — conumung 14 9% le 2% 17 0% 16 3% 135%
Adjusted earnings
Toral adusted operating profit 858 938 938 932 736
Net finance costs (%7) (85) (55} (65) (72}
Income tax (194) 215 {196) (200} 9N
Non-controlling interest (44) (17) } (3) {0
Adjusted earnings 523 621 688 664 566
Weighted average number of shares (mithons) 7993 80t 2 8002 8043 8078
Adjusted earnings per share 65 4p 77 5p 86 Op 82 ép 70 ip

204 | and 2012 have been restated to reflect the adopton of IAS 19 revised Prior penods have not been restaied

|
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Five-year summary continued

2011 2012

Al figures m £ millions 1009 2010 Restated Restated 2013
Cash flow

Cperattng cash flow 213 1,057 983 788 588
Operating cash conversion 106% H3% 105% 85% BO%
Operaung free cash flow 723 904 772 a57 324
Operatng free cash flow per share 90 5p 112 8p 96 5p 8i7p 40 1p
Total free cash flow 723 904 772 657 269
Total free cash flow per share 90 5p i128p 96 5p 8t 7p 333p
Net assets 4,636 5,605 5,962 5710 5.706
Net debt 1,092 430 499 9t8 1,379
Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operating profit 858 938 938 932 736
Cash tax pad L (103) (85) {151y {65) (i91)
Return 755 853 787 867 545
Average invested capital 8,504 8.315 8.721 9,578 10130
Return on mvested capital B8 9% 103% 9 0% 91% 5 4%
Dividend per share 35.5p 38.7p 42 0p 45 Op 48 Op
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Corporate and operating measures

207

Pearson’s corporate and operating measures include the results of Mergermarket throughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned during that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movement excluding Penguin and excluding the impact of acquisisons and disposals and movements

in exchange rates

Al figures in £ millione

2013

Underlying increase 29
Portfolo changes 70
Exchange differences 19
Total sales increase L I8
Underiying increase 1%
Constant exchange rate increase 2%

Adjusted income statement

Reconcihation of the consolidated income statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures

n the finanaal statements

o 2013
Orther net
Statutory DOther net finance Tax Adusted
ncome Bisconunued  gains and Acqusition Intangble incomel  amortisaton Income
iu_l_h_gures n £ millions statemenc operations lesses _ tosis charges costs benefit staement
Operaung profit 458 54 i6 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs {(76) - - - — 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 {6 2 196 4 - 664
[ncome tax _(87) {18y 32 {2} Bh (1) 30 &7
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 295 36 48 10 {45 2 30 567
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) (209) - 2 () - -
Profit for the year 539 - (lsl) 10 147 2 30 567
Non-controlling interest 1) - - - - - - (H
Earnings 538 - {isl) i0 147 2 30 566
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Adjusted income statement continued

~ o o 042
Crhes net
Statutory Other pet finance Tax Adjted
meome Duscominued  gans and Argusnien Iatarpibiie RO/ AMOTLSATGN nroma
Al figures in £ mithons statement operasans logsey Casts charger casts benefit statement
E)—perating profit 487 f23 123 20 {79 - - 932
Net finance costs (96) - - - - 31 - (65)
Profit before tax 391 i23 123 20 179 31 - 867
Income tax {138) (38) - (5) (54) (1 36 (200)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 253 85 123 15 125 30 36 667
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 6l (85) 20 | 3 - - -
Profit for the year 314 - {43 6 i28 30 36 667
Non-controlling interest (3) - - - - - - (3)
| Earnings 314 - 143 16 28 30 36 664
Adjusted operating profit — underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operaung profit movement excluding the impact of acquisiuons, disposals and movements in exchange rates
! A figures 1 € milions j 2013
| Underlying decrease (222)
Portfolio changes 30
Exchange differences {4)
Total adjusted operating profit decrease o L {196)
Underlying decrease (23)y%
Constant exchange rate decrease (20)%

The underlying and constant exchange rate decreases above prmariy reflect the impact of restructuring charges
booked durmg 2013 Excluding the impact of these restructuring charges, underlying and constant exchange rate
operating profits have decreased 9% and 6% respecuvely




Free cash flow per share
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Operating cash flow for contnuing and disconnnued operations before tax and finance charges. divided by the

wesghted average number of shares in 1ssue

AB figures i £ millons 2013 01
Adjusted operaung profit 736 932
Cash converston 80% 85%
Operating cash flow 588 788
Operatng tax paid {i91) (65)
Net operating finance costs paid (73) {(66)
Total operatng free cash flow 324 657
Non-operating tax pad {55) -
Total free cash flow 269 657
Woeighted average number of shares inissue (millions) 8078 8043
Operating free cash flow per share 40 ip 817p
Total free cash flow per share ~ 333p 81 7p
Return on invested capital

[nvestied capit
All figures In £ miflions 2013 012
Total adjusted operating profit 736 932
Operating tax paid (191} (65)
Return } 545 867
Average goodwill and other intangibles 8,903 8.550
Average net operatng assels 1,227 1,028
Average nvested capital 16,30 9.578
Return on invested capial 5 4% 9 1%

Rewurn on invested capual 15 calcutated as total adjusted operaung profit less operaung cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average invested capital Invested capital includes the orginal unamorused goodwill and intangibles
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Shareholder information

Pearson ordmnary shares are hsted on the London
Stock Exchange and on the New Yorl Stock Exchange
in the form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors’ section of our corporate website
www pearson com/investors provides a wealth of
information for shareholders |t s also possible to
sign up to receive emall alerts for reports and press
releases relating to Pearson at

Www pearsen com/iinvestors/announcements/
emad-alerts

Shareholder information onhine

Shareholder information can be found on our website
WwWww pearson com/investors/ shareholder-information

Our registrar, EGuinin also provides 2 range of
shareholder information online You can check your
holding and find practical help on transferring shares
or updatng your details at www shareview co uk

For more information, please contact our registrar,
Equimit, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lanang, West
Sussex BIN99 6DA Telephone 0871 384 2233~ or, for
those sharehoiders with hearing difficulues, textphone
number 0871 384 2255°

informanon about the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our
website at www pearson com It also appears in the
financial columns of the nauonal press

2013 Dividends

Payminr date Amount per sharg
Interim |3 Seprember 2013 16 pence
Final 2 May 2014 32 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends pad through
BACS, this can be done dwrectly mto a bank or bulding
society account wath the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder’s registered address Equmi can be
contacted for informatton on 087t 384 2043*

Dwadend renvestment plan (DRIP)

The BRIP gives sharcholders the night to buy the
company’s shares on the London stock market
with thew cash dividend For further information,
please contact Equiniti on Q871 384 2268*

Indwidual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equimt offers ISAs in Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview co ulk/dealing
or calt customer services on 0845 300 0430

Share deaiing facilities

Equinits offers telephone and mternet services

for dealng m Pearson shares For further

information, please contact their telephone deahing
helpline on 08456 037 037 {weekdays only) or, for
oniine dealing, log on to www shareview co uk/dealing
You will need your shareholder reference number

as shown on your share certificate

A weekly postal dealing service 15 also avarfable
through Equiniy Please telephone 087 384 2248™ for
details or log on to www shareview co uk to download
a form

ShareGift

Sharehelders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to sell, may wish to
donate them to ShareGift the share donation charity
(registered charity number 1052686) Futther
information about ShareGift and the chanties it has
supported may be obtained from thewr websie,

www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London SWIP9LQ

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson’'s ADRs are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbol PSQ Each ADR
represents one ordinary share For enguires regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please contact The Banlk of New York Mellon,

PO Box 43006, Providence Rl 02940-3006,
telephone | {866) 259 2289 (woll free within the US)
or 001 201 680 6825 (outside the US). Alternauvely,
you may email shrrelatons@bnymellon com or log on
to www bnymellon com/shareowner Voung nghis for
registered ADR holders can be exercased through

The Bank of New York Mellon, and for benefical
ADR holders (and/or nomunee accounts) through
your US brokerage institution  Pearson wilf file with
the Securities and Exchange Commussion a Form 20-F
*Calls to these numbers are charged at 8p per minute plus

nerwork extras Lies open 8 30am to 5 20pm Monday
to Friday




Share register fraud protecting your imnvestment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly 10
provide recommendation advice and neither does it
appoint third parties to do so As required by law, our
shareholder register 1s avadable for public nspection
but we cannot control the use of nformauon obtained
by persons inspecung the register Please treat any
approaches purporting to origimate from Pearson

with caution

For more informatron, please log on to our website at
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-
mfarmatan/ managing-your-shares and

www pearson com/shareholderfags

Tips on protecting your shares

Keep any documentation that contams your
shareholder reference number in a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentauon

~

» Inform our registrar, Equiniti promptly when you
change address

~

-
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Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not recewve your dividend cheque
or better still, make arrangements to have the dividend
paid directly into your bank account.

Consider holding your shares electronically in a CREST
account via @ nominee

2014 Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date 2 Apni
Record date 4 Apri
Last date for dividend

resnvestment election 9 Aprd
Annual General Meeung 25 April
Payment date for dvidend and share

purchase date for dividend reinvestment 2 May
Intertm rasults 25 July
Payment date for interim dwidend i 2 September
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Principal offices

Pearson plc

8C Strand,

London WC2R ORL, UK

T +44 ()20 7010 2000

F +44 (0)20 7010 6060

firstname lastname@pearson com

Pearson Inc

330 Hudson Street,

New York City,

NY 10043, USA
T+12123%07100

firstname lastname@pearson com

WWww bearson com

Pearson plc
Registered number 53723 (England)




Relance on this document

Our Strategic report on pages 02 to 53 has been
prepared in accordance with section 414 {'Duty to
prepare a strategic report’} of the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors' Report}
Regulations 2043 it also incorporates much of the
guidance set out in the Accounting Standards Board's
Reporuing Statement on the Operatng and

Financial Review

The intention of this document is to provide
information to shareholders and is not designed
to be relied upon by any other party or for any
other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Thus document contains forward-looking statements
which are made by the directors in good faith based
on information avadable to them at the ume of
approval of this report in parucular, all statements
that express forecasts, expectations and projections
with respect to future maiters, including trends in
results of operations. margins, growth rates, overall
mariet trends, the impact of mterest or exchange
rates, the availlabthity of finanang, anticipated costs
savings and synefgies and the execution of Pearson’s
strategy, are forward-looking statements

Logo removed Logo removed

Deugn and Praducton Racley Yelax (London) wiww ry com
Print. Pureprint Group

By thewr nature forward-loolang statements involve
risks and uncertaintes because they relate to events
and depend on circumstances that will occur in the
future There are 2 number of factors which couid
cause actual resules and developments to differ
matertaily from those expressed or implied by these
forward-looking statements, ncluding a number of
factors outside Pearson's control Any forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date they are
made, and Pearson gives na undertaking to update
forward-looking statements to reflect any changes in
its expectations with regard thereto or any changes o

events, condittons or crcumstances on whuch any such

statement s based

This report has beea prnted on Edixior Challenger
Ofset vhuch 15 FSC- cerofied and made from 100%

Etememal Chloring Free (ECF) puly The mult and the

Pearson has supported the plantng of 400 sguare metres
ol new naove woodfand with the Woec.and Trust helping
10 remaove L6 tonnes of carhon diowde emussrgns generuted
by the production of tus repert

prinver are both cerufied 10150 14008 enaronmeata
managerment system and regrstered 1o EMAS e Leo
manageinent Aucit Schrme Tha report was printed
vung vegetable based inks by & CarbonMeutral™ ar nter
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